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~ In Memory ~

Robert ‘Red’ Pensinger
February 22, 1933 — June 16, 2007
Served on the Board of Directors from 1987 - 2007

‘Attitude leads to altitude’

Mr. Pensinger, our friend and Vice Chairman of the Board, lived by those words.
He was truly the heartbeat that made our community thrive and flourish and it is a better
place because he was a part of it.

His intelligence and wit spanned so much more than the financial world. As an
inspirational force, Red influenced the character of all he met.

The staff and management of The First National Bank of Greencastle wish to extend our

deepest condolences to Red’s family. We want to thank them for the time they shared
him with us, allowing him to serve as a solid cornerstone of our great success.
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TOWER BANCORP, INC. Section
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHC.LDERS MAR 7
TO BE HELD ON APRIL 9, 2008 AR £ 4 £U08
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TOWER BANCORP, INC.: WaShi%agton, De
01

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Tower Bancorp, Inc. will be
held at 1:30 p.m., prevailing time, on Wednesday, April 9, 2008, at the Re.icue Hose Company Special
Events Center, 407 South Washington Street, Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225, for the following
purposes:

1. To elect two (2) Class C Directors to serve for a 3-year terr1 and until their successors
are elected and qualified;

2. To ratify the selection of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company. LLC, Certified Public
Accountants, as the independent accountants for the corporation for the year ending
. December 31, 2008; and

3. To transact any other business that may properly come before the Annual Meeting and
any adjournment or postponement thereof.

In accordance with the By-laws of the corporation and action of the Board of Directors, only
those shareholders of record at the close of business on February 13, 2008, will be entitled to notice of
and to vote at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

A copy of the corporation’s 10-K including the Annual Report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007, is enclosed with this Notice. Copies of the corporation's Annual Report for the
2006 fiscal year may be obtained by contacting Franklin T. Klink, I, Treasurer, Tower Bancorp, Inc.,
P.0. Box 8, Center Square, Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225; (717) 597-137.

We urge you to mark, sign, date and promptly return your proxy in the enclosed envelope so
that your shares may be voted in accordance with your wishes and in ordcr that we may assure the
presence of a quorum. The prompt return of your signed proxy, regardless of the number of shares you
hold, will aid the corporation in reducing the expense of additional proxy solicitation. Giving your
proxy does not affect your right to vote in person if you attend the meeting and give written notice to
the Secretary of the corporation.

By Order of thy of Directors,
Jeff B. Shank, President

March 20, 2008
Greencastle, Pennsylvania



TOWER BANCORP, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON APRIL 9, 2008

GENERAL

Introduction, Date, Time and Place of Annual Meeting

The Board of Directors of the corporation furnishes this proxy statement for the solicitation of proxies
to be voted at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the corporation to be held on Wednesday, April
9, 2008, at 1:30 p.m., prevailing time, at the Rescue Hose Company Special Events Center, 407 South
Washington Street, Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225, and at any adjournment or postponement of the
meeting,

The corporation’s main office is located at Center Square, Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225, The
corporation’s telephone number is (717) 597-2137. The corporation is the holding company for its
wholly-owned subsidiary, The First National Bank of Greencastle. All inquiries regarding the annual
meeting should be directed to Jeff B. Shank, President of the corporation and the bank.

Solicitation and Voting of Proxies

We are mailing this proxy statement and the enclosed form of proxy to shareholders of the corporation
on or about March 20, 2008. Proxy holders will vote shares represented by proxies on the
accompanying proxy, if properly signed and returned, in accordance with the specifications made on
the proxies by the shareholders. Any proxy not specifying to the contrary will be voted:

» For the clection of the nominees for director identified in this proxy statement;

o For the ratification of the selection of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC as the
independent accountants for the corporation for the year ending December 31, 2008; and

¢ In accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors for any other business
that may properly come before the annual meeting and any adjournment or postponement of
the meeting.

The execution and return of the enclosed proxy will not affect a shareholder's right to attend the annual
meeting and vote in person, after giving written notice to the Secretary of the corporation. A
shareholder who returns a proxy may revoke it at any time before it is voted by delivering written
notice of revocation to John H. McDowell, Sr., Secretary of Tower Bancorp, Inc., P.O. Box §,
Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225.

The corporation will bear the cost of preparing, assembling, printing, mailing and soliciting proxies,
and any additional material that the corporation may furnish shareholders in connection with the annual
meeting. In addition to the use of the mail, directors, officers and employees of the corporation and of
the bank may, without additional compensation, solicit proxies personally, by telephone, telecopier or
other electronic means. The corporation will make arrangements with brokerage houses and other
custodians, nominees and fiduciaries to forward proxy solicitation material to the beneficial owners of
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stock held of record by those persons. Upon request, the corporation will rcimburse them for their
reasonable forwarding expenses.

Revocability of Proxy

A shareholder who returns a proxy may revoke the proxy at any tinie before it is voted only:

o By giving written notice of revocation to John H. McDowell, Sr., Secretary of Tower
Bancorp, Inc., P.O. Box 8, Greencastle, Pennsylvama 17225;

e By executing a later-dated proxy and giving written notice ther :of to the Secretary of the
corporation; or

e By voting in person after giving written notice to the Secretary of the corporation.

Record Date, Voting Securities, and Quorum

The record date for the annual meeting is February 13, 2008. At the close of business on February 13,
2008, the corporation had 2,317,873 shares of common stock outstanding. the only issued and
outstanding class of stock. Only holders of common stock of record at the: close of business on
February 13, 2008, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting. The corporation is also
authorized to issue 500,000 shares of preferred stock, none of which have been issued. On all matters
to come before the annual meeting, each share of common stock is entitle 1 to one vote. Cumulative
voting rights do not exist with respect to the election of directors.

Pennsylvania law and the laws of the corporation require the presence of ;1 quorum for each matter to
be acted upon at the annual meeting. The presence, in person or by proxy, of shareholders entitled to
cast at least a majority of the votes that all shareholders are entitled to cast constitutes a quorum for the
transaction of business at the annual meeting. Votes withheld and absten:ions will be counted in
determining the presence of a quorum. Broker non-votes will not be counted in determining the
presence of a quorum for the particular matter as to which the broker withheld authority.

Assuming the presence of a quorum, the two nominees for director receiv ing the highest number of
votes cast by shareholders entitled to vote for the election of directors shell be elected. Votes withheld
from a nominee and broker non-votes will not be cast for the nominee.

Assuming the presence of a quorum, the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by all
shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting is required for ratification of *he selection of the
independent auditors. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not deemed to constitute "votes cast” and,
therefore, do not count either for or against ratification. Abstentions and broker non-votes, however,
have the practical effect of reducing the number of affirmative votes required to achieve a majority for
each matter by reducing the total number of shares voted from which the required majority is
calculated.

PRINCIPAL BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE CORPORATION'S STOCK

Principal Holders

To the best of our knowledge, no persons or entities, owned of record or beneficially, on February 13,
2008, more than 5% of the corporation’s outstanding common stock.



Beneficial Ownership by Officers, Directors and Nominees

The following table sets forth, as of February 13, 2008, and from information supplied by the
respective persons, the amount and the percentage, if over 1%, of the common stock of the corporation
beneficially owned by each director, each nominee for director and all named executive officers and
directors of the corporation as a group. Unless otherwise noted, shares are held directly by the
respective individual. The shares beneficially owned include stock dividends paid by the corporation.

The securities “Beneficially Owned” by an individual are determined in accordance with the definition
of “Beneficial Ownership” set forth in the general rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and may include securities owned by or for the individual’s spouse and minor children
and any other relative who has the same home, as well as securities to which the individual has or
shares voting or investment power or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days after
February 13, 2008. Beneficial ownership may be disclaimed as to certain of the securities.

Name of Individual or Amount and Nature of Percent of Class"'”
Identity of Group Beneficial Ownership

Class A Directors
(to serve until 2009)

Mark E. Gayman 4,755 (h -
James H. Craig, Jr. 12,814 @ -
Harry D. Johnston 26,653 ¥ 1.13%

Class B Directors
{(to serve until 2010)

Jeff B. Shank 29,283 ¥ 1.25%
Frederic M. Frederick 4,485 -
Lois E. Easton 13,530 @ -
Terry L. Randall 56,215 7 2.39%

Class C Directors and Nominees
(to serve until 2011)

Kermit G. Hicks 35,278 @ 1.50%
Patricia A. Carbaugh 627 -
Named Executive Officers

Franklin T. Klink, II 5,245 --
John H. McDowell, Sr. 17,265 --
All Officers, Directors and 206,150 8.77%

Nominees as a Group (11 persons)

(1} Includes 534 sharcs held by Mr. Gayman’s spouse and 382 shares held by Mr. Gayman’s child. Shares and percent
include 2,773 shares subject to vested options.

(2) Shares and percent include 6,494 shares subject to vested options.
(3) Shares include 13,640 shares held individually by Dr. Johnston’s spouse, 8,663 sharcs held jointly with his child, 3,150

shares held in an IRA for Dr, Johnston and 1,040 shares held in an IRA for Dr. Johnston’s spouse. Shares and percent
include 160 shares subject to vested options.




(4) Includes 15,797 shares held jointly with his spouse, and 12,986 shares held by the ESOP that are allocated to Mr.
Shank’s account and over which he exercises investment control, Shares and percent include 500 shares subject to
vested options.

(5) Includes 1,412 shares held jointly with his spouse and 100 shares held by each of his three children. Shares and percent
include 2,773 shares subject to vested options.

(6) Includes 310 shares held by Ms. Easton’s spouse. Shares and percent include 6,494 thares subject to vested options.

(7) Shares and percent includes 1,086 shares held jointly with spouse and 54,969 shares 1eld in the H.B. Mellott Estate,
Inc. Shares and percent include 160 shares subject to vested option.

(8) Includes 8,252 shares held by Mr. Hicks’ spouse. Shares and percent include 6,494 :hares subject to vested options.
(9} Shares and percent include 160 shares subject to vested options.

(10) The percent of class assumes all outstanding options issued to the directors and offic :rs have been exercised and,
therefore, on a pro forma basis, 2,351,150 shares of common stock outstanding.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Shareholders will elect two (2) Class C Directors at the Annual Meeting. The nominees for Class C
Directors are Kermit G. Hicks and Patricia A. Carbaugh. The directors w 11 serve for a 3-year term and
until their successors are elected and qualified. Unless otherwise instructed, the proxyholders will vote
the proxies received by them for the election of the nominees. If the nomi:iees should become
unavailable for any reason, proxyholders will vote proxies in favor of subtitute nominees, as the Board
of Directors of the corporation shall determine. The Board of Directors h s no reason to believe the
nominees will be unable to serve if elected. Any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors of the
corporation, for any reason, may be filled by a majority of the directors thz:n in office until the
expiration of the term of the vacancy.

In addition, cumulative voting does not exist for the election of directors. Each share of common stock
is entitled to cast one vote for each nominee. For example, if a sharehold :r owns ten shares of
common stock, he or she may cast up to ten votes for each of the two directors in the class to be
elected.



INFORMATION AS TO NOMINEES, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table contains certain information, as of February 13, 2008, with respect to current
directors, nominees for director and certain officers of the corporation.

Principal Occupation for Past Five Years and Director
Name Age  Position Held with the Corporation and the Bank Since
Corp/Bank
Class A Directors — Term Expires 2009
Mark E. Gayman 55 Owner - Gaymere Farms 200372003
James H. Craig, Ir. 74 Retired Dentist 1990/1990
Harry D. Johnston 71 Physician 2006/2006

Class B Directors — Term Expires 2010

Jeff B. Shank 52 Prestdent/CEO of the Corporation 1992/1992
and the Bank

Frederic M. Frederick, 51 Partner in engineering firm of 2002/2002

Vice Chairman of the Board Frederick, Seibert & Associates, Inc.

Lois E. Easton 72 Retired Marketing Manager of the Bank 1996/1996

Terry L. Randall 60  President/CEQO of Mellott Enterprises, Inc.  2006/2006

Class C Directors — Term Expires 2008 and Nominees for Class C Directors

Kermit G. Hicks, 72 Hicks Chevrolet, Inc. 1983/1969
Chairman of the Board
Patricia A, Carbaugh 64 Administrative Assistant 2006/2006

John L. Grove Medical Ctr.
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Our Board of Directors believes that the purpose of corporate governance is to ensure that we
maximize shareholder value in a manner consistent with legal requirements and the highest standards
of integrity. The Board has adopted and adheres to corporate governance practices which the Board
and senior management believe promote this purpose, are sound and represent best practices. We
continually review these governance practices, Pennsylvania law (the state in which we are
incorporated) and SEC regulations, as well as best practices suggested by recognized governance
authorities.

Independent Directors

During 2007, all members of the Board of Directors were independent, with the exception of Mr.
Shank, in accordance with the independence standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market. In determining
the directors’ independence, the Board of Directors considered loan transactions between the bank and
the directors, their family members and businesses with whom they are associated, as well as any
contributions made to non-profit organizations with whom they are associated.

The table below includes a description of other categories or types of transactions, relationships or
arrangements considered by the Board (in addition to those listed above) in reaching its determination
that the directors are independent.
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Name Independent Other Transactions/Relationships/Arrangements

Ms., Carbaugh Yes None
Dr. Craig Yes None
Ms. Easton Yes None
Mr. Frederick Yes None
Mr. Gayman Yes None
Mr. Hicks Yes None
Dr. Johnston Yes None
Mr. Randall Yes None

In each case, the Board determined that none of the transactions above impaired the independence of
the director. For more information, please refer to “Certain Transactions”

Code of Ethics

Since 1986, we have had a Code of Ethics. In 2005, as required by law and regulation, we amended
our Code of Ethics. Our Codes of Ethics are applicable to our directors, officers and employees. The
Code of Ethics encourages individuals to report any conduct that they belizve in good faith to be an
actual or apparent violation of the Code of Ethics. The Board periodically receives reports on our
compliance program. The Code of Ethics is posted on our website at wwv.fnbgc.com under the
“About FNB” tab.

Shareholder Communications

The Board of Directors does not have a formal process for shareholders t¢ send communications to the
board. Due to the infrequency of shareholder communications to the Boa:d of Directors, the Board
does not believe that a formal process is necessary. Written communicati>ns received by the
corporation from shareholders are shared with the full board no later than the next regularly scheduled
board meeting.

Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors

Mr. Gayman, Dr. Craig, Mr. Shank, Mr. F rederick, Ms. Easton, Ms. Carbaugh, Dr. Johnston, Mr.
Randall, and Mr. Hicks are members of each committee of the bank, except the Audit and
Compensation Committees. The directors of the corporation are also directors of the bank. Committee
members receive no fee for attendance at committee meetings. To date, e xcept for the Compensation
Committee, none of the committees have designated a Chairman.

During 2007, the directors of the corporation held 15 meetings and the di ectors of the bank held 28
board meetings. Each of the directors attended at least 75% of the combiaed total number of meetings
of the Board of Directors and of the committees to which they belong.

Executive Committee: This committee consists of the Chairman of the Board, Vice-Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President of the corporation. This
committee meets when necessary, at the request of the Chairman, Vice-Chairman or President of the
corporation to discuss and prepare recommendations on various business matters prior to the regular
Board of Directors meeting.




Audit Committee: The Audit Committee, of which directors Dr. Craig, Ms. Easton, Mr. Gayman, Ms.
Carbaugh, Dr. Johnston, Mr. Hicks and Mr. Randall are members, held nine (9) meetings during fiscal
year 2007. The members of the Audit Committee are all independent under NASDAQ independence
standards. The Audit Committee oversees the accounting and tax functions of the corporation,
recommends to the Board the engagement of independent accountants for the year, reviews with
management and the accountants the plan and scope of the audit engagement, reviews the annual
financial statements of the corporation and any recommended changes or modifications to control
procedures and accounting practices and policies, and monitors with management and the accountants
the corporation’s system of internal controls and its accounting and reporting practices. The Audit
Committee has adopted a charter which was attached to the 2007 proxy statement as Appendix A.

We have no ‘audit committee financial expert.” We believe the cost to retain a financial expert at this
time is prohibitive. However, the Board of Directors believes that each audit committee member has
sufficient knowledge in financial and auditing matters to serve on the committee. The committee has
the authority to engage legal counse! or other experts or consultants as it deems appropriate to carry out
its responsibilities.

Compensation Committee: The Compensation Committee, of which directors Messrs. Frederick,
Hicks, and Randall are members, held two (2) meetings during fiscal year 2007. The members of the
Compensation Committee are all independent under NASDAQ independence standards. The
Compensation Committee’s duties include evaluating the Chief Executive Officer’s performance in
light of goals and objectives and setting the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation levels based on its
evaluation. The Compensation Committee reviews and makes recommendations to the Board from
time to time regarding the corporation’s compensation programs and benefits programs for executive
personnel.

The agenda for the Compensation Committee meetings is determined by the Chairman of the Board who
chairs the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee is charged with determining and
recommending to the full Board of Directors the compensation for the Named Executive Officers and the
members of the Board of Directors and for reviewing the suggested compensation for all employees. The
Compensation Committee delegates to the President and Chief Executive Officer the responsibitity of
conducting annual reviews for the other executive officers and determining appropriate levels of
compensation for all employees, excluding his compensation. The Compensation Committee first reviews
the recommended levels of compensation and approves the levels for presentation to the full Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors then advises the Chief Executive Officer on compensation matters,
determines the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer, reviews and takes action on the
recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer as to the appropriate compensation of other officers and
key personnel and approves the grants of bonuses to ofticers and key personnel.

The President and Chief Executive Officer does not recommend the level of director compensation.
The level of director compensation was determined by reviewing the compensation reported in
similarly situated financial institution’s annual materials.

The company engaged Webber H. R. Solutions, LLC as consultants to assist in establishing
compensation for executives and non-executives. Their work was completed in December 2007.

The Compensation Committee has adopted a charter which was attached to the 2007 proxy statement
as Appendix B.




Nominating Committee and Nominations: The corporation does not have :. standing nominating,
committee. The Board of Directors performs the duties typically associated with the nominating
committee. A shareholder who desires to propose an individual for consideration by the Board of
Directors as a nominee for director should submit a proposal in writing to ‘he President of the
corporation in accordance with Section 10.1 of the corporation's by-laws. Any shareholder who
intends to nominate any candidate for election to the Board of Directors must notify the Secretary of
the corporation in writing not less than 45 days prior to the date of any me:ting of shareholders called
for the election of directors. The Board does not have a policy for considering director candidates
recommended by shareholders due to the infrequency of nominations, but its policy is to give due
consideration to any and all candidates. The Board does not have any spe:ific minimum qualifications
for consideration for candidates.

Annual Meeting Attendance

The corporation has no specific policy requiring directors to attend the Ar nual Meeting of
Shareholders. All members of the Board of Directors, except for Mr. Ranall and Mr. Pensinger were
present at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. All members of the Board of Directors are
expected to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Compensation Committee

The corporation has a Compensation Committee which consists of non-employee directors. The
agenda for the Compensation Committee meetings is determined by the Chairman of the Board who
chairs the Compensation Committee.

Compensation and Benefits Philosophy

The compensation and benefits programs for the corporation’s executive s are designed with the goal of
providing compensation that is fair, reasonable and competitive. The programs are intended to help the
corporation recruit and retain qualified executives, and provide rewards that are linked to performance
while also aligning the interests of executives with those of the corporation’s shareholders.

The design of specific programs is based on the following guiding principles:

Performance

The corporation believes that the best way to accomplish alignment of compensation with the interest
of the sharcholders is to link pay directly to individual and corporation performance. When

performance exceeds expectations, pay levels are expected to be above tae competitive median.

Competitiveness

Compensation and benefits programs are designed to be competitive with those provided by companies
with whom we compete for talent, specifically other financial institutiors. In general, programs are
considered competitive when they are at median levels as measured aga' nst these competitor
companies.




Benefit programs are designed to provide competitive levels of protection and financial security. Basic
benefit programs are not based on performance. Bonus and incentive programs are tied to the
corporation’s performance to motivate the named executive officer to meet the corporation’s
performance goals and to reward the named executive officer when such goals are met.

Cost

Compensation and benefit programs are designed to be cost-effective and affordable, ensuring that the
interests of the shareholders are considered. They are also designed to place a portion of the named
executive officer’s compensation at risk whereby the named executive officer will only receive

incentive compensation when specific corporation goals are met.

Comparator Group

The relevant comparator group for compensation and benefits programs consists of financial
institutions of like asset size and geographically located that the corporation competes for the same
talent. Salary and benefit information is gathered from proxies of financial institutions and salary
surveys, as further discussed in Benchmarking.

Internal Equity

The guiding principles described above are the same principles that govern the design of the
compensation and benefit plans provided to the corporation’s non-executive workforce. The
corporation believes that this alignment of philosophy is an important element in creating an
environment of trust and teamwork that furthers the long-term interests of the corporation and the
shareholders.

Components of Total Compensation

The corporation’s executive compensation and benefits package consists of direct compensation and
corporation-sponsored benefit plans, including base salary, bonuses, health and welfare benefits,
retirement plans, and stock option plans. Each component is designed to contribute to a total package
that is competitive, appropriately performance-based, valued by the corporation’s executives and aligns
their interest with those of the shareholders.

Direct Compensation

Direct compensation consists of base salary, a quarterly cash award and an annual performance award.
All elements of direct compensation are linked to performance, either individual or corporation. By
creating these links, the corporation seeks to achieve its objective of performance-based, cost-effective
compensation programs.

Base Salary

Base salary is designed to attract and retain experienced executives who can manage the corporation
and achieve the corporation’s business goals. Base salaries are generally targeted at the median of the
competitive market. The base salary for each named executive officer is determined based upon
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experience, expected personal performance, salary levels in effect for com sarable positions with and
without the industry, internal base salary comparability considerations and the responsibilities assumed
by the named executive officer. While an executive’s initial salary is dete 'mined by an assessment of
competitive market levels, the major factor in determining base salary incieases is individual
performance. Executives who are new to a role may have base salaries be ow the market median;
similarly, executives who have significant experience and have demonstrated sustained superior
performance over time may have salaries above the market median. The corporation usually grants
annual increases to executives as well as increases needed to reflect changes in role, responsibility and
the market competitive environment. Although insurance benefits and ret.rement benefits are not taken
into account when determining base salary, a named executive officer’s ability to participate in the
Stock Option Plan is considered when determining the level of base salary.

Quarterly Cash Award

The quarterly cash award is tied to the corporation’s performance and is granted to all full time
employees. The quarterly cash award is made at the discretion of the Board of Directors and the Board
does not establish specific performance goals but uses its subjective busir.ess experience in determining
if an award is merited. The award is designed to supplement base salary «nd align all full time
employees” interest with those of shareholders by linking the corporation’s performance to the cash
award. As all employees are eligible for the quarterly cash award, the querterly cash award is not taken
into consideration when base salary is determined.

Stock Option Plan

The stock option plan is designed to enhance the link between the creatioa of shareholder value and the
corporation’s incentive compensation and provide an opportunity for incieased equity ownership by the
named executive officer. Options under the plan are awarded as an annual performance award
determined at the discretion of the Board which uses the corporation’s re'urn on average tangible
equity. The Compensation Committee does not establish performance gcals which the corporation
must meet to automatically trigger the award. Instead, the Compensation Committee looks at the
corporation’s return on average tangible equity and considers all events v’hich may affect the average
tangible equity before determining whether or not it is appropriate to awzrd benefits under the plan.
The intent of the plan is to attract and retain executives, and to strengther the link between
compensation and increased returns for the sharcholders, specifically return on average tangible equity.
The awards are designed to provide each named executive officer with a significant incentive to
manage the corporation from the perspective of an owner with an equity stake. An individual’s award
is approved in January based on the previous year’s performance as of D :cember 31. The options are
issued with an exercise price of one dollar, are vested on the grant date a1d have no expiration date.
The awards are not tied to the release of any information.

Corporation-Sponsored Benefit Plans
The bank provides health and welfare and retirement benefit plans to executives. The benefits package

is designed to assist the named executive officers in providing for their ¢ wn financial security in a
manner that recognizes individual needs and preferences.
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Insurance Plans

Group health, dental, vision, disability and group life insurance coverage are available to all eligible
employees, including the named executive officers. Such plans are standard in the industry and in the
geographic area for all industries, as well as necessary to compete for talented employees at all levels of the
corporation. In general, the named executive officers participate in these benefits on the same basis as non-
executive employees. Health and welfare plans are not tied to corporation or individual performance. The
costs of providing such benefits to all eligible employees is not taken into account when determining
specific salaries of the named executives officers and is seen as a cost of doing business which will help
keep the employee productive and engaged.

Retirement Plans

We currently provide retirement plans to our employees to provide long term financial security. The
retirement plans are designed to assist our employees in providing for their own financial security in a
manner that recognizes individual needs and preferences. The corporation provides retirement benefits
through a combination of qualified and non-qualified plans (as defined under the Internal Revenue
Code).

Profit Sharing/401K

We believe that it is essential for employees to save for retirement and as such have provided all
employees a vehicle through which to contribute to their financial security in retirement. The
corporation maintains a profit sharing/401(k) plan which has a combined tax qualified savings feature
and profit sharing feature. The profit sharing/401(k) plan provides benefits to employees who have
completed at least one year of service and are at least 21 vears of age. The corporation makes a
contribution to the plan for each employee of 3% of their respective eligible compensation. The
corporation may make a discretionary contribution annually to the plan based upon the corporation’s
performance, specifically return on average tangible equity. The discretionary contribution is designed
to award employees for helping the corporation achieve its performance goals. Contributions are
expressed as a percentage of base salary and quarterly bonus awards and named executive officers
receive the same percentage of salary as all other employees. Contributions to the profit
sharing/401(k) are not taken into consideration when determining other levels of compensation.

Emplovee Stock Ownership Plan

To align the interests of the shareholders with the interests of the named executive officers, and other
employees, the corporation offers an employee stock ownership plan. The employee stock ownership
plan provides an opportunity for increased equity ownership by the Named Executive Officers.
Contributions to the plan are based on corporate performance as a percentage of tangible equity and are
computed as a percentage of the participants’ total earnings. The payment of benefits to participants is
made at death, disability, termination or retirement.

Supplemental Insurance Plan

In an effort to offer certain named executive officers an additional method of saving for retirement and
to account for some of the limitations with traditional pension plans, the corporation maintains a non-
qualified deferred compensation plan in which the named executive officers are eligible to participate.

12




The participants may remain in the plan regardless of their employment stitus with the corporation.
During 2007, the plan was closed to new participants and amended to reflcct changes in the amount of
compensation permitted to be deferred. The Chief Executive Officer and Sxecutive Vice President
currently participate in the plan. The plan pays ten percent interest on plan balances and is intended to
provide supplemental retirement benefits to enable the corporation to attract and retain officers.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

In 2002, the corporation implemented a supplemental executive retiremen: plan, a non-qualifying plan,
covering the Chief Executive Officer to provide for salary continuation in certain circumstances. The
plan is intended to provide supplemental retirement benefits to enable the corporation to attract and
retain executives, and is a defined benefit plan. It makes certain payments upon retirement, death, and
disability. However, if the Chief Executive’s employment is terminated for cause, he forfeits all
benefits. In addition, if he violates the restrictive covenant contained in tt e supplemental executive
retirement plan, he forfeits his right to any further benefits. The suppleme ntal executive retirement
plan encourages longevity and discourages competition after employment is terminated for any reason.

Change of Control Agreements

The Corporation has entered into change of control agreements with certain named executive officers.
The agreements are intended to attract and retain executives. In the event hat the corporation and the
bank undergo a change of control, as defined in the agreements, the agree nents provide that certain
severance benefits will be paid to each Named Executive Officer. The berefits were granted in order to
recognize their past and present service and to provide incentive for their sontinued valued service.

Group Term Replacement Plan and Executive Bonus Plan

Named executive officers also participate in the corporation’s Group Teria Replacement Plan which
consists of split-dollar insurance plans whereby the corporation splits insurance proceeds from the
death of the named executive officer with the named executive officer’s teneficiary. The executive
bonus plan was established to encourage the executive to remain in the eriploy of the corporation.
These types of plans are widely available in the financial services industr’ because the corporation will
recover its plan costs upon the death of the named executive officer. Thit. benefit provides further
incentive for longevity with the corporation.

Perquisites

The corporation provides a corporation-owned vehicle to the Chief Execu.tive Officer and the
Executive Vice President as their position requires travel offsite frequently for bank business. The
provision of a corporation vehicle is viewed as a normal benefit in the highly competitive financial
services industry.

The Role of the Executive Officers in Setting Compensation

The Compensation Committee delegates to the President and Chief Exec itive Officer the responsibility
of conducting annual reviews for the other executive officers. The Presicent and Chief Executive
Officer proposes increases based on his subjective analysis of the individ 1al’s contribution to the
corporation’s strategic goals and objectives. In determining whether strat :gic goals have been achieved,
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the President and Chief Executive Officer considers numerous factors, including the following: the
corporation’s performance as measured by earnings, return on assets, return on equity, asset and
liability quality, and audit findings. Although the President and Chief Executive Officer measures the
performance and increases in compensation in light of these factors, no direct correlation exists
between any specific criterion and the employees’ compensation. The President and Chief Executive
Officer makes a subjective determination after review of all relevant information, including the above.

The President and Chief Executive Officer does not set or participate in the determination process of
his annual base salary.

The Compensation Committee first reviews the recommended levels of compensation and approves the
levels for presentation to the full Board of Directors. The Board of Directors then advises the Chief
Executive Officer on compensation matters, determines the compensation of the Chief Executive
Officer, reviews and takes action on the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer as to the
appropriate compensation of other officers and key personnel and approves the grants of bonuses to
officers and key personnel.

Independent Consultant

In 2007, the company engaged L. R. Webber Associates to provide the corporation with an annual
salary and benefits survey. The survey was utilized to review the current salary ranges. The firm was
chosen because it conducts surveys within our market area. L.R. Webber Associates’ sole role and
specific contribution to the determination of compensation was to provide the survey.

Benchmarking

The survey provided by L.R. Webber Associates benchmarked salary and benefits from Pennsylvania
financial institutions who participated in a survey conducted by L.R. Webber Associates. Survey
results were reported by bank asset size and geographic region and reported as salary ranges. Asa
result of the benchmarking, the Compensation Commitiee determined that the salary levels for the
named executive officers were below the weighted average for banks in the same asset size and
geographic region.

Internal Revenue Code Limits on the Deductibility of Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, generally denies publicly-held
corporations a federal income tax deduction for compensation exceeding $1,000,000 paid to the Chief
Executive Officer or any of the four other highest paid executive officers, excluding performance-
based compensation. The named executive officers’ compensation programs are designed as not to
exceed this limit.

Triggering Events in Contracts

Messrs. Shank, McDowell, and Klink are parties to change of control agreements. The executive 1s
compensated upon a termination after a change of control in order to ensure that decisions regarding
potential change of controls are made in the best interests of the shareholders and that personal
concerns regarding subsequent employment are minimized.
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Mr. Shank’s change of control automatically becomes an employment agre::ment upon a change of
control. The employment agreement portion of the change of control contains triggering events which
are standard in the financial services industry: termination without cause ar d termination for good
reason. The contract is designed to give the executive the security of knowing that if his employment
is terminated in one of those scenarios that the executive will receive some form of compensation
during the transition phase from working for the corporation to finding another position.

Mr. Shank is a party to a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan upon wi lich vesting or payment is
triggered by a change of control, death, early termination and retirement. In addition, the contract
contains a noncompetition provision, whereby the executive is not allowed to compete with the
corporation or solicit customers of the corporation for a specific period of time. Payments under the
Supplemental Insurance Plan and Group Term Replacement Plan and Exec utive Bonus Plan are
triggered upon a change of control, disability, early termination, retirement, or death. The
Compensation Committee believes that these triggering events are appropr.ate as they serve as
important retention tools and are designed to provide replacement income *ipon a termination after a
change of control, early termination, disability or retirement.

Material Differences in Named Executive Officers’ Compensation

The named executive officers receive base salaries commensurate with their positions and
responsibilities and with the executive’s past performance and longevity with the corporation and bank.
Mr. Shank is the only executive who is a party to a change of control agree ment which converts into an
employment agreement. Given his longevity with the corporation and bank. and his position as
President and Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee beli¢ ves that this difference is
appropriate.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

1. The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Corapensation Discussion and
Analysis with management; and

2. Based upon the review and discussion, the Compensation Commit ee recommended to the
Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysi: be included in the
corporation’s proxy statement.

Compensation Committee Members:
Kermit G. Hicks Terry L. Randall
Frederic M. Frederick

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The table below reflects information concerning the annual compensation for services in all capacities
1o the corporation for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 of those persons who were,
as of December 31, 2007:

o the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and
« the three most highly compensated Executive Officers of the corporation to the extent that the
person’s total compensation exceeded $100,000.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

(a) (b) () (CH (e} H (8) (h} 0] ®

Name and Year Salary Bonus Stock Option Non-Equity Change in Pension All Other Total
Principal Position 5" LR Awards Awards Incentive Plan Value and Compensation [49)
(83" [N Compensation Nonqualified (59
Deferred
Compensation
Eamnings
8
;:rff% 5'&2"_.1;0 2007 SI74,000  $24037 845 $27,89 - 20,627 @ $33.003 5280 498
esiden 006 $160000  S21924 S80S $31.250 - $20,627 $29,503 §264,199

John H, McDowell, Sr. 2007 $128000 517,014 $845 $22,326 - - $25.955 $194.140
Execeutive Vice 2006 % 000 $15.0% 24.9 2 $181
President 118, 051 895 $24.973 - - $22,387 ,306
Franklin T. Klink, 111 2007 $98,500  S11,965 - $13.970 - - $16,203 $140,638

Chief Financial OFf
fef Financial Officer 2006 $01.000  SIG, 144 - $6,232 - - 513,937 121,313

)" The amounts shown represent the base salary. The amounts for 2007 and 2006 include deferred salary of $5,700 for

Mr. Shank and $945 for Mr. McDowell.

Represents the aggregate yearly total for quarterly cash awards.

The amounts reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 in accordance with FAS 123(R) for awards under the Employee Service Award Program.
The amounts reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 in accordance with FAS 123(R) under the Annual Performance Award Program.

“) The amount for 2007 includes for Mr. Shank, $18,000 contribution to Profit Sharing Plan, and $11,250 contribution to
ESOP; for Mr. McDowell $13,739 contribution to Profit Sharing Plan. The amount for 2006 includes for Mr. Shank,
$£16,766 contribution to Profit Sharing Plan, and $10,479 contribution to ESOP; for Mr. McDowell $12,579
contribution to Profit Sharing Plan.

The amount reflects the aggregate actuarial increase in the present value of the benefits under Mr. Shank’s
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.

@)
3

)

(8

Quarterly Cash Award

The quarterly cash award is tied to corporate performance and is granted to all full time employees.
The quarterly cash award is made at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The quarterly cash award
is determined by the bank’s return on average tangible equity.

Annual Performance Award

Awards granted to individual executives are at the discretion of the Board of Directors and may be
made annually under the corporation’s Stock Option Plan for Officers. The number of options awarded
uses the corporation’s return on average tangible equity and a percentage of the award set by the Board
of Directors. An individual’s award is approved in January based on the previous year’s performance
as of December 31. The options are issued with an exercise price of one dollar, are vested on the grant
date and have no expiration date.




Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

Name Grant Date All Other All Other Excrcise or Grant Date Fair
Stock Option Base Price Value of Stock
Awards: Awards: Option and Option
Number of Number of Avvards Awards
Shares of Securities (:+/Sh)
Stock or Underlying #)
Units Options
# #
Jeff B. Shank December 1, 2007 20 - - $845
January 10, 2007 -- 641 51 $27.8%6
Franklin T. Klink, 11} January 10, 2007 -- 321 51 $13,970
John H. McDowell, Sr. | December 1, 2007 20 -- -- 5845
January 10, 2007 -- 513 $! $22.326

utstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2007

There were no unexercised options, unvested stock and equity incentive plan awards for the Named
Executive Officers at December 31, 2007.

Deferred Compensation Plan — Supplemental Insurance Plan

The bank maintains a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for certain executives and officers.
Currently, only Messrs. Shank and McDowell participate in the plan. The participants remain in the
plan regardless of their employment status with the corporation. During 20007, the plan was closed to
new participants and changes in the amount of compensation permitted to >e deferred. The plan pays

ten percent on plan balances.

Nongualified Deferred Compensation Tabl:

Executive Registrant Aggregate
Contributions Contributions in Aggregate Earnings Aggregate Balance at Last
in Last FY Last FY in Last FY Withdr: avals/Distributions EYE
Name ) 5} 8 53) 5)
(8} b) {c} {d) (€} [hi}
Jeff B. Shank $5.700 -- $23.107 -0- $254.176
Franklin T. Kiink, [11 -0- -- -- - -
John H. McDowell, Sr. $ 945 -- 510,318 -0- $113.495
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of
Shares
Acquired On Number of Securities Value Realized
Exercise Value Realized Acquired on Vesting on Vesting
Name # on Exercise {$) (#) [&))
Jeff B. Shank '
President/CEOQ 641 $27,523 20 $845
Franklin T, Klink, IH
Chief Financial Officer 321 $13,930 -- -
John H. McDowell, Sr.
Executive Vice President 513 $21,726 20 $845

The following table discloses the number of outstanding options, warrants and rights granted by the
corporation to participants in equity compensation plans, not approved by shareholders, as well as the
number of securities remaining available for future issuance under these plans.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

{A) (#)

Number of Securities to be
Issucd Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants, and Rights

(B}{3$)

Weighted Average Exercise
Price of Qutsianding Options,

Warrants, and Rights

(C)(H)

Number of Sccurities Remaining
Available for Future [ssuance
Under Equity Compensation Pians
Excluding Securitics Reflected in

Column {A)
Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan -0- N/A 36,362
Stock Option Plan for Qutside Directors 34,858 $£34.34 54,383

The First National Bank of Greencastle is the wholly-owned operating subsidiary of Tower Bancorp, Inc.
As such, our benefit plans are principally organized at the bank level, as described below.

Pension Benefits Table

The following table summarizes the present value of accumulated benefits payable to Mr. Shank under
his Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan during 2007.

Name Plan Name Number of Years Present Value of Payments During
Credited Service Accumulated Benefit Last Fiscal Year
*) (5} &Y]
(a}) (b} () (d) (e)
Jeft'B. Shank
President/CEQ Supplemental Executive Relirement Plan N/A $295,359 $-0-

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

In 2002, the corporation implemented a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”), a non-
qualifying plan, covering Jeff B. Shank.

18




If a change of control of the corporation occurs or Mr. Shank terminates his employment on or after the
retirement age of 65, the bank will pay Mr. Shank $75,000 per year. The: benefit will be paid monthly,
commencing on the first day of the month following Mr. Shank’s 65" birthday and continuing for 20
years.

If no change of control has occurred and Mr. Shank’s employment is ter ninated before the retirement
age of 65 due to voluntary termination by Mr. Shank, non-renewal of hi:: employment agreement, or for
reasons other than cause, the bank pays Mr. Shank an accrued amount o benefit, as of the date of
termination. This benefit is paid monthly, commencing on the first day of the month following Mr.
Shank’s 65™ birthday and continuing for 20 years.

If Mr. Shank dies while he is actively employed at the bank, his benefic:ary receives a scheduled death
benefit equal to the amount of his retirement benefit. If Mr. Shank dies after reaching age 65, his
beneficiary receives the remainder of his scheduled retirement benefits.

If the bank terminates Mr. Shank’s employment for cause, he forfeits th: benefits provided under the
SERP. In addition, if Mr. Shank violates the restrictive covenant contained in the SERP, he forfeits his
right to any further benefits under the SERP.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE-IN-CONTROL

Change in control agreements

The corporation has entered into change of control agreements with Mes:irs. Shank, McDowell and Klink.

Pursuant to the respective Named Executive Officer’s agreement if Mr. k.link’s employment is terminated
for reasons other than cause, death, or disability, then Mr. Klink will receive twenty-four (24) months of
his monthly salary.

Pursuant to the terms of Mr. McDowel!’s agreement, if his employment it terminated for reasons other than
cause, death, or disability or if he terminates his employment for “;:100d reason,” as defined in the
agreement, then he shall receive two (2) times his base salary plus quarterly cash awards payable in twenty-
four (24) monthly installments.

Pursuant to the terms of Mr. Shank’s agreement, upon a change of cor trol, he receives an employment
agreement for a three (3) year term upon the terms provided in the change of control which has been filed
as an Exhibit 99.4 of the corporation’s 10-Q for the quarter ended Septeriber 30, 2002. 1f his employment
is terminated for reasons other than cause, death, or disability or if he terminates employment for “good
reason,” as defined in the agreement, he will receive a lump sum payment equal to 2.99 times his base
amount which is defined as the mean average of the total annual direct s:lary plus the mean average of the
annual total bonuses paid to him during the three (3) calendar years imnediately preceding the eftective
date of the change of control.

“Change of Control” is defined in the agreements as

(A) a merger, consolidation or division involving the corporation, (B} a sale, exchange, transfer or
other disposition of substantially all of the assets of the corporation, or (12) a purchase by the corporation of
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substantially all of the assets of another entity, uniess after such merger, consolidation, division, sale,
exchange, transfer, purchase or disposition a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of the legal
entity resulting from or existing after any such transaction and of the Board of Directors of such entity’s
parent corporation, if any, are former members of the Board of Directors of corporation;

or any “person’ (as such term 1s used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the “Exchange Act™)), other than the corporation or bank or any “person” who on the date hereofisa
director or officer of the corporation or bank is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-
3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the corporation or bank representing thirty
five (35%) percent or more of the combined voting power of the corporation’s or bank’s then outstanding
securities;

or during any period of one (1) year during the term of employment, individuals who at the
beginning of such period constitute the Board of Directors of corporation or bank cease for any reason to
constitute at least a majority thereof, unless the election of each director who was not a director at the
beginning of such period has been approved in advance by directors representing at least two-thirds of the
directors then in office who were directors at the beginning of the period.

Group Term Replacement Plans and Executive Bonus Agreements

The Named Executive Officers will also vest in the Group Term Replacement Plans upon a change of
control as defined above. Upon a termination following a change of control, the Named Executive
Officers will be entitled to an annual bonus under and in an amount provided in the Executive Bonus
Agreement. The Named Executive Officers will also vest in the Group Term Replacement Plans and
Executive Bonus Agreements upon a termination due to disability.

Under the Group Term Replacement Plans and Executive Bonus Agreements, upon the death of the
Named Executive Officer, the beneficiary shall receive the greatest of (1) the cash surrender value of
the life insurance policy, (2) the aggregate premiums paid on the life insurance policy, or (3) the
amount in excess of four times the base annual salary as defined in the agreement. Upon a termination
due to a disability, the Named Executive Officers will be entitled to an annual bonus under and in an
amount provided in the Executive Bonus Agreement.

The Named Executive Officers participating in this plan are subject to a 3 year non-compete provision.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Mr. Shank participates in a supplemental employment retirement plan, whereby on retirement he will
receive an annual benefit of $75,000 commencing on the first day of each month commencing with the
month following his 65 birthday and continuing for 239 months. If a change of controt occurs, he will
receive an annual benefit of $75,000 payable in annua! equal monthly installments for 240 months. If
he dies, the beneficiary shall receive $75,000 annually commencing within 90 days of the Named
Executive Officer’s death and continuing for 240 months.

As of December 31, 2007, if Mr. Shank voluntarily terminates his employment, he will receive an
annual benefit of $11,571. If his employment is terminated because of a disability, he will receive a
monthly benefit of $964.25 for 240 consecutive months.

Pursuant to the plan, Mr. Shank 1s subject to a two year non-compete provision.




Supplemental Insurance Plan

Messrs. Shank and McDowell participate in a Supplemental Insurance Plan which provides for specific
fixed benefits upon retirement after age 65, total disability, and death. The Supplemental Insurance
Plan also allows such Named Executive Officers to defer income which earns interest at ten percent
(10%) and which provides for payments upon retirement after age 65, total disability, and death in an
amount equal to the amount deferred plus the accrued interest.

Disability Plan and Benefits

In the event of the death or disability of a Named Executive Officer, in addition to the benefits listed in
the charts below, each Named Executive Officer will receive benefits under the corporation’s
retirement plans, disability plan or payments under the corporation’s life insurance plan, as appropnate.

Upon any termination, the Named Executive Officer will receive a payment for his unused accrued

vacation days.

Jeff B. Shank

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or change of control of the

corporation for Jeff B. Shank under his Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, Change of Control

Agreement, Supplemental Insurance Plan, Group Term Replacement Plan, and Executive Bonus

Agreement. The chart assumes the triggering events took place on December 31, 2007,

Termination
Involuntary resulting
Not for from a

Voluntary Early Normal Cause For Caus: Change of
Agreement Termination Retirement Retirement | Termination | Termination Control Disability Death
Supplemental
Executive Retitement $120,440 $120,440 $295,359 $120,440 -0- $295,359 $120.440 $780,675
Plan
Change of Control o 0 o nt 0- $536,205 0 0
Agreement
Supplemental $254,176 §254.176 $254.176 $254.176 $254,176 $254176 | $254.176 | $254,176
Insurance Plan:
Group Term 0 0 0- 0- 0- 0- 0. $600,000
Replacement Plan
Exceutive Bomus 0 0 o 0 o $135948 | $135948 | 135048
Agreement
g;;:“"d Vacation $30.167 $30.167 §30,167 $30,167 $30,167 $30,167 $30,167 $30.167
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Franklin T, Klink, Il

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or change of control of the
corporation for Franklin T. Klink, Il under his Change of Control Agreement, Group Term
Replacement Plan, and Executive Bonus Agreement. The chart assumes the triggering events took
place on December 31, 2007.

Terminatio
Involuntary n resulting
Not for from a
Voluntary Early Normal Cause For Cause Change of
Agrecment Termination Retirement Retirement | Termination | Termination Control Disability Death
Change of Control 0- 0- - 0- 0- $191,354 0 0-
Agreement
Group Term £ - £0- 0- 20- 0- 0- $412,000
Replacement Plan
Executive Bonus 0- 0 0- 0- 0- $2.248 $2.248 $2,248
Agreement
ocrued Vacation §7,923 $7,023 $7,923 §7.923 §7.923 $7.923 $7,923 §7.923

John H. McDowell, Sr.

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or change of control of the corporation
for John H. McDowell, Sr. under his Change of Control Agreement, Supplemental [nsurance Plan, Group
Term Replacement Plan, and Executive Bonus Agreement. The chart assumes the triggering events took
place on December 31, 2007.

Termination
Involuntary resufting
Not for Cause from a

Voluntary . Early Normal Termination For Cause Change of
Agreement Termination Retirement | Retirement Termination Control Disability Death
Change of Control o 0 0- 0- 0- $230,963 0- o-
Agreement
Supplemental $113.495 $113.495 $113.493 $113,495 $113.495 $113.495 $113,495 $113,495
Insurance Plan:
Group Term $436,000 $436,000 $436,000 $436.000 -0- $436.000 $436,000 $436,000
Replacement Plan
Executive Bonus $4611 $4.611 $4.611 $4.611 0 $8.573 $8.573 $8,573
Agreement
3;5;““’ Vacation §21.675 $21,675 $21.675 $21.675 $21.675 $21.675 $21.675 $21.675

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

Directors Fees. During 2007, directors received a quarterly retainer of $3,000. The vice chairman of
the board received a quarterly retainer of $4,250 and the chairman of the board received a quarterly
retainer of $5,500. Directors also received $400 for each board meeting they attended. Each director is
permitted 4 absences each year, and will not receive the $400 meeting fee for any meeting missed in
excess of 4 meetings per year. Other than the supplemental insurance plan and Director Fee
Continuation Plan described below, there are no other special arrangements with any directors.

Supplemental Insurance Plan. The bank maintains a Supplemental Insurance Plan for directors
pursuant to which a director may elect to defer receipt of a portion of fees for Board meetings for at
least 4 years or until he reaches age 65, whichever is later. An amount equal to fees waived in addition
to interest at an annual rate of 10% per year will be paid to each participating director or his designated
beneficiary during a period of 10 years after the director reaches age 65. Fees and interest paid by the
bank will be recovered through insurance policies on the lives of participating directors. Funds from
the deferred fees of a participating director will be used to reimburse the bank for the costs of the
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premium for the insurance policies. Messrs. Craig and Hicks are the only current directors
participating in the Supplemental Insurance Plan.

Nonqualified Option Plan for OQutside Directors. The corporation maintains a non-qualified stock
option plan for outside directors. In accordance with the plan, options are granted at the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of grant. All options granted under the plan vest and become
exercisable one (1) year after the date of grant, provided, however, that in the event of death,
retirement, disability or change in control of the corporation or its affiliates all options shall vest
immediately. Each option granted under the plan expires upon the earlier of (i) one hundred and
twenty (120) months following the date of grant, or (ii) one (1) year following the date on which the
outside director ceases to serve in such capacity for any reason other than removal for cause.

Director Fee Continuation Plan. The corporation has assumed agreem.ents under a Director Fee
Continuation Plan with Ms. Carbaugh and Mr. Randall pursuant to its acquisition of FNB Financial
Corporation in 2006. The agreements provide for an annual benefit to the director for ten years
commencing upon termination of their directorship. The directors are one hundred percent (1 00%)
vested in the benefit, but would forfeit the benefits if discharged for cause.

Director Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation paid by the corporation to non-employee directors for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

() {b} © (d) (e) (n 2 {h)

Name Fees Earned or Stock Option Non-Equity Change in Pension Value All Other Total
Paid in Cash Awards Awards Incentive Plan and Nonquelified Compensation (&3]
%) () Comp Deferred Comp Earnings
Partricia A. Carbaugh $23.200 - 1410 - 3.077% - $27.687
James H. Craig, JIr. $23.200 - 5,647 - - - $28.847
Lois E. Easton $23.200 - 5.647 - - - $28.847
Frederic M. Frederick $26.400 - 5.647 -- - - $32,047
Mark E. Gayman $23.200 -- 5.647 -- - -- $28.847
Kermtit G. Hicks $33,200 - 5,647 - - - $38.847
Harry 1. Johnston $23,200 - 1,410 - - - £24.610
Robert L. Pensinger $11,400 - 5,647 - - - $17.047
Tetry L. Randall $23.200 - 1410 - 2461 ¢ - $2707

() Reflects the dollar amount of expense recognized for financial statement repcrting purposes for the fiscal year

ended December 31, 2007 in accordance with FAS 123(R) of stock options granted under the non-qualified stock
option plan on January 10, 2007. As of December 3, 2007, each director has the following number of options
outstanding: Dr. Craig: 7,208, Ms. Easton: 7,208, Mr. Frederick: 2,773, Mr. Gayman: 2,773, Mr. Hicks: 7,208, Mr.
Pensinger: 7,208, Ms. Carbaugh: 160, Dr. Johnston: 160, and Mr. Randall: 130,

The amounts reflect the actuarial increase in the present value of the dircector’s benefits under the non-qualified Director
Fee Continuation Plan.

(2

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION
Jeff B. Shank, President and Chief Executive Officer of the corporation, is a member of the Board of

Directors. Mr. Shank makes recommendations to the Compensation Committee regarding
compensation for employees. Mr. Shank does not participate in conducting his own review,
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised of directors who meet the NASDAQ
standards for independence. The Audit Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of
Directors, which was revised in October 2004 and most recently reviewed in November 2007 and was
attached to the 2007 proxy statement as Appendix A.

The Audit Committee met with management periodically during the year to consider the adequacy of
the corporation’s internal controls and the objectivity of its financial reporting. The Audit Committee
discussed these matters with the corporation’s independent auditors and with appropriate corporation
financial personnel and internal auditors. The Audit Committee also discussed with the corporation’s
senior management and independent auditors the process used for certifications by the corporation’s
chief executive officer and chief financial officer which are required for certain of the corporation’s
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee met privately at its regular meeting with both the independent accountants and
the internal auditors, as well as with the President, Executive Vice President and Treasurer, on a
number of occasions, each of whom has unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee appointed Smith, Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC as the independent
accountants for the corporation after reviewing the firm’s performance and independence from
management.

Management has primary responsibility for the corporation’s financial statements and the overall
reporting process, including the corporation’s system of internal controls.

The independent accountants audited the annual financial statements prepared by management,
expressed an opinion as to whether those financial statements fairly present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the corporation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and discussed with the Audit Committee any issues they believe should be raised
with the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviewed with management and Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC, the
corporation’s independent accountants, the corporation’s audited financial statements prior to issuance.
Management has represented, and Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC has confirmed, to the Audit
Committee, that the financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Audit Committee received from and discussed with Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC the
written disclosure and the letter required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1.
(Independence Discussions with Audit Committees) and has discussed Smith Elliott Kearns &
Company, LLC’s independence with its representatives. These items relate to that firm’s independence
from the corporation. The Audit Committee also discussed with Smith Elliott Kearns & Company,
LLC matters required to be discussed by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing
Standard AU Section 380, “communication with Audit Committees,” and Rule 2-07 of Regulation S-X
promulgated by the SEC, as modified or supplemented. The Audit Committee monitored the
accountant’s independence, reviewed audit and non-audit services performed by Smith Elliott Kearns
& Company, LL.C and discussed with the accountants their independence.
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In reliance on these reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to
the Board of Directors that the corporation’s audited financial statements be included in the
corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, for filing
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee and the Board have also
recommended, subject to shareholder ratification, the selection of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company,
LLC, as the corporation’s independent accountants for the year.

Aggregate fees billed to the corporation by Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC for services
rendered are presented below:

Year Ended December 31 2007 2006
Audit Fees $67,900 $81,575
Audit Related Fees 2,717 11,265
Tax Fees 9,257 £,315
All Other Fees 0 0

Audit Fees include fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of annual financial
statement and fees billed for the review of financial statements included in the corporation’s Forms
10-Q and 10-K or services that are normally provided by Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

Audit Related Fees include fees billed for assurance and related services by Smith Elliott Kearns &
Company, LLC that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the
corporation’s financial statements and are not reported under the Audit Fees section of the table above.
These include fees for services related to merger consulting and due dilizence.

Tax Fees include fees billed for professional services rendered by Smith Elliott Kearns & Company,
LLC for tax compliance, tax advice, tax planning. These services include preparation of federal and
state tax returns.

All Other Fees include fees billed for products and services provided by Smith Elliott Kearns &
Company, LLC, other than the services reported under the Audit Fees, Audit Related Fees, or Tax Fees
sections of the table above. These include fees for services related to thz bank’s employee benefit
programs.

The Audit Committee has considered whether, and determined that, the provision of the non-audit
services is compatible with maintaining Smith Elliott Kearns & Company’s independence.

Audit Committee

James H. Craig, Jr. Lois E. Easton Mark E. Gayman
Kermit G. Hicks Patricia A. Carbaugh Terry L. Randall
Harry D. Johnston
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

With the exceptions noted below, there have been no material transactions between the corporation and
the bank, nor any material transactions proposed, with any director or executive officer of the
corporation and the bank, or any associate of any of the foregoing persons. The corporation and the
bank have had and intend to continue to have banking and financial transactions in the ordinary course
of business with directors and executive officers of the corporation and the bank and their associates on
substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with other customers. Total loans outstanding from the bank at December 31,
2007, to the corporation's and bank's officers and directors as a group and members of their immediate
families and companies in which they had an ownership interest of 10% or more was $4,300,000 or
approximately 5.5% of total equity capital. These loans do not involve more than the normal risk of
collectibility or present other unfavorable features.

Prior to any business dealings with directors or executive officers, the board reviews and discusses any
such transaction without the presence of the director or executive officer.

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION
The following table sets forth selected information, as of February 13, 2008, about the principal

officers of the corporation, each of whom is elected by the Board of Directors and each of whom holds
office at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Bank Employee Number Of Shares Age as of
Name and Office Held Held Since Since Beneficially Owned February i3, 2008
Kermit G. Hicks 1983 (1) 35,278 72
Chairman of the Board
Jeff B. Shank 1991 1976 29,283 52
President and Chief Executive Officer
John H. McDowell, Sr. 1986 1977 17,265 58
Executive Vice President/Secretary
Franklin T. Klink, {11 2001 2001 5,245 52

Vice President/Treasurer

(1) Mr. Hicks is not an employee of the bank.

Each of the principal officers of the corporation has been employed as an officer or employee of the bank for
more than 5 years.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the corporation's officers and directors,
and persons who own more than 10% of the registered class of the corporation's equity securities, to
file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Officers, directors, and greater than 10% shareholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the
corporation with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

The corporation believes that during the period January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007, its
officers and directors were in compliance with all filing requirements applicable to them, except for
eleven reports each relating to one late transaction by each director and the two named executive
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officers. The transactions related to options granted to officers and directors on January 10, 2007
which were reported on Forms 5 filed on January 28, 2008. Also, three late reports each relating to one
transaction by each named executive officer related to ESOP shares allocated in 2007 for the named
executive officers which were reported on three Forms 5 filed on February 14, 2008. Mr. Hicks filed
one late Form 4 on one transaction reported in 2007,

RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Unless instructed to the contrary, the proxyholders intend to vote all proxies for the ratification of the
selection of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC as the corporation's independent accountants for its
2008 fiscal year. Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC has advised the corporation that none of its
members have any financial interest in the corporation. Ratification of Smith Elliott Kearns &
Company, LLC will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of common stock
represented in person or by proxy at the meeting. Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC served as the
corporation's independent public accountants for the 2007 fiscal year. In addition to performing
customary audit services, Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC assisted the corporation and the bank
with the preparation of their federal and state tax returns, and provided assistance in connection with
regulatory matters, charging the corporation for such services at its customary hourly billing rates.
These non-audit services were approved by the Board of Directors prior to the rendering of such
services after due consideration of the effect of the performance thereof on the independence of the
accountants. The corporation's Board of Directors approved these services and reviewed the nature and
expense associated with the services. The Board concluded that there was no effect on the
independence of the accountants.

In the event that the shareholders do not ratify the selection of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC
as the corporation's independent accountants for the 2008 fiscal year, another accounting firm may be
chosen to provide independent audit services for the 2008 fiscal year. The Board of Directors
recommends that the shareholders vote FOR the ratification of the selection of Smith Elliott Kearns &
Company, LLC as the independent accountants for the corporation for the year ending December 31,
2008.

ANNUAL REPORT

The corporation encloses a copy of the corporation’s 10-K for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2007,
with this proxy statement. A representative of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC, the accounting
firm that examined the financial statements in the annual report, will attend the annual meeting. The
representative of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC will have the opportunity to make a statement,
if he desires to do so, and will be available to respond to any appropriate questions presented by
shareholders at the meeting.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Any shareholder who, in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the proxy rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, wishes to submit a proposal for inclusion in the corporation's
proxy statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must deliver the proposal in writing to
the President of Tower Bancorp, Inc. at the principal executive offices at Center Square, Greencastle,
Pennsylvania, not later than Wednesday, November 12, 2008.
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OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors does not know of any matters to be presented for consideration other than the
matters described in this proxy statement, but if any matters are properly presented, the proxyholders
intend to vote on such matters in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Upon written request of any shareholder, a copy of the corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, including the financial statements and the schedules

thereto, required to be filed with the SEC, may be obtained, without charge, from Franklin T. Klink,
111, Treasurer, Tower Bancorp, Inc., P.O. Box 8, Center Square, Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225,
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To Our Shareholders M

Dear Shareholder:

We are pleased to present the 2007 Annual Report for Tower Bancorp Inc.

This past year presented many challenges for the financial industry. Interest rates were volatile and
lacked direction, our economy showed weaknesses in many sectors, and the sub-prime lending
debacle created problems across the banking spectrum. Even though many banks like ours were not
involved in those activities, we [elt the ripple effect in our stock price and the demand for our loan
and deposit services.

Given the economic instability last year, we are very gratified that Tower remained a solid performer
throughout 2007. Net Income increased 15% to $7,037,000 or $3.00 per share. Total assets grew to
$561,636,000 and loans and deposits increased $7,816,000 and $30,095,000 respectively. Our
consistent performance is illustrated in our 5 year performance summary found on the next page.

Regular cash dividends were again raised by 8% in 2007 and have shown continued improvement
every year since 1991. Regular cash dividends paid to shareholders amounted 10 $2.5 million or
$1.06 per share; the highest ever.

In 2007 we broke ground for our new Mercersburg office, laid the groundwork to remodel the
Hancock office, and entered into a new lease agreement to move our Chambersburg office to a much
larger and more convenient location on Gateway Avenue. Renovating our current branch offices will
allow for additional growth and penetration in these markets.

We were all saddened by the loss of our fellow director and friend, Robert “Red” Pensinger. Red’s
local roots and business acumen played a major role in Tower’s successes and vision over the years.
Red’s guidance and fellowship are missed.

On behalf of our valued employees, directors and management team, we thank you for your
confidence and support during 2007. Enhancing our franchise value will continue to be our focus as
we move forward in the years to come.

Sincerely,

% s Al /é’“ S ke
Jell B. Shank Kermit G. Hicks

President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board

www.fnbgc.com [ |




Tower Bancorp Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary

SELECTED FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL DATA

Income (000 omitted) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 l
|
Interest income $ 33,363 25,799 $ 16,494 % 14,126 $ 14350 !
Interest expense 14,010 9,873 5,152 4,011 4,267 l
Provision for loan losses 600 360 270 360 360 |
Net interest income alter provision for loan losses 18,753 15,566 11,072 9,755 9,723 l
Other operating income 6,711 7,324 4,802 4,591 4,805 |
Other operating expenses 16,096 14,040 8,815 7,934 7,756 l
Income before income taxes 0,368 8,850 7,059 6,412 6,772
Applicable income tax 2,331 2718 2,027 1,689 1,821 !
Net income $7.037 $6,132  $ 5032 % 4723 § 4951 :

Per share amounts are based on the following weighted average shares outsianding,

!

2007 - 2,345,286 2005 - 1,727,055 2003 - 1,733,477 I

2006 - 2,103,487 2004 - 1,727 856 }

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 :
Net income $3.00 $ 292 $ 291 $ 273 % 286
Cash dividend 1.06 .74 92 1.34 1.26
Book value 33.43 38.78 28.02 25.51 23.33
Tangible book value 25.52 20.92 28.02 25.51 23.33
Total cash dividends paid 2,489 2,016 2,417 1417 2,149

Year-End Balance Sheet Figures

(000 omitted) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Total assets $ 561,636 $542,i67 $352,223 $ 316,890 $ 300,738
Net loans 394,625 386,809 227,179 227,567 212,203
Total investment securities 86,760 00,754 85,334 65,729 66,295
Total deposits 439,830 409,835 261,178 230,290 206,965
Total stockholders’ equity 78,414 81,553 48,389 44,071 40,438
Total tangible equity 59,862 62,924 48,389 44,071 40,438
Ratios

Average equily/average assels 14.79 14.80 13.85 13.76 13.01
Average tangible equity/average assets 11.54 12.74 13.85 13.76 13.01
Return on average equity 8.35 9.06 10.90 11.24 14.46
Return on average tangible equity 10.70 10.52 10.90 11.24 14.46
Return on average assets 1.24 1.34 1.51 1.55 1.80
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B Dedication and Commitment

Tower Bancorp Inc.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Mission
It is our primary intent to maintain our status as an independent corporate entity and to conduct our
business through our elected Board of Directors; our business purpose is 1o provide a broad range of
financial services through the establishment of community banking centers; these financial services will be
tailored to the customers served and will be as flexible as possible within the constraints of profitability
and regulatory compliance; the community offices will be established within our market area in
communities where our organization can make a positive contribution, and where our investment will
produce an acceptable return to our shareholders.

Jeff B. Shank Kermit G. Hicks Frederic M. Frederick

President and CEQ Chairman of the Board Vice Chairman of the Board
of the Corporation and Bank Hicks Cheverolet, Inc. Partner in engineering firm of

Frederick, Seibert & Associates, Inc.

Patricia A, Carbaugh James H. Craig, Jr. Lois E. Easton
Administrative Assistant Retired Dentist Retired Marketing Manager
John L. Grove Medical Center of the Bank

Mark E. Gayman Harry D. Johnston Terry L. Randall

Owner ol Gaymere Farms Physician President and CEQ
of Mellout Enterprises, Inc.
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Board of Associates

Carl Amsley

Joseph S. Antoon
Donald R. Bard
Michael E Bard
Tamela Mellott Bard
Dr. Evon Barvinchack
Barry A. Best

Keith D. Clugston
Don Coldsmith

Brett A. Cornelius
H.J. Culler

John J. Culler

Henry Warren Daniels
H. Lyle Duffey
Charles Eckstine
Barry N. Elliou

Bob Evans

Patty Suders Fix

Ivan Fortney, Jr.
Grant K. Gayman
Harold C. Gayman
Garon Gembe
Melinda Golden
Richard C. Grosh
Carl P. Hartman

M. Eugene Hawbaker

Verla J. Hill

Marvin D. Hissong
C. Gregory Hoover
David R. Hoover, 1I
Carolyn Horst
Harry P. Johnston
Roger W. Johnston
Michael A. Jones, Sr.
Bonnie C.M. Keefer
Myers D. Kimmel
Betty J. Lehman
David K. Leidy

H. David Logan III
Paul B. MacDonald
Waldo B. Marshall 11
Michael G. Maun
Lynn Y. MacBride
Paul McClain
Timothy R. McGarvey
Eugene R. Mellott
Ralph C. Michael
Marvin Miller
Laurie A. Myers
Fred Oaks

Jean Oliver

John J. Oa

Jeffrey M. Our, VMD
Helen 1. Overly

Lonnie W, Palmer

Scott A. Palmer

Dr. Pascual N. Patalinghug
James E Purnell

David Quirple

Dennis G. Richards
Richard E. Rockwell
James M. Schall

Violet Schmid

Jason L. Shives

Harold E. Showalter
Kenneth T. Shreve

Dale L. Stayman

Nelson E. Stayman
Steven E. Swadley

Dr. Joseph K. Thornton
D. Andrew Washabaugh, 111
David A. Washabaugh, 1V
Warren E. Weaver

J. Edgar Wine

Gary L. Zeger

H. Martin Zimmerman, Jr.

Board of Associates [l

| We are saddened by the loss of our friend and former Director Emeritus, Paul “Des” T. Ott, whose
guidance and leadership helped build our organization to what it is today. We will always think of
Des as a gentleman, leader, as well as friend and his memory will forever live with those of us
who knew him.

I
‘ Ve
.

. - U S
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B Personnel

OFFICERS OF THE BANK
Jeff B. Shank,
President/CEOQ
John H. McDowell, Sr.,
EVP/COO
Franklin T. Klink, III
SVPICFO
Teresa Barbuzanes,
Loan Officer
H. Wayne Bartholow,
Compliance Officer
Duane E. Bock,
Retail Loan Manager
Diane Cordell,
Trust Operations Officer
Thomas Deshong,
Security Officer
Vicki Fahrney
Loan Underwriter
Cheryl Gehr, Electronic
Banking Manager
Brenda Gordon,
Compliance Officer
Pamela Johns,
Operations Manager
Cynthia Marconi
Call Center and
Training Manager
lvan Miller, Information
Technology Officer
Robert Moser,
Commercial Loan Manager
R. Jeffrey Nicklas,
Loan Officer
Michael ]J. Russo,
Loan Review Qfficer
Sharon Scanlon
Credit Adm. Manager
Kay Stottlemyer,
Controller
Julie M. Tarquino,
Marketing Manager
Diana L. Traver,
Human Resource Manager
Michael Williams,
Senior Trust Officer
Linda Zendt
Branch Administrator

Business Development
Kim Shockey,
Sales & Business
Development Manager
Carl Galligan,
Business Development Officer
D. Andrew Washabaugh i1,
Business Development Officer

Financial Consultant
Lee Springer

B s

Bank Staff -
Greencastle Office
Sara Hollinshead,
Office Manager
Heather Angle
Larry Angle
Contrina Armstrong
Darlene Bakner
Carol Barnes
Edward Blaszczyk
Carol Bowers
Teresa Brown
Emmanuela Bruner
Carol Christophel
Linda Clippinger
Karen Creek
Danielle Egolf
Linda Eiker
Lawrence Forsythe
Christina Frederickson
Cheryl Fry
Denise Garnes
Stephanie Gearhart
Cheryl Gordon
Emily Grimes
Beth Harbaugh
Dianna Heim
Tracy Helfrick
Anita Henry
Vicki Henry
Crystal Hensley
Alma Hoffman
Dale Hostetter
Milissa Hunsecker
Katie Hulzell
Betty Kephan
Gloria Kimmel
Sherry Kinsey
Heidi Lautenslager
Pamela Luchs
Sandra Martin
Tina Maithews
Spreng Mclntire
Michelle Miller
Erin Mong
Jennifer Murray
Stephanie Myers
Sue Myers
Michelle Noel
Gregory Oberholzer
Beverly Parsons
Samuel Phillips
Pamela Pond
Cynthia Poper
Lori Powell
Barbara Rendel

Nancy Rice

Tina Richards
Carol Rockwell
Kim Sellers
Mary Lou Siesky
Rosalind Simonetti
Dianne Smith
April Snyder
Lisa Timmons
Lori Walters
Kelly Welsh
Michele Wolll
Pauline Yohn

Chambersburg Cffice
Heather Buits
Deborah Gearhart

Eastern Boulevard Office
Madonna Beverlin
Loan Officer
Rebecca Davey
Jeffrey Harshman
Diane Wallech

Express Center

Doris Ageson
Charlene Briggs
Emilee Chafardon
Cathy Gordon
Destiny Hoffman

Fort Loudon Office
Florine Chilcote
Clyde Johnson
Shirley Jones
Tammy Kelly

Hancock Office
Angela Hager,
Office Manager
Mary Barnhart
Joyce DeLuca
Bonnie Fields
Marleen Golden
Melva Moore
M. Fran Stotler

Laurich Estates Qffice

Stephen Cramer,
Office Manager

Laura Hess

Tina Rummel

Lincoln Way East Office
Deborah Scalia,
Office Manager
Alisse Bailey
Lianne Garner
Julie Hovis
Linda Raygor
Laura Stevens

Maugans Avenue Office
Tracy Burger,
Office Manager
Linda S. Warren,
Loan Officer
Amy Grove
Kathleen Kuchera
Kristin Lindsay
Karen Wilson

McConnellsburg Office
Connie Burgan,
Regional Branch Manager
Sidney Stambaugh,
Loan Officer
Richard Strait,
Loan Officer
Robert Wible
Loan Officer
Katrina Black
Cathy Cline
Kaitlin Daniels
Lisa Daniels
Bobbi Fleming
Karen Gordon
Susan Mellott
Trudy Morton
Carole Palmer
Karla Shadle
Jessica Sponsler
Jessica Weaver
Carol Wright

Mercersburg Office
Amy Hissong,
Office Manager
Julie Barthalow
Ron Burhanan
Brenda Carbaugh
Angela Heefner
Stacy Seville
Maureen Zahor

Needmore Office
Joyce Henry,

Office Manager
Shirley Harris
Tina Poole

Nicole Shives

Quincy Office

Carol Smetzer,
Office Manager

Deb LaPlante

Susan McFerren

Margaret Moore

Rowzerville Office
Laurie Henson
Sarah Martin
Sandra Walker

Shady Grove Cffice

Paulette Thomas,
Asst. Office Manager

Kathy Fittro

Edith Myers

Katie Myers

Jessica Williamson

Waynesboro Office
Joyce Benedict,

Office Manager
Kelly Daugherty,

Loan Officer/

Asst. Office Manager
Todd Wolll,

Loan Officer
Sherry Crouse
Rebecca Harbaugh
Danielle Hawbaker
Andrea Morrow
Carole Prohaska
Tracey Souders
Orea Stoops
Carol Swart
Donna Wagaman
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Market Makers

Ferris, Baker Watts, Inc.
113 South Potomac Street
Hagerstown, MD 21740
(800) 344-4413

(301) 791-5763 fax

Hill Thompson Securities
15 Exchange Place
Jersey City, NJ 07302
(201} 369-2900

(201) 434-1892 fax

Boenning & Scautergood, Inc.

4 Tower Bridge - Suite 300

200 Barr Harbor Drive

West Conshohocken, PA 19428
(800) 842-8928

(610) 862-0300 fax

Transfer Agents and Registrars

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, NJ 07016-3572
Investor Relations

{800) 368-5948

Shareholder Information

Meonroe Securities

100 N. Riverside Plaza, Ste. 1620
Chicago, IL 60606

(312) 327-2530

(312) 327-2540 fax

Koonce Securities, Inc.

6550 Rock Spring Drive - Suite 600
Bethesda, MD 20817

{800} 368-2806

{301) 897-9794 fax

Auditors

Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC
804 Wayne Avenue

Chambersburg, PA 17201

(717) 263-3910

(717) 263-1787 fax

Tower Bancorp Inc. stock is traded and quoted under the symbol TOBC.

www.fnbgc.com
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M 1ocations

Franklin
County, PA

Fifth

30

McConnelisburg Avenue
Ft. Loudon
Fulton W *
30 Laurich
COllrltY, PA EX Center Estates
521
*Needmore

Mercelsburg 15 shady Grove

Greencas
Waynesbom *Rouz ille

Washington  avere

County, MD

Mercershurg
. 11906 Buchanan Trail W
Frantdin County, PA Mercersburg, PA 17236
Phone: (717) 328-2646
Greencaste ATM Available
40 Center 5q.
Greencastle, PA 17225 {Quincy
Phone: (717) 597-2137 7357 Anthony Highway

Eastern

“ W

Boulevard

ATM Available Waynesboro, PA 17268
Phone: (717) 749-3136
Fith Avenue (Walkin Only} ATM Available ATM Only
785 Filth Ave.
Chambersburg, PA 17201 Shary Grove Needmere Fufton County Medical Center
Phone: (717) 263-6464 1574 Buchanan Trail E. 8264 Great Cove Rd. 214 Peach Orchard Road

Greencastle, PA 17225

Necdmore, PA 17238

McConnellsburg, PA 17233

Fort Loudon Phone: (717) 597-7188 Phone: {717) 573-2227
130 Mullen St. ATM Available ATM Available Greencastle Sunnyway Foods
Fort Loudon, PA 17224 212 North Antrim Way
Phone: (717) 369-3312 Wayneshoro , Greencastle, PA 17225
232 E. Main St Washington County, MD
Laurich Estates Wayneshoro, PA 17268 Hancock Shopping Center
4136 Lincoln Way W, Phone: (717) 765-4636 tastem Boulevard 343 N. Pennsylvania Ave.
Chambersburg, FA 17201 ATM Available 1101 Prolessional Ct. " Hancock, MD 21750
Phone: (717) 3694811 Hagerstown, MD 21740
ATM Available Phane: (301) 393-8595 Penn State Mont Alto Campus
Fulton County, PA ATM Available Book Store Building
Lincatn Way East 1 Campus Drive
2001 Lincoln Way E. Express Center (Orive-n Only) Hancock Office Mont Ao, PA 17237

Chambersburg, PA 17201
Phone: (717) 262-2424

187 Buchanan Trail W
McConnellsburg, PA 17233

131 West Main St.
Hancock, MD 21750

Quincy Retirement Community Center

ATM Available ATM Available Phene: (301) 678-5652 Minnich Manor
6596 Orphanage Road
Rowzervile McConnellshurg Maugzans Avenue Quincy, PA 17247

11050 Buchanan Trail E.
Wayneshoro, PA 17268

Phone: (717) 762-4488

ATM Available

101 Lincoln Way W,
McConnellsburg, PA 17233
Phene: (717) 485-3123
ATM Available

18233 Maugans Ave.
Hagerstown, MD 21740
Phene: (240) 420-8535
ATM Available

Washington County Regional Airport

18434 Showalter Rd.
Hagerstown, MD 21740
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CCMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT CF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007

Commission file number: 0-1282¢

TOWER BANCORP, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Pennsylvania Ma‘\ﬁ cessing 25-1445946
{(State or other jurisdiction of T geetion (I.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or organization) Identification No.}

Center Square, Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225
{Address of principal executive offices) Wash\ngto“» nc (Zip Code}
Registrant's telephone number, including ﬂ@m

area code: (717) 587-2137

Securities registered pursuant to 3Section 12 (b} of the Act:
None

Securities registered pursuant t¢ Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of each class

Common Stock, nc Par Value The Common Stock is not
registered on any exchange.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well known seasoned issuer, as defined in
Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes | ] No [ X ]

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file report pursueant to
Secticn 13 or 15(d) of the Act. Yes [ ] No [ X 1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be
filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes
[ X 1 No [ ]

Indicate by check mark 1if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of
Regulation S-K 1is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of
Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an
accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See
definition of “accelerated filer, large accelerated filer, and smaller reporting company”
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one)

Large accelerated filer [ 1 Accelerated filer [ X ] Neon-accelerated filer [ ]

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller Reporting Company [ ]

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule, 12b-2
of the Exchange Act}. Yes [ 1 No [ X 1]

As of June 30, 2007, 2,342,170 shares of the registrant's common stock were outstanding.
The aggregate market wvalue of such shares held by nonaffiliates on that date was
$ 91,411,000. As of December 31, 2007, there were 2,322,426 shares outstanding.




DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the annual shareholders report for the year ended December 31, 2007 are
incorporated by reference into Parts I and II. Portions c¢f the Proxy Statement for the
2008 Annual Meeting of Security Holders are incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K.
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Item 1. Business.

History and Business

Tower Bancorp, Inc. ("Tower" or “the Corporation”) is a bank holding company
registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. Tower was organized
on Qctober 12, 1983, under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the purpose
of acquiring The First National Bank of Greencastle, Greencastle, Pennsylvania ("First")
and such other banks and bank related activities as are permitted by law and desirable.

On June 1, 1984, Tower acquired 100% ownership of The First National Bank of Greencastle,

issuing 159,753 shares of Tower's common stock to the former First shareholders. On
June 1, 20086, Tower completed the acquisition of FNB Financial Corporation,
McConnellsburg, Pennsylvania. FNB Financial Corporation was merged inte Tower Bancorp,

Inc. whereby FNB Financial Corporation's wholly-owned subsidiary, the First National Bank
of McConnellsburg became the wholly-owned subsidiary of Tower. This transaction was
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141 "Business Combinations™. In the merger,
FNB sharehclders received either 0.8663 shares of Tower common stock for each share of
FNB common stock or § 39.0C in cash for each share held, depending on shareholder
elections and subject to the allocation provisions of the Merger Agreement. FNB
Financial Corporation's shareholders received an aggregate of 640,381 shares of Tower's
common stock and $ 2.363 million in cash in exchange for all outstanding common shares,
On August 26, 2006, The First National Bank of McConnellsburg was merged with and into

The First Naticonal Bank of Greencastle.

The Corporation files periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commissiocn (SEC) in the form of 10-Qfs - cuarterly reports; 10-K - annual report; annual
proxy statements and Form 8-K for any significant events that may arise during the year.
Copies of the Corporation’s filings may be obtained free of charge through the SEC’s
internet site at www.sec.gov. The Corporation’s annual report on Form 10-K can also be
obtained free of charge by accessing the Corporation’s website at www.fnbgc.com. Copies
of the Corpeoration’s £filings are also available to be read and copied at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street N. W., Washington, DC 20549. Information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Tower's primary activity consists of owning and supervising its subsidiary,
The First National Bank of Greencastle, which is engaged in providing banking and bank
related services in South Central Pennsylvania, principally Franklin County, where its
sixteen Dbranches are located in Quincy, Shady Grove, Waynesboro, Mercersburg,
Chambersburg (2), Laurich, Rouzerville, McConnellsburg (2), Needmore, and Fort Loudon,
Pennsylvania, Hancock and Hagerstown, Maryland (2), as well as its main coffice in
Greencastle, Pennsylvania. The day-to-day management of First is conducted by the

subsidiary's officers. Tower derives the majority of its current income from First.




Tower has no employees other than its three cofficers who are also employees
of First, its subsidiary. On December 31, 2007, First had 156 full-time and 27 part-time

employees.

Tower contemplates that in the future it will evaluate and may acquire, or
may cause its subsidiaries to acquire, other banks. Tower alsc may seek to enter
businesses closely related to banking or to acquire existing companies already engaged in
such activities. Any acquisition by Tower will require prior approval of the Becard of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the Pennsylvania Department of Banking, and, in

some instances, other regulatory agencies and its shareholders.

Business of First

First was organized as a national bank in 1983 as part of an agreement and
plan of merger between Tower and The First National Bank of Greencastle, the predecessor
of First, under which First became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tower. As indicated,
First is the successor to The First National Bank of Greencastle which was originally

organized in 1864.

First is engaged in commercial Ppanking as authorized by the National Bank
Act. This invelves accepting demand, time and savings deposits and granting loans
(consumer, commercial, real estate, business) to individuals, corpcrations, partnerships,

associations, municipalities and other governmental bodies.

First grants agribusiness, commercial, and residential loans to customers
throughout the Cumberland Valley area; Franklin and Fulton Counties, Pennsylvania; and
Washington County, Maryland. It maintains a diversified loan portfolio and evaluates
each customer’s c¢redit-werthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of c¢ocllateral
obtained, if deemed necessary upon the extension of credit, is based on management’s
credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but generally includes
equipment and real estate. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth on

the face of the balance sheet (page 6 of the Annual Report to Shareholders).

In 2000, First entered into an affiliation agreement with Sentry Trust
Company, a Pennsylvania Limited Purpose Bank, ("Sentry") whereby Sentry acquired from
First the right to service the trust accounts of First. Through this affiliation
agreement, trust and other financial services were provided to First’s customers by
Sentry. 1In 2006, First reacquired from Sentry the right to service the trust accounts of

First. First reestablished a Trust Department in the third quarter of 2006.

As of December 31, 2007, First had total assets of approximately $ 532
million, total shareholders' equity of approximately $ 63 million and total deposits of

approximately $ 440 million.




Regulation and Supervision

Tower 1is a bank holding company within the meaning of the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956 (“BHC Act”), and is registered as such with the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System (“FRB”). As a3 registered bank holding company, the parent
company 1is required to file with the FRB certain reports and informatien. Tower is also
subject to examination by the FRB and is restricted in its acquisiticons, certain of which
are subject to approval by the FRB. In addition, the parent company would be reguired to
obtain the approval of the Pennsylvania State Banking Department in order for it to

acquire certain bank and nonbank subsidiaries.

Under the BHC Act, a bank holding company is, with limited exceptions,
prohibited from (i) acquiring direct cor indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of
the voting shares of any company which is noct a bank or (ii} engaging in any activity
other than managing or controlling banks. With the prior approval of the FRB, however, &
bank holding company may o¢wn shares of a company engaged in activities which the FRB
determines to be so closely related to banking or managing or contrelling banks as to be
a proper incident thereto. In addition, federal law imposes certain restrictions on
transactions between Tower and its subsidiary, First. As an affiliate of First, Tower is
subject, with certain exceptions, to provisions of federal law imposing limitations on,

and requiring collateral for, extensions of credit by First to its affiliates.

The operations of First are subject to federal and state statutes applicable
to banks chartered under the banking laws of the United States, to members of the Federal
Reserve System and to banks whose deposits are insured by the Federal Depecsit Insurance
Corporation. Bank operations are also subject to regulations of the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal Reserve Beoard and the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation.

The primary supervisory authority of First is the Office ¢f the Comptroller
of the Currency (™0CC”), who regularly examines such areas as reserves, loans,
investments, management practices and other aspects of bank operations. These

examinations are designed primarily for the protection of First’s depositors.

Federal and state banking laws and regulations govern, among other things,
the scope of a bank's business, the investments a bank may make, the reserves against
deposits a bank must maintain, the loans a bank makes and collateral it takes, the
maximum interest rates a bank may pay on deposits, the activities of a bank with respect
to mergers and consclidations, and the establishment of branches, and management
practices and other aspects of banking operations. See Note 20 of the Notes to Financial
Statements (Exhibit 13) for a discussion of the limitations on the availability of
Tower's subsidiary's undistributed earnings for the payment of dividends due to such

regulation and other reascons.




The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989
("FIRREA") provides among other things that a £financial institution insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) sharing common ownership with a failed
institution can be required teo indemnify the FDIC for its losses resulting from the
insolvency of the failed institution, even if such indemnification causes the affiliated
institution also to become insolvent. Tower currently has only one subsidiary insured by
the FDIC and as a result has not been significantly affected by the aforementioned

provisions of FIRREA.

The OCC issued guidelines which, effective December 31, 1990, imposed upon
national banks risk-based capital and leverage standards. These capital requirements of
bank regulators are discussed in Note 20 of the notes to financial statements. Failure
to meet applicable capital guidelines could subject a national bank te a wvariety of
enforcement remedies available to the federal regulatory authorities. Depending upon
circumstances, the requlatory agencies may require an institution to surpass minimum

capital ratios established by the OCC and the FRB.

In December 1991, the Federal Depesit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act
of 1991 ("FDICIA"™) was enacted. FDICIA contains provisions limiting activities and
business methods of depository institutions. FDICIA requires the primary federal banking
regulators to promulgate regulations setting forth standards relating to, among other
things, internal contrels and audit systems; credit underwriting and leoan documentation;
interest rate exposure and other off-balance sheet assets and liabilities; and
compensation of directors and officers. FDICIA also provides for expanded regulation of
depository institutions and their affiliates, including parent holding companies, by such
institutions' primary federal banking requlator. Each primary federal banking regulator
is required to specify, by regulation, capital standards for measuring the capital
adequacy of the depository institutions it supervises and, depending upon the extent to
which a depository institution does not meet such capital adequacy measures, the primary
federal banking regulator may prohibit such institution from paying dividends or may

require such institution to take other steps to become adequately capitalized.

FDICIA establishes five capital tiers, ranging from “well capitalized”, to
“critically undercapitalized”. A depository institution is well capitalized if it
significantly exceeds the minimum level required by requlation for each relevant capital
measure. Under FDICIA, an institution that is not well capitalized is generally
prohibited from accepting brokered deposits and offering interest rates on deposits
higher than the prevailing rate in its market; in addition, ™“pass through” insurance
coverage may not be available for certain employee benefit accounts. FDICIA also
requires an undercapitalized depository institution to submit an acceptable capital
restoration plan to the appropriate federal bank regulatory agency. One requisite
element of such a plan is that the institution’s parent holding company must guarantee

compliance by the institution with the plan, subject to certain limitations. In the




event of the parent holding company’s bankruptcy, the guarantee, and any other

commitments that the parent holding company has made to federal bank regulators to
maintain the capital of its depository institution subsidiaries, would be assumed by the

bankruptcy trustee and entitled to priority in payment.

Based on their respective regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2007, the
Bank is considered well capitalized, hased on the definitions in the regulations issued
by the Federal Reserve Board and the other federal bank regulatory agencies setting forth
the general capital requirements mandated by FDICIA. See ™“Capital Funds” in management’s

discussion and analysis in Tower’s annual report as shown in Exhibit 13.

A federal depositor preference statute was enacted in 1983 providing that
deposits and certain claims for administrative expenses and employee compensation against
an insured depository institution would be afforded a priority over other general claims
against such an institution, including federal funds and 1letters of credit, in the

“liquidation or other resoclution” of such an institution by any receiver.

Other Federal Laws and Regulations

Cur operations are subject to additional federal laws and regqulations

applicable to financial institutions, including, without limitation:

¢ Privacy provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and related regulations,
which require us to maintain privacy policies intended to safeguard
customer financial informatien, to disclose the pelicies to our customers
and to allow customers to “opt out” o¢f having their financial service
providers disclose their confidential financial information to non-
affiliated third parties, subject to certain exceptions;

* Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain
confidentiality of consumer financial records and prescribes procedures
for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records;

* Consumer protection rules for the sale of insurance products by depository
institutions, adopted pursuant to the requirements of the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act; and

¢ [USA Patriot Act, which requires financial institutions to take certain
actions to help prevent, detect and prosecute international money
laundering and the financing of terrorism.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

On July 30, 2002, President Bush signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act represents a comprehensive revision of laws affecting
corporate governance, accounting obligations and corporate reporting. The Sarbanes-Oxley
Bct is applicable to all companies with equity securities registered or that file reports
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In particular, the Sarbanres-0Oxley Act
establishes: (i} new requirements for audit committees, including independence,

expertise, and responsibilities; (ii} additional responsibilities regarding financial




statements for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the reporting

company; ({(iii) new standards for auditors and regulation of audits; (iv) increased
disclosure and reporting obligations for the reporting company and its directors and
executive officers; and (v) new and increased civil and criminal penalties for violations
of the securities laws. Many of the provisions were effective immediately while other
provisions become effective over a period of time and are subject to rulemaking by the
5EC. Because the Corporation’s common stock is registered with the SEC, it is currently

subject to this Act.

The earnings of First, and therefore the earnings of Tower, are affected by
general economic conditions, management policies, and the legislative and governmental

actions of various regulatory authorities including the FRB, the OCC and the FDIC.

In addition to banking and securities laws, regulations and regulatory
agencies, the Corporation also 1is subject to various other laws, regulations and
regulatory agencies throughout the United States. Furthermore, various proposals, bills
and regulations have been and are being considered in the United States Congress, and
various other governmental regulatory and legislative bodies, which could result in
changes in the profitability and governance of the Corporation. It cannot be predicted
whether new legislaticn or regulations will be adopted and, if seo, how they would affect

the Corporation.

References under the caption ™“Supervision and Regulation” to applicable
statutes, regulations and orders are brief summaries of portions thereof which do not

purport to be complete and which are qualified in their entirety by reference thereto.

Important Factors Relating to Forward Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor”
for forward-looking statements to encourage companies to provide prospective informatien
about their companies without fear of 1litigation so long as those statements are
identified as forward-looking and are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements
identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
those projected in such statements. In connection with certain statements made in this
report and those that may be made in the future by or on behalf of the Corporation which
are identified as forward-looking statements, the Corporation notes that the fellowing
impertant factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from
those set forth in any such forward-looking statements. Further, such forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date on which such statement or statements are made, and
the Corporation undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement or
statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is

made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.




The business and profitability of a financial services organization such as

the Corporation is influenced by prevailing economic conditicns and governmental
policies. The actions and policy directives of the Federal Reserve Board determine to a
significant degree the cost and the availability of funds obtained from money market
sources for lending and investing. Federal Reserve Board policies and regulations also
influence, directly and indirectly, the rates of interest paid by commercial banks on
their interest-bearing deposits and may also impact the value of financial instruments
held by the Corporation. The nature and impact on the Corporation of future changes in
economic and market conditions and monetary and fiscal policies, both foreign and
domestic, are not predictable, and are beyond the Corporation’s control. In additicn,
these conditions and policies can impact the Corporation's custemers and counterparties
which may increase the risk of default on their obligations to the Corporation and its
affiliates. They can also affect the competitive conditions in the markets and products
within which the Corporation operates, which can have an adverse impact on the

Corporation’s ability to maintain its revenue streams.

As part of its ongoing business, the Corporation assumes financial exposures
to interest rates, currencies, equities and other financial products. In doing so, the
Corporation is subject to unforeseen events which may not have been anticipated or which
may have effects which exceed those assumed within its risk management processes. This
risk can be accentuated by volatility and reduction in liquidity in those markets which
in turn can impact the Corporation’s ability to hedge and trade the positions concerned.
In addition, the Corporation is dependent on its ability to access the financial markets

for its funding needs.

As noted in “Supervision and Regulation”, the Corporation is regulated by and
subject to various regulators. The actions of these regulators can have an impact on the
profitability and governance of the Corporation. Increases by regulatory authorities of
minimum capital, reserve, deposit insurance and other financial viability requirements

can also affect the Corporation’s profitabilicty.

The Corporation is subject to operational and control risk which is the
potential for loss caused by a breakdown in communication, information, processing and
settlement systems or processes or a lack of compliance with the procedures on which they
rely either within the Corporatien or within the broader financial systems

infrastructure.

As with any financial institution, the Corporation is also subject to the
risk of litigation and to an unexpected or adverse outcome in such litigation.
Competitive pressures in the marketplace and unfavorable or adverse publicity and news
coverage can have the effect of lessening customer demand for the Corporation’s services.
Ultimately, the Corporation’s businesses and their success are dependent on the

Corporation’s ability to attract and retain high quality employees.




Competition

First's principal market area consists of Franklin and Fulton Counties,
Pennsylvania and the northcentral and northwest portions of Washington County, Maryland.
It services a substantial number of depositors in this market area, with the greatest

concentration within a limited radius of Greencastle, Pennsylvania.

First, like other depository institutions, has been subjected to competition
from less heavily regulated entities such as brokerage firms, money market funds,
consumer finance and credit card companies and other commercial banks, many of which are
larger than First. First is generally competitive with all competing financial
institutions in its service area with respect to interest rates paid on time and savings

deposits, service charges on deposit accounts and interest rates charged on loans.

The Corporation files periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC} in the form of 10-Q's - quarterly reports; 10-K - annual report; 14A -
annual proxy statements and Form B-K for any significant events that may arise during the
year. Copies of the Corporation’s filings may be obtained through the SEC's internet
site at www.sec.gov or may be obtained free of charge upon written request furnished to:
Mr., Franklin T. Klink, III, CFO, Tower Bancorp, Inc., P. 0. Box 8, Center Square,

Greencastle, Pennsylvania 17225,
Item la. Risk Factors

An investment in the Corporation’s common stock is subject to risks inherent
to the Corporation’s business. The material risks and uncertainties that management
believes affect the Corporation are described below. Before making an investment
decision, you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below
together with all of the other information included or incorporated by reference in this
report. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing the
Corporation. Additional risks and uncertainties that management is not aware of or
focused on, or that management currently deems immaterial may also impair the
Corporation’s business operations. This report is qualified in its entirety by these

risk factors.

If any of the following risks actually occur, the Corporation’s financial
condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. If this
were to happen, the value of the Corporation’s common stock could decline significantly,

and you could lose all or part of your investment.




Risks Related To The Corporation’s Business

The Corporation is subject to interest rate risk.

The Corpecration’s earnings and cash flows are largely dependent upon its net
interest income. Net interest income is the difference between interest income earned on
interest-earning assets such as loans and securities and interest expense paid on
interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits and borrowed funds. Interest rates are
highly sensitive teo many factors that are beyond the Corporation’s control, including
general econcmic conditions and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies
and, in particular, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. Changes in
monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, could influence not only the
interest the Corporation receives on loans and securities and the amount of interest it
pays on deposits and borrowings, but such changes could also affect (i) the Corpeoration’s
ability to originate loans and obtain deposits, (ii) the fair value of the Corporation’s
financial assets and liabilities, and (iii) the average duration of the Corporation’s
mortgage-backed securities portfolio. If the interest rates paid on deposits and other
borrowings increase at a faster rate than the interest rates received on lcans and other
investments, the Corporation’s net interest income, and therefore earnings, could be
adversely affected. Earnings c¢ould also be adversely affected if the interest rates
received on loans and other investments fall more quickly than the interest rates paid on

deposits and other borrowings,

Although management believes it has implemented effective asset and liability
management strategies to reduce the potential effects of changes in interest rates on the
Corporation’s results of operations, any substantial, unexpected, prolonged change in
market interest rates could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial

condition and results of operations.

The Corporation is subject to lending risk

There are inherent risks asscociated with the Corporation’s lending
activities. These risks include, among other things, the impact of changes in interest
rates and changes in the econcmic conditions in the markets where the Corporation
operates as well as those across the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the United States.
Increases in interest rates and/or weakening eccnomic conditions could adversely impact
the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans or the wvalue of the collateral
securing these loans. The Corporation is also subject to wvarious laws and regulations
that affect 1its lending activities. Failure to comply with applicable laws and
regulations could subject the Cecrporation to requlatory enforcement action that could

result in the assessment of significant civil money penalties against the Corporation.




As of December 31, 2007, approximately 17% of the Corporation’s loan
portfelio consisted of commercial and industrial loans. These types of loans are
generally viewed as having more risk of default than residential real estate loans or
consumer loans. These types of loans are also typically larger than residential real
estate loans and consumer loans. Because the Corporation’s loan portfolio contains a
significant number of commercial and industrial leoans with relatively large balances, the
deterioration of one or a few of these loans could cause a significant increase in non-
performing loans. An increase in non-performing loans could result in a net loss of
earnings from these loans, an increase in the provision for possible loan losses and an
increase in loan charge-offs, all of which could have a material adverse effect on the

Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations.

If the Corporation’s allowance for loan losses 1s not sufficient to cover actual loan

losses, its earnings could decrease.

The Corporation’s lcan customers may not repay their loans according to the
terms of their loans, and the collateral securing the payment of their loans may be
insufficient to assure repayment. The Corporation may experience significant credit
losses, which could have a material adverse effect on 1its operating results. The
Corporation makes various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of its loan
pertfolio, including the creditworthiness of its borrowers and ;he value of the real
estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of many of its loans. In
determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses, the Corporation reviews its
loans and its loss and delinquency experience, and the Corporation evaluates economic
conditions. If its assumptions prove to be incorrect, its allowance for loan losses may
not cover inherent losses in its loan portfolioc at the date of its financial statements.
Material additions to the Corporation’s allowance would materially decrease its net
income. At December 31, 2007, its allowance for loan losses totaled $ 3,854,000,

representing 0.97% of its total loans.

Although the Corporation believes it has underwriting standards to manage
normal lending risks, it is difficult to assess the future performance of its loan
portfelio due to the relatively recent origiration of many of these loans. The
Corporation can give you no assurance that its non-performing loans will not increase or
that its non-performing or delinquent loans will not adversely affect its future

performance.

In addition, federal and state regulators periodically review the
Corporation’s allowance for loan losses and may require it to increase its allowance for
loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs. Any increase in its allowance for lecan
losses or leoan charge-offs as required by these regulatory agencies could have a material

adverse effect on its results of operations and financial condition.




The Corporation 1is subject to environmental 1liability risk associated with lending

activities

A significant portion of the Corporation’s loan portfolio is secured by real
property. During the ordinary course of business, the Corporation may foreclose on and
take title to properties securing certain leoans. In doing so, there is a risk that
hazardous or toxic substances could be found on these properties. If hazardous or toxic
substances are found, the Corporaticn may be liable for remediation costs, as well as for
personal injury and property damage. Environmental laws may require the Corporation to
incur substantial expenses and may materially reduce the affected property’s value or
limit the Corporation’s ability to use or sell the affected property. In addition, future
laws or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing
laws may increase the Corporation’s exposure to envirconmental liability. Although the
Corporation has policies and procedures to perform an envirconmental review before
initiating any foreclosure action on real property, these reviews may not be sufficient
to detect all potential environmental hazards. The remediation costs and any other
financial 1iabilities associated with an environmental hazard could have a material

adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Corporation’s profitability depends significantly on economic conditions 1in the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

The Corporation’'s success depends primarily on the general economic
conditions of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the specific local markets in which
the Corporation operates. Unlike larger national or other regional banks that are more
geographically diversified, the Corporation provides banking and financial services to
customers primarily in the Franklin and Fulton Counties, Pennsylvania and Washington
County, Maryland area. The local economic conditions in these areas have a significant
impact on the demand for the Corporation’s products and services as well as the ability
of the Corporation’s customers to repay loans, the value of the ceollateral securing loans
and the stability of the Corporaticn’s deposit funding sources. A significant decline in
general economic conditions, caused by inflation, recession, acts of terrorism, outbreak
of hostilities or other international or domestic occurrences, unemployment, changes in
securities markets or other factors could impact these local economic cenditiens and, in
turn, have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial conditien and results

of operations.

Competition from other Ffinancial institutions may adversely affect the Corporation’s

profitability.

The Corporation’s banking subsidiary faces substantial competition in
originating both commercial and consumer loans. This competition comes principally from

other banks, savings institutions, mortgage banking companies and other lenders. Many of
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its competitors enjoy advantages, including greater financial resources and higher
lending limits, a wider gecgraphic presence, more accessible branch office locations, the
ability to offer a wider array of services or more faverable pricing alternatives, as
well as lower origination and operating costs. This competition could reduce the
Corporation’s net income by decreasing the number and size of loans that its banking

subsidiary originate and the interest rates they may charge on these lecans.

In attracting business and consumer deposits, its banking subsidiary faces
substantial competition from other insured depository institutions such as banks, savings
institutions and credit unions, as well as institutions offering uninsured investment
alternatives, including money market funds. Many of the Corporation's competitors enjoy
advantages, including greater financial resocurces, more aggressive marketing campaigns,
better brand recognition and more convenient branch locations. These competitors may
offer higher interest rates than the Corporation, which could decrease the deposits that
it attracts or require it teo increase its rates to retain existing deposits or attract
new deposits. Increased deposit competition could adversely affect the Corporation’s
ability to generate the funds necessary for lending operations. As a result, it may need
to seek other sources of funds that may be more expensive to obtain and could increase

its cost of funds.

The Corporation’s banking subsidiary alsc competes with non-bank providers of
financial services, such as brokerage firms, consumer finance companies, credit unions,
insurance agencies and governmental organizations which may offer more favorable terms.
Some of its non-bank competitors are not subject to the same extensive regulations that
govern its banking operations. As a result, such non-bank competitors may have advantages
over the Corporation’s banking subsidiary in providing certain products and services.
This competition may reduce or limit its margins on banking services, reduce its market

share and adversely affect its earnings and financial condition.
The Corporation is subject to extensive government regulation and supervision

The Corporation, primarily through the Bank, is subject to extensive federal
and state regulation and supervision. Banking regulations are primarily intended to
protect depositors’ funds, federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as a
whole, not shareholders. These regulations affect the Corporation’s lending practices,
capital structure, investment practices, dividend poliecy and growth, among other things.
Congress and federal regulatory agencies continually review banking laws, regulations and
policies for possible changes. Changes to statutes, regulations or regulatory policies,
including changes in interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations or
policies, could affect the Corporation in substantial and unpredictable ways. Such
changes could subject the Corporation to additional costs, limit the types of financial

services and products the Corporation may offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks

- 14 -




to offer competing financial services and products, among other things. Failure to comply
with laws, regulations or policies could result in sanctions by regulatory agencies,
civil money penalties and/or reputation damage, which could have a material adverse
effect on the Corporation’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
While the Corporation has policies and procedures designed to prevent any such

violations, there can be no assurance that such violations will not occur.

The Corporation’s controls and procedures may fail or be circumvented

Management regularly reviews and updates the Corporation’s internal controls,
disclosure contreols and procedures, and corporate governance policies and procedures. Any
system of controls, however well designed and ocperated, is based in part on certain
assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurances that the objectives
of the system are met. Any failure or circumvention of the Corporation’s controls and
procedures or failure to comply with regulations related to controls and procedures could
have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business, results of operations and

financial condition,.

New lines of business or new products and services may subject the Corporation to

additional risks

From time to time, the Corporation may implement new lines of business or
offer new products and services within existing lines of business. There are substantial
risks and uncertainties associated with these efforts, particularly in instances where
the markets are not fully developed. In developing and marketing new lines of business
and/or new products and services the Corporation may invest significant time and
resources. Initial timetables for the introduction and development of new lines of
business and/or new products or services may not be achieved and price and profitability
targets may not prove feasible. External factors, such as compliance with regulations,
competitive alternatives, and shifting market preferences, may also impact the successful
implementation of a new line of business or a new product or service. Furthermore, any
new line of business and/or new product or service could have a significant impact on the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s system of internal centrols. Failure to successfully
manage these risks in the development and implementation of new lines of business or new
products or services could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business,

results of operations and financial condition.

The Corporation’s ability to pay dividends depends primarily on dividends from its

banking subsidiary, which is subject to regulatory limits.

The Corporation is a bank holding company and its operations are conducted by
its subsidiary. Its ability to pay dividends depends on its receipt of dividends from its
subsidiary. Dividend payments from its banking subsidiary are subject to legal and

regulatory limitations, generally based on net profits and retaired earnings, imposed by




the various banking regulatory agencies. The ability of its subsidiary to pay dividends
is also subject to its profitability, financial condition, capital expenditures and cother
cash flow requirements. There is no assurance that its subsidiary will be able to pay
dividends in the future or that the Corporation will generate adequate cash flow to pay
dividends in the future. The Corporation’s failure to pay dividends on its common stock

could have a material adverse effect on the market price of its common stock.

The Corporation’s future acquisitions could dilute your ownership and may cause it to

become more susceptible to adverse economic events.

The Corporation may use its common stock to acquire other companies or make
investments in banks and other complementary businesses with its common stock in the
future. The Corporation may issue additional shares of common stock to pay for future
acquisitions, which would dilute your ownership interest in the Corporation. Future
business acquisitions could be material to the Corporation, and the degree of success
achieved in acquiring and integrating these businesses into the Corporation could have a
material effect on the wvalue of the Corporation’s common stock. In addition, any
acquisition could require it to use substantial cash or other liquid assets or to incur
debt. In those ewvents, it could bhecome more susceptible to economic downturns and

competitive pressures.
The Corporation may not be able to attract and retain skilled people.

The Corporation’s success depends, in large part, on its ability to attract
and retain key people. Competition for the best people in most activities engaged in by
the Corporation can be intense and the Corporation may not be able to hire people or to
retain them. The unexpected loss of services of one or more of the Corporation’s key
personnel could have a material adverse impact on the Corporation’s business because of
their skills, knowledge of the Corporation’s market, years of industry experience and the
difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel. The Corporation does not
currently have employment agreements or non-competition agreements with any of its senior

officers.

The Corporation’s information systems may experience an interruption or breach 1in

security

The Corporation relies heavily on communications and information systems to
conduct its business. Any failure, interruption or breach in security of these systems
could result in failures or disruptions 1in the Corporation’s customer relaticnship
management, general ledger, deposit, lcan and other systems. While the Corporation has
policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit the effect of the failure,
interruption or security breach of its information systems, there can be no assurance
that any such failures, interruptions or security breaches will not occur or, if they do

occur, that they will be adequately addressed. The occurrence of any failures,




interruptions or security breaches of the Corporation’s information systems could damage
the Corporation’s reputation, result in a loss of customer business, subject the
Corporation to additional regulatory scrutiny, or expose the Corporation to civil
litigation and possible financial 1liability, any of which could have a material adverse

effect on the Corporation’s financial conditicn and results of operations.

The Corporation continually encounters technological change

The financial services industry 1is continually undergeing rapid technological
change with frequent introductions of new technelogy-driven products and services. The
effective use of technology increases efficiency and enables financial institutions to
better serve customers and to reduce costs. The Corporation’s future success depends, in
part, upon its ability to address the needs of its customers by using technology to
provide products and services that will satisfy customer demands, as well as toc create
additional efficiencies 1in the Corporaticon’s operations. Many o¢f the Corporation’s
competitors have substantially greater rescurces to invest in technolecgical improvements.
The Corperaticon may not be able to effectively implement new technology-driven preoducts
and services or be successful in marketing these products and services tc its customers.
Failure to successfully keep pace with technological change affecting the financial
services industry could have a material adverse impact on the Corporation’'s business and,

in turn, the Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Corporation 1s subject to claims and litigation pertaining to fiduciary

responsibility

From time to time, customers make claims and take legal action pertaining to
the Corporation’s performance of its fiduciary responsibilities. Whether customer claims
and legal action related to the Corporation’s performance of its fiduciary
responsibilities are founded or unfounded, if such claims and legal actions are not
resolved in a manner favorable to the Corporation they may result in significant
financial liability and/or adversely affect the market perception of the Corporation and
its products and services as well as impact customer demand for those products and
services. Any financial 1liability or reputation damage could have a material adverse
effect on the Corporation’s business, which, in turn, could have a material adverse

effect on the Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations.

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism and other external events

could significantly impact the Corporation’s business

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts ¢of war or terrorism and other adverse
external events could have a significant impact on the Corporation’s ability to conduct
business. Such events could affect the stability of the Corporation’s deposit base,

impair the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding lecans, impair the value of




collateral securing loans, cause significant property damage, result in loss of revenue
and/or cause the Corporation te incur additional expenses. Severe weather or natural
disasters, acts of war or terrorism or other adverse external events may occur in the
future. Although management has established disaster recovery policies and procedures,
the occurrence o0f any such event could have a material adverse effect on the
Corporation’s business, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the

Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Associated With The Corporation’s Common Stock

The Corporation’s stock price can be volatile

Stock price volatility may make it more difficult for you to resell your
common stock when you want and at prices you find attractive. The Corporation’s stock
price can fluctuate significantly in response to a variety of factors including, among

other things:

* Actual or anticipated variations in guarterly results of operations.
* Recommendations by securities analysts.

* Operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors
deem comparable to the Corporation.

* News reports relating to trends, concerns and other 1issues in the
financial services industry.

¢ Perceptions in the marketplace regarding the Corporation and/or its
competitors.

* New technology used, or services offered, by competitors.

» Significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships,
joint ventures or capital commitments by or involving the Corporation or
its competitors.

¢ Failure to integrate acquisitions or realize anticipated benefits from
acgqguisitions.

¢ Changes in government regulations,
s Geopolitical conditions such as acts or threats of terrorism or military
conflicts.
General market fluctuations, industry factors and general economic and
pelitical conditions and events, such as economic slowdowns or recessions, interest rate
changes or credit loss trends, could also cause the Corporation’s stock price to decrease

regardless of operating results.

The trading volume in the Corporation’s common stock is less than that of other larger

financial services companies

The Corporation’s common stock is listed for trading on OTCBB, and the
trading volume in its common stock is less than that of other larger financial services

companies. A public trading market having the desired characteristics of depth, liquidity




and orderliness depends on the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers
of the Corporation’s common stock at any given time. This presence depends on the
individual decisions of investors and gensral economic and market conditions over which
the Corporation has no control. Given the lower trading volume of the Corporation’s
common stock, significant sales of the Corporation’s common stock, or the expectation of

these sales, could cause the Corporation’s stock price to fall.
An investment in the Corporation’s common stock is not an insured deposit

The Corporation’s common stock is not a bank deposit and, therefore, is not
insured against loss by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), any other
deposit insurance fund or by any other public or private entity. Investment in the
Corporation’s common stock is inherently risky for the reasons described in this “Risk
Factors” section and elsewhere in this report and is subject to the same market forces
that affect the price of common stock in any company. As a result, if you acquire the

Corporation’s common stock, you may lose some or all of your investment.

The Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws and Shareholders Rights Plan as well

as certain banking laws may have an anti-takeover effect

Provisions of the <{orporation’s articles of incorporation and by-laws,
federal banking laws, including regulatory approval requirements, and the Corporation’s
stock purchase rights plan could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire the
Corporation, even if doing so would be perceived to be beneficial to the Corporation’s
shareholders. The combination of these provisions effectively inhibits a non-negotiated
merger or other business combination, which, in turn, could adversely affect the market

price of the Corporation’s common stock.
Risks Associated With The Corporation’s Industry

Future governmental regulation and legislation could 1limit the Corporation’s future

growth.

The Corporation is a registered bank holding company, and its subsidiary bank
is a depository institution whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC"). As a result, the Corporation is subject to various regqulations and
examinations by wvaricus regulatory authcrities. In general, statutes establish the
corporate governance and eligible business activities for the <Corporation, certain
acquisition and merger restrictions, limitations on inter-company transactions such as
loans and dividends, and capital adequacy regquirements, requirements for anti-money
laundering programs and other compliance matters, among other regulations. The
Corporation is extensively regulated under federal and state banking laws and regulations
that are intended primarily for the protection of depositors, federal deposit insurance
funds and the banking system as a whole. Compliance with these statutes and requlations
is important to its ability to engage in new activities and to consummate additicnal
acquisitions.
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In addition, the Corporation is subject to changes in federal and state tax
laws as well as changes in banking and credit regulations, accounting principles and
governmental economic and monetary policies. The Corporation cannot predict whether any
of these changes may adversely and materially affect it. Federal and state banking
regulateors also possess broad powers to take supervisory actions as they deem
appropriate. These supervisory actions may result in higher capital requirements, higher
insurance premiums and limitations on the Corporation’s activities that could have a
material adverse effect on its business and profitability. While these statutes are
generally designed to minimize potential loss to depositors and the FDIC insurance funds,
they do not eliminate risk, and compliance with such statutes increases the Corporation’s
expense, requires management's attention and can be a disadvantage from a competitive

standpoint with respect to non-regulated competitors.

The earnings of financial services companies are significantly affected by general

business and economic conditions

The Corporation’s operations and profitability are impacted by general
business and economic conditions in the United States and abroad. These conditions
include short-term and long-term interest rates, inflation, money supply, political
issues, legislative and regulatory changes, fluctuations in both debt and equity capital
markets, broad trends in industry and finance, and the strength of the U.S. economy and
the local economies in which the Corporation operates, all of which are beyond the
Corporation’s control. Deterioration in economic conditions could result in an increase
in lecan delinquencies and non-performing assets, decreases in loan collateral values and
a decrease in demand for the Corporation's products and services, among other things, any
of which could have a material adverse impact on the Corporation’s financial condition

and results of operations.

Financial services companies depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about

customers and counterparties

In deciding whether toc extend credit or enter into other transactions, the
Corporaticon may rely on information furnished by or on behalf of customers and
counterparties, including financial statements, credit reports and other financial
information. The Corporation may also rely on representations of those customers,
counterparties or other third parties, such as independent auditors, as to the accuracy
and completeness of that information. Reliance on inaccurate or misleading financial
statements, credit reports or other financial information could have a material adverse
impact on the Corporation’s business and, in turn, the Corporation’s financial condition

and results of operations.
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Consumers may decide not to use banks to complete their fipnancial transactions

Technology and other changes are allowing parties to complete financial
transactions that historically have involved banks through alternative methods. For
example, consumers can now maintain funds that would have historically been held as bank
deposits in brokerage accounts or mutual funds. Consumers can also complete transactions
such as paying bills and/or transferring funds directly without the assistance of banks.
The process of eliminating banks as intermediaries, known as “disintermediation”, could
result in the loss of fee income, as well as the loss of customer deposits and the
related income generated from those deposits. The loss of these revenue streams and the
lower cost deposits as a source of funds could have a material adverse effect on the

Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations.

Item 1lb. Unresclved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties.

First owns buildings at Center Square, Greencastle, Pennsylvania (its
corporate headquarters); Shady Grove, Pennsylvania; 4136 Lincoln Way West, (Laurich
Branch}, Chambersburg, Pennsylvania; Quincy, Pennsylvania; Waynesboro, Pennsylvania:
18233 Maugans Avenue, Hagerstown, Maryland; Lincoln Way East, Chambersburg, Pennsylvania;
two in McConnellsburg, Pennsylvania; Needmore, Pennsylvania; Fort Loudon, Pennsylvania;
Rouzerville, Pennsylvania; and Hancock, Maryland. In addition, First leases
approximately 1,500 square feet in a building located at 11906 Buchanan Trail West,
Mercersburg, Pennsylvania, 565 square feet located at 785 Fifth Avenue, Chambersburg,
Pennsylvania, and 3,560 square feet located at 1101 Professional Court, Hagerstown,

Maryland. Offices of the bank are located in each of these buildings.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Tower is an occasional party to legal acticons arising in the ordinary course
of its business. In the opinion of Tower's management, Tower has adegquate legal defenses
and/or insurance coverage respecting any and each of these actions and does not believe

that they will materially affect Tower's operations or financial position.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders.

None




of shareholders of record was 1,283,

Part II

Tower's common stock is not traded on a national securities exchange,

in the stock and deo not reflect prices in actual transactions.

Period Dividends Market Price

2007 1%% Quarter 5 .26 $ 43.70 - $ 44.75

2™ Quarter .26 43.15 -  44.75

3™ Quarter .26 42.10 -  44.25

4" Quarter .28 41.10 -  42.50
2006 1°* Quarter 5 .24 $ 45.00 - $ 47.75

2" Quarter .24 42.30 -  46.70

3™ Quarter .26 42.30 -  49.75

4™ Quarter .00 (1) 44.20 - 45.00
{1) Beginning in the 1°° quarter of 2007, the Corporation
changed its dividend declaration and payment policy. The

Corporation now declares and pays its quarterly dividends during
the same calendar quarter. Therefore, while the Corporation paid
four (4) dividends during 2006, the table reflects only three ({3}
dividends that were declared during 2006.

Market for Registrant's Common Stock, Related Security Holder Matters
and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

traded on the OTCBB under the symbol TOBC. At December 31, 2007, the approximate number
The price ranges for Tower common stock set forth

below are the approximate high and low bid prices obtained from brokers who make a market

but is

Period

October 2007
November 2007
December 2007
Total

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(a)

Total number of
shares purchased

2,088
10,476
4,050

16,614

(b)

Average price
paid per share

$ 42.25
42.04
41.73

$ 41.99
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{c)

Total number of

shares purchased
as part of

publicly
announced plan

2,088
10,476
4,050

16,614

(d)
Maximum number
of shares that

may yet be
purchased under
the plan

62,800
52,324
48,274

48,274




Shareholder Return Performance Graph
A line graph is set forth below. The graph compares the yearly change in the
cumulative total shareholder return on the Corporaticn’s stock against the cumulative
total return cf the NASDAQ Composite and the Peer Group Index for the period of five
fiscal years commencing January 1, 2003 and ended December 31, 2007. The shareholder

return shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future performance.

Total Return Performance
225
—— Tower Bancorp Incorporated
200 + —8— NASDAQ Composite
—&— Mid-Atlantic Custom Peer Group*®
175
]
E 150 /
3
b
£
125
100
75 + —— t }
12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 123107 |
i
Period Ending
~ Index 12/31/02  12/31/03  12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06  12/31/07
Tower Bancorp Incorporated 100.00 139.08 15530  173.80 166.42  156.62
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 150.01 162.89 165.13 180.85 198.60
Mid-Atlantic Custom Peer Group* 100.00 1563.01 167.55 165.85 173.43 159.74

*Mid-Atlantic Custom Peer Group tonsists of Mid-Atlantic commercial banks with assets less than $1B.

The infermation required by Item 5 regarding the Equity Compensation Plan
Information is incorporated by reference to Tower's definitive proxy statement for the

2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed pursuant to Regulation 14A.




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected five-year financial data on page 35 of the annual shareholders’
report for the year ended December 31, 2007 is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 13

and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

Contractual obligations of the Corporation as of December 31, 2007 are as

follows:
Payments due by period
(in thousands) Less More
than 1 1 -3 3 -5 than 5
Contractual obligations Total year years years years
Lines of credit outstanding $ 10,655 § 10,655 $§ 0o 3 o s 0
Long-term debt obligations 26,863 5,000 5,250 10,000 6,613
Operating lease obligations 1,751 147 302 302 1,000
Total $ 39,269 $ 15,802 $ 5,552 $ 10,302 5 7,613

All other information required by Item 7 1is included in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, on pages 40
through 56 of the annual shareholders report which is attached to this Form 10-K as [

Exhibit 13 and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information set forth on pages 54 and 55 of the annual shareholders'
report for the year ended December 31, 2007 regarding quantitative and qualitative
disclosures about market risk is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 13 and

incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The finangial statements and supplementary data, some of which is required
under Guide 3 (statistical disclosures by bank holding companies) are shown on pages 6
through 39 of the annual shareholders report for the year ended December 31, 2007
attached to¢ this Form 10-K as Exhibit 13 and are incorporated herein by reference.
Certain statistical information required in addition to those included in the annual

shareholders' report are submitted herewith as follows.

Description of Statistical Information Page
Loan portfelio 26
Summary of loan loss experience 27
Neonaccrual, delinquent and impaired lecans 28
Allocation of allowances for loan losses 29
Deposits and return on equity and assets 30
Conscolidated summary of operations 31
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

LOAN PORTFOLIO

The following table presents the lcan portfolic at the end of each of the

last five years:

(000 omitted)

Commercial,
financial &
Agricultural

Real estate -
Construction

Real estate -
Mortgage

Installment
& other
personal
loans (net
of unearned
income)

Total loans

2007

§ 71,069

18,041

291, 304

18,065

2006

5 54,313

20,871

287,338
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2005

$ 41,619
2,556

173,923

$ 229,308

2004

5 40,257
6,793

171,415

$ 229,469

2003

5 38,703

7,156

155,649

12,559

$ 214,067




TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY
SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE

Years Ended December 3

{000 omitted)

loans
{net
income}

Average total
ocutstanding
of unearned

Allowance for loan
losses, beginning
of period

Additions to
provision for
lJoan losses
charged to
operations

Addition due to merger

Loans charged off
during the year

Commercial
Real estate
mortgage
Installment

Total charge-
off's

Recoveries of loans
previously charged
off:

Commercial
Installment
Mortgage

Total recoveries

Net loans charged
off (recovered)

Allowance for loan
losses, end of
period

Ratico of net loans
charged off
(recovered)
to average loans
outstanding

The provision is based on
The evaluation

possible loan losses.

1

2007

$ 391,695

600

.09%

2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 318,819 $ 228,848 $ 220,789 $ 198,599
2,129 1,902 1,864 1,632
3860 270 360 360
1,163 0 0 0
0 1 276 29
0 0 0 G
87 95 106 162
87 96 382 191
3 22 35 5
42 31 25 58
0 0 0 0
45 53 60 63
42 43 322 128
$ 3,610 S 2,129 § 1,902 3% 1,864
.01% .02% .15% .06

%

includes,

an evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for

but is not limited to, review of net loan

losses for the year, the present and prospective financial condition of the borrowers and
evaluation of current and projected economic conditions.
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

NONACCRUAIL, DELINQUENT AND IMPAIRED LOANS

The following table sets forth the outstanding balances of those locans on a
nonaccrual status and those on accrual status which are contractually past due as to
principal or interest payments for 30 days and 30 days or more at December 31.

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(000 omitted)
Nonaccrual loans 54,397 S 688 5 44 $ 9 $ 540
Accrual loans:
Restructured $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 5 0 5 0
30 - 89 days
past due 1,470 2,002 299 155 432
90 days or
more past due 1,001 393 59 13 178
Total
accrual
610

loans $ 2,471 52,395 s 358 ] 168

I <

See Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Exhibit 13) for
details of income recognized and foregone revenue on nonaccrual loans for the past three
years, and disclosures of any impaired loans.
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following

losses at Decemper 31 for the last five years.

any particular

category may prove excessive
reallocated in the future

WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

or 1inadequate

to reflect the then current conditions.

allowance is available to absorb losses in any category:

(000 omitted)
Commercial,
financial and
agricultural
Real estate -
Construction
Real estate -
Mortgage
Installment
Unallocated

Total

{000 omitted)
Commercial,
financial and
agricultural
Real estate -
Construction
Real estate -
Mortgage
Installment
Unallocated

Total

is an allocation by loan categories of the allowance for loan
In retrospect the specific allocation in
and consequently may be
Accordingly,

2003
Percentage
of Loans
in Each
Category

wance to Total Allowance to Total

December 31
2007 2006
Percentage Percentage
of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each
Category Category
Allowance to Total Allowance to Total
Amcunt Loans Amount Loans
$ 1,300 17.84% $ 2,144 13.91%
0 4.53 0 5.35
1,668 73.10 703 76.16
246 4,53 220 4.58
640 N/A 543 N/A
$ 3,854 100.0% $ 3,610 100.0%
December 31
2005 2004
Percentage Percentage
of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each
Category Category
Allowance to Total Allc
Amount Loans Amount Loans
$ 474 18.2% 5 453 17.5%
0 1.1 0 3.0
664 75.8 664 74.7
0 4.9 0 4.8
991 N/A 785 N/A
5 2,129 100.0% $

- 29 =

1,902 100.0%

$ 1,864

Amount Loans

8 3.3
664 72.7
0 5.9
506 N/A
100.0%

the entire




TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

The average amounts of deposits are summarized below:

Years Ended December 31

(000 omitted)

Demand deposits

Interest bearing
demand deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Total deposits

RETURN

The feollowing table presents a

ratios:

(000 omitted)

Average assets

Net income

Average equity

Cash dividends

Return on assets
Return on equity
Dividend payout ratio
Equity to asset ratio

DEPOSITS

2007

$ 41,528

182,602
44,038
173,644

2006

5 38,600

120,849
42,266
136,159

ON EQUITY AND ASSETS
(APPLYING DAILY AVERAGE BALANCES)

2007

$ 569,645
7,037
84,267
2,489

A 4n

1.24%
8.35%
35.37%
14.79%

2008

5 457,252
6,132
67,696
1,602

1.34%

9.06%
26.13%
14.80%

Ly A A
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summary of

2005

$ 23,435

105,492
30,936
84,308

2005

5 333,467

$ 5,032

$ 46,181

$ 1,591
1.51%
10.90%
31.62%
13.85%

significant earnings and capital



TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

2007
(000 omitted)
Interest income 5 33,363
Interest expense 14,010
Net interest income 19, 353
Provision for loan
Losses 600
Net interest income
after provision
for loan losses 18,753
Other income:
Investment services
income 961
Service charges -
Deposits 1,808
Other service charges,
collection and
exchange, charges,
commission fees 1,525
Other operating
income 2,417
Total other
income 6,711
Income before
operating expense 25,464
Cperating expenses:
Salaries and
employees
benefits 8,188
Occupancy and
equipment
expense 3,629
Other operating
expenses 4,279
Total operating
Expenses 16,096
Income before
income taxes 9,368
Income tax 2,331
Net income
applicable to
commen stock $ 7,037
Per share data:
Earnings per
common share $ 3.00
Cash dividend -
common s 1.06
Average number of
common shares 2,345,286

Years Ended December 31

2008

$ 25,799
9,873

15,566

413

1,523

$ .74

2,103,487

2005 2004 2003
$ 16,494 5 14,126 $ 14,350
5,152 4,011 4,267
11,342 10,115 10,083
270 360 360
11,072 9,755 9,723
254 79 31
1,112 992 864
722 559 431
2,714 2,961 3,479
4,802 4,591 4,805
15,874 14,346 14,528
4,474 4,078 3,901
1,886 1,702 1,594
2,455 2,154 2,261
8,813 7,934 7,756
7,059 6,412 6,772
2,027 1,689 1,821
$ 5,032 $ 4,723 $ 4,951
§ 2.91 $ 2.73 $ 2.86
$ .92 $ 1.34 5 1.26
1,727,055 1,727,856 1,733,477
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosures.

Not applicable.
Item 9a. Controls and Procedures

The Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
evaluated the effectiveness of the Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e} under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the ™“Exchange Act”}) as of December 31, 2007. Based on such evaluation, such
officers have concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, the Corporation’s disclasure
controls and procedures are effective in alerting them on a timely basis to material
information relating to the Corporation (including its consoclidated subsidiary} required
to be included in the Corporation’s periodic filings under the Exchange Act, except for
the material weakness and related post year-end remediation measures noted in
Management’s Report on Internal Control included in the Annual Report attached to this

Form 10-K as Exhibit 13.

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting and the
report on internal contreol over financial reporting of the Registered Public Accounting
Firm are included in the annual shareholders’ report for the year ended December 31, 2007

attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 13 and are incorporated herein by reference.
CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS

There have not been any significant changes in the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting or in other factors that could materially affect or are
reasonably likely to materially affect these controls during the fourth quarter of 2007,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material

weaknesses.

Item 9b. Other Information

The Corporation had no other events that should have been disclosed on Form

8K that were not already disclosed on such form.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Corpcoration has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all Directors
and Senior Managers (including its Chief Executive Qfficer and Chief Financial Cfficer).
The Corporation’s Directors and Senior Management Code of Ethics is available on First

National Bank of Greencastle’s website at http://www.fnbgc.com under the "About FNB" tab.

All other information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference from
Tower Bancorp's definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

filed pursuant to Regulation 14A.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference from Tower
Bancorp's definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed

pursuant to Regulation 14A.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

Information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference from Tower
Bancorp, Inc.’s definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, and Item 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 1s incorporated by reference from Tower
Bancorp's definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed

pursuant to Regulation 14A.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference from Tower
Bancorp's definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed

pursuant to Regulation 14A.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a}

(2)

{3)

(1) - List of Financial Statements
The following consolidated financial statements of
Tower Bancorp and its subsidiary, included in the
annual report of the registrant to its
shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2007
attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 13,
are incorporated by reference in Item 8:
Consolidated balance sheets - December 3%,
2007 and 2006
Consolidated statements of income - Years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
Consclidated statements of stockholders’
equity - Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
Consolidated statements of cash flows - Years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
Notes to consolidated financial statements -
December 31, 2007
List of Financial Statement Schedules
All financial statement schedules for which provision is
made in the applicable accounting regulation of the
Securities and Exchange Commission are not
required under the related instructicns or are
inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.
Listing of Exhibits
(3.1) Articles of Incorporation of Tower Bancorp, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Tower Bancecrp, Inc.’s Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2005
(3.2) Bylaws of Tower Bancorp, Inc. {incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 of Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2005).
{10) Material contracts
(10.1}) Change of Control Agreement of Jeffrey B. Shank dated as of
September 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4
of Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Form 10-Q for the guarter ended
September 30, 2002).
(10.2} Change of Control Agreement of Franklin T. Klink, III dated
as of November 26, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 of Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001).
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(10.3)

{10.4)

(10.5)

(10.6)

(10.7)

(10.8)

(10.9)

(10.10)

Change of Control Agreement of Donald G. Kunkle dated
as of January 4, 2002 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 of Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001}.
Change of Control Agreement of John H. McDowell, Sr. dated
as of December 23, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 of Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998).
Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan
{(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 92.1 to Tower Bancorp,
Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-
40661) ).
Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Stock Optien Plan for Outside
Directers {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Tower
Bancorp, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 5-8 (File No.
333-40661)}).
Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement of Jeffrey B.
Shank dated as of September 25, 2002 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 of Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2002).
Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First Naticnal Bank
of Greencastle Group Term Replacement Plan A {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Tower Bancorp, Inc.'s
Registration Statement on Form S$-4 (File No. 333-130485)).
Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First Naticnal Bank
of Greencastle Group Term Replacement Plan B {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Tower Banceorp, Inc.’s
Registration Statement on Form $-4 (File No. 333-130485)).
Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First National Bank
of Greencastle Executive Bonus Agreement {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s

Registration Statement on Form $-4 (File No. 333-130483%))

(10.11) First National BRank of Greencastle Employees' Stock Ownership

(13)
{21)
(23.1)

Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 92.3 to Tower
Bancorp, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No.
333-40661) .

Annual report to security holders - filed herewith
Subsidiaries of the registrant - filed herewith

Consent of independent registered public accounting firm -

filed herewith
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(31.1) Certification ¢f Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 -
filed herewith
(31.2) Certificaticon of Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 -
filed herewith
(32.1) Certification of Chief Executive
Officer pursuant to 18 U.$.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 - filed
herewith.
(32.2) Certification of Chief Financial
Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 - filed
herewith.
All other exhibits for which provision is made in the applicable
accounting regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not
required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore

have been omitted.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TOWER BANCORP, INC.
{(Registrant)
By /s/ Jeff B. Shank
Jeff B. Shank,
President/CEQ
(Principal Executive Officer)
By /s/ Franklin T. Klink, III
Franklin T. Klink, III
Treasurer {Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)
Dated: March 12, 2008
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/5/ Jeff B. Shank President &
——————————————————————— Director March 12, 2008

Jeff B. Shank

/S/ EKermit G. Hicks Chairman of the
——————————————————————— Board & Director March 12, 2008
Kermit G. Hicks

/S8/ Frederic M. Frederick Vice Chairman of the
——————————————————————— Board & Director March 12, 2008
Frederic M. Frederick

/S/ James H. Craig, Jr. Director March 12, 2008

James H. Craig, Jr.

/8/ Lois Easton Director March 12, 2008

Lois Easton

/8/ Mark E. Gayman Director March 12, 2008

Mark E. Gayman

/58/ Patricia A. Carbaugh Director March 12, 2008

Patricia A. Carbaugh

/S/ Harry D. Johnston Director March 12, 2008

Harry D. Johnston
/S/ Terry Randall Director March 12, 2008

Terry Randall
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&mith Eliott Kearns & Company, WWC
Certified Public Accountants & Consullants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Tower Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tower Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007. Tower Bancorp, Inc.’s management is responsible for these
financial statements, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tower Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, the Corperation changed its policy for accounting
for stock-based compensation in 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States}, Tower Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSQ), and our report dated March 12, 2008 expressed an adverse opinion.

il Sttt Learnat 5-7)%“-2-

Chambersburg, Pennsylvania
March 12, 2008




Smith Flliotl Kearns & Company. LLC
Certified Dublic Accountants & Censultants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Tower Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited Tower Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on criteria established in Inzernal Control - Integrated Framewark issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COS0). Tower Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Contrel over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal contrel over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of intemmal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasenable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified and tncluded in
management’s assessment. The Corporation did not maintain adequate risk identiftcation and monitoring of commercial loans.
Weaknesses include an ineffective loan review function, incomplete management information system, inadequate information to
support the borrowers’ ability to service the loans, inconsistent loan documentation, and ineffective evaluation of the components of
the allowance for loan losses. These conditions result in a weakness in management’s ability to determine the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied
in our audit of the 2007 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 12, 2008 on those financial
statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the abjectives
of the control criteria, Tower Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary have not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).




&mith Elliott Keams & Company, MC
Certificd Public Aocountants € Consultants

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Tower Bancorp, Inc.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash
flows of Tower Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary, and our report dated March 12, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion.

W St éMﬂA——’ 5*794"7‘(_,“(—

Chambersburg, Pennsylvania
March 12, 2008




MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To our Shareholders,
Tower Bancorp, Inc.
Greencastle, Pennsylvania

The management of Tower Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Corporation™) has the
responsibility for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial
reporting. Management maintains a comprehensive system of internal control to provide reasonable assurance of the
proper authorization of transactions, the safeguarding of assets and the reliability of the financial records. The system of
internal control provides for appropriate division of responsibility and is documented by written policies and procedures
that are communicated to employees. Tower Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary maintain an internal auditing
program, under the supervision of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which independently assesses the
effectiveness of the system of internal control and recommends possible improvements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Corporation’s management, including its Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Corporation has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, using the Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Corporation’s annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Management identified the following material
weakness in internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007:

The Corporation did not maintain adequate risk identification and monitoring of
commercial loans. Weaknesses include an ineffective loan review function, incomplete
management information system, inadequate information to support the borrowers’ ability
to service the loans, inconsistent loan decumentation, and ineffective evaluation of the
components of the allowance for loan losses. These conditions result in a weakness in
management’s ability to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

As a result of the material weakness identified above, management has concluded that Tower Bancorp,
Inc. and subsidiary did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.




To our Shareholders,
Tower Bancorp, Inc.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC has issued
an audit report on the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. The accounting
firm’s audit report on internal control over financial reporting is included in this financial report.

/S/ Jeffrey B. Shank {S/ Franklin T. Klink, II]
Jeffrey B. Shank Franklin T. Klink, 111
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
March 12, 2008 March 12, 2008

REMEDIATION OF MATERIAL WEAKNESS

The Corporation is in the process of developing and implementing remediation plans to address our
material weakness. Management has taken the following steps to improve the internal controls over financial reporting:

Management has created and filled a full time position designated as a Loan Review Officer. The Loan
Review Officer will be responsible for reviewing the adequacy of management’s risk identification of loans and for
calculating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Management has created and filled the positions of Credit
Administration Officer and Credit Analyst to assist in the identification and monitoring of risk within the loan portfolio.
Management has designated a team of bank officers to review the loan policy and rewrite the policy, addressing
weaknesses in internal controls reported in this report. Management is reviewing the management information systems
and identifying enhancements available in the core processing systems. Management has implemented new procedures
that strengthen the collection and filing of information to support the borrowers’ ability to service loans. These initiatives
are designed to strengthen management’s ability to determine the adequacy of the altowance for loan losses.




TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold
Interest bearing deposits with banks
Investment securitics available for sale
Restricted Bank stock

Loans
Commercial, financial and agricultural
Real estate — Mortgages
Real estate — Construction and land development
Consumer

Net deferred loan fees, costs and discounts
Less: Allowance for loan losses

Total loans

Premises, equipment, furniture and fixtures
Real estate owned other than premises
Accrued interest receivable

Cash surrender value of life insurance
Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

2007 2006
(000 omitted)

16,770 $ 14,128
20,081 6,530
0 97
83,846 87,631
2,914 3,123
71,069 54313
291,983 298,338
18,041 20,871
18,065 17,897
399,158 391,419
679 ( 1,0600)
3,854) ( 3,610)
394,625 386,809
9,861 9,675
2,313 1,904
1,861 1,841
10,768 10,683
16,558 16,535
1,994 2,095
45 1,116
561,636 $ 542,167




LIABILITIES
Deposits in domestic offices
Demand, noninterest bearing
Savings
Time
Total deposits

Liabilities for other borrowed funds
Accrued interest payable
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stockholders’ equity

Common Stock: no par value, authorized 5,000,000 shares,

issued 2,420,481 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Less: Cost of treasury stock, 98,055 shares - 2007;

63,278 shares — 2006

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

2007 2006
(000 omitted)

46,860 $ 47,548
223,904 188,147
169,166 174,140
439,930 409,835

37,735 41,643

999 994
1,657 5,299
2,901 2,843

483,222 460,614
2,225 2,225
34,831 34,810
40,696 36,148
4,558 10,731
82,310 83,914
3,896) ( 2.361)

78,414 81,553

561,636 § 542,167

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

2007 2006 2005
(000 omitted)
Interest and Dividend Income
Interest and fees on loans b 28490 § 22,384 § 13,943
Interest and dividends on investment securities
Taxable 1,618 1,800 1,266
Federal tax exempt 1,278 1,227 1,065
Interest on federal funds sold 1,961 348 148
Interest on deposits with banks 16 40 72
Total interest income 33,363 25,799 16,494
Interest Expense
Interest on time certificates of deposit of
$ 100,000 or more 1,561 896 437
Interest on other deposits 10,367 6,482 2,988
Interest on borrowed funds 2,082 2,495 1,727
Total interest expense 14,010 9.873 5.152
Net interest income 19,353 15,926 11,342
Provision for loan losses 600 360 270
Net interest income after provision
for loan losses 18,753 15,566 11,072
Other Income
Investment services income 961 413 254
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,808 1,523 1,112
Other service charges, collection and exchange
charges, commissions and fees 1,525 1,084 722
Investment securitics gains 1,886 3,923 2,394
Other income 531 381 320
6,711 7.324 4,802
Other Expenses
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits 8,188 6,949 4474
Occupancy expense 1,058 853 580
Fumiture and equipment expenses 2,571 2,220 1,306
Other operating expenses 4279 4,018 2,455
16,096 14,040 8.815
Income before income taxes 9,368 8,850 7,059
Applicable income tax expense 2,33 2,718 2,027
Net income b 7037 § 6,132 § 5,032
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share b 3.00 § 292 § 2.91
Weighted average shares outstanding 2,345,286 2,103,487 1,727,055
Diluted earnings per share 3 299 % 287 § 2.86
Weighted average shares outstanding 2353426 2,137,168 1,758,409

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
-7-




TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

Balance at December 31, 2004

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Net unrealized gain on available
for sale securities {net of tax § 389)

‘Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared on common
stock (§ 0.92 per share)

Purchase of treasury stock
(5,212 shares)

Sale of treasury stock (11,313 shares)

Balance at December 31, 2005

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Net unrealized gain on available
for sale securities (net of tax § 605)

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared on common
stock ($ 0.74 per share)

Merger activity

Stock options granted

Stock options exercised

Purchase of treasury stock
(19,889 shares)

Sale of treasury stock (8,619 shares)

Balance at December 31, 2006

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Net unrealized gain (loss) on available
for sale securities (net of tax § 3,180)

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared on common
stock ($ 1.06 per share)

Stock options granted

Stock options exercised

Purchase of treasury stock
(43,122 shares)

Sale of treasury stock (8,345 shares)

Balance at December 31, 2007

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Paid-in Retained  Comprehensive  Treasury  Stockholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Equity
(000 omitted)
3 2225 § 6,782 § 28177 § 8801 (8§ 1,914) § 44,01
0 0 5,032 0 0 5,032
] 0 0 756 0 156
5,788
0 0 { 1,591} 0 0 ( 1,591}
0 ( 53} 0 0 ( 234) ( 287)
0 31 0 0 37 408
2,225 6,760 31,618 9,557 ( 1,771 48,389
0 0 6,132 0 0 6,132
0 0 0 1,174 0 1,174
7,306
0 0 ( 1,602) 0 0 ( 1,602)
0 28,609 0 0 ( 72) 27,937
0 108 0 0 ) 108
0 ( 69) 0 0 0 ( 69)
0 { 30) 0 0 ( 813) ( 843)
0 32 0 0 295 327
2,225 34,810 36,148 10,731 { 2,361) 81,553
0 0 7,037 0 ] 7,037
0 0 0 ( 6,173) 0 | 6,173)
864
0 0 ( 2,489) 0 ¢ ( 2,489)
0 108 0 0 0 108
0 ( 71} 0 0 ¢ ( 1)
0 0 0 0 ( 1,853) ( 1,853)
0 ( 16) o 0 318 302
$ 2,225 8 34,831 § 40,696 3 4,558 ($ 3,896) § 78,414

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
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Provision for deferred taxes
(Increase) decrease in:

Interest receivable
Increase (decrease) in:

Interest payable
Other liabilities

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Net (gain) loss on sale of property and equipment 8
Provisions for loan loss
Granting of Stock Options

TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided by operating activities 7,084

Cash Tlows from investing activities:
Net (increase) in loans
Purchases of property and equipment { 1,474 (
Net decrease in interest bearing deposits with banks 97
Maturity/sales of available for sale securities 9,260
Purchases of available for sale securities { 12,391) (
Sales of fixed assets
Purchase of restricted bank stock ( 121) (
Cash acquired in acquisition
Purchase price of shares exchanged for cash 0 (

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ¢ 13,038) $

2007 2006 2005
(000 omitted)

5 7037 § 6,132 % 5,032
1,267 915 388
0 0
600 360 270
108 109 0
{Gain) on sale of investment securities ( 1,886) ( 3923 ( 2,394)
( 342) ( 13) ( 71)
754 ( 292) ( 116)
Mortgage servicing valuation ( 301) 0 0
( 20) ( 738) ( 199)
Cash surrender value of life insurance ( 85) ( 378) ( 317
5 ¢ 113) 99
( 61) 151 ( 12)
6 112) 0
2,098 2.680
( 8.416) ( 19,949) 118
2,593 ( 1,230)
3,086 ( 2,887)
47,407 10,537
16,728) ( 25,980)
7 6 0
1,066) ( 623)
0 4,594 0
2,935) 0
11,822 (3 20,065)

-9-

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements




TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

2007 2006 2005
(000 omitted)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net increase in deposits $ 30,095 % 9,599 § 30,388

Borrowings (payments) on short term borrowings ( 13,540) ( 18,531) ( 9,509)

Long-term borrowings 1,081 0 0

Payments on long-term borrowings { 5,000) 0 0

Purchase of treasury stock ( 1,853) ( 813) ( 287

Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 302 226 408

Cash dividends paid { 2,489 ( 2017 ( 2,416)
Net cash provided (uscd) by financing activities 8,596 ( 11,536) 19,084
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,642 2,384 1,699
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,128 11,744 10,045
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year b 16,770 § 14,128 § 11,744
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information:

Cash paid during the yvear for:

Interest ) 14,005 § 9243 § 5,054

Income taxes 2,861 2,783 2,227
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing

and financing activities:
Unrealized pain (loss) on securities available
for sale (net of tax effects) % 6,173) § 1,i74 $ 756
Additional paid-in capital issued in merger 0 28,009 0

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
-10-




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Tower Bancorp, Inc. (the “Corporation”) is a bank holding company whose primary activity consists of owning
and supervising its subsidiary, The First National Bank of Greencastle, which is engaged in providing banking
and bank related services in South Central Pennsylvania, principally Franklin and Fulton Counties, and
Washington County, Maryland. Its sixteen (16) offices are located in Greencastle, Quincy, Shady Grove,
Laurich, Waynesboro, Chambersburg (2), Rouzerville, McConnellsburg (2) Needmore, Fort Loudon and
Mercersburg, Pennsylvania; Hancock and Hagerstown (2), Maryland.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
The First National Bank of Greencastle (the "Bank™). All significant intercompany transactions and accounts
have been eliminated.

FNB Mortgage Brokers, Inc. was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, and was acquired in the merger with
FNB Financial Corporation in 2006. FNB Mortgage Brokers, Inc. was dissolved by the Corporation on
February 28, 2007.

First Fulton County Community Development Corporation (FFCCDC} is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Bank, and was acquired in the merger with FNB Financial Corporation in 2006. The purpose of FFCCDC is to
serve the needs of low to moderate income individuals and smatl business in Fulton County under the
Community Development and Regulatory Improvement Act of 1995. FFCCDC has been inactive since it was
acquired.

During 2006, the Corporation completed the merger of FNB Financial Corporation, and these operations are
included subsequent to the purchase. See Note 18 for further discussion.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the
allowance for losses on loans and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in
satisfaction of loans. In connection with the determination of the allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed
real estate, management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and foreclosed real estate, future
additions to the allowances may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition,
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Corporation’s
allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate. Such agencies may require the Corporation to
recognize additions to the allowances based on their judgments about information available to them at the time
of their examination. Because of these factors, management’s estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan
portfolio and the related allowance may change in the near term.
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Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investment Securities
The Corporation’s investments in securities are classified in three categories and accounted for as follows:

= Trading Securities. Securities held principally for resale in the near term are classified as trading securities
and recorded at their fair values. Unrealized gains and losses on trading securities are included in other
income.

= Securities to be Held to Maturity. Bonds and notes for which the Corporation has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity are reported at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts which are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity.

= Securities Available for Sale. Sccuritics available for sale consist of securities not classified as trading
securities nor as securities to be held to maturity. These are securities that management intends to use as a
part of its asset and liability management strategy and may be sold in response to changes in interest rates,
resultant prepayment risk and other related factors.

Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of tax, on securities available for sale are reported as a net amount in
other comprehensive income.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities available for sale are determined using the specific-identification
method.

Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices.
The Corporation had no trading or held to maturity securities in 2007 or 2006.

Investments include equity securities with a concentration in the financial services sector amounting to
$ 33,861,000 and § 43,153,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Restricted Bank Stock

The Corporation is required to maintain minimum investment balances in The Federal Reserve Bank, Federal
Home Loan Bank and Atlantic Central Banker’s Bank. These investments are carried at cost because they are
not actively traded and have no readily determinable market value.

Premises, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures and Depreciation

Premises, equipment, and furniture and fixtures are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
has been provided generally on the straight-line method and is computed over the estimated useful lives of the
various assets as follows:

Years
Premises 15-40
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-15

Repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred. Land is not depreciated.
Foreclosed Property

Foreclosed properties includes properties for which the institution has taken physical possession in connection
with loan foreclosure proceedings. See Note 5 for further details.

-12-
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Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

At the time of foreclosure, foreclosed real estate is recorded at fair value less cost to sell, which becomes the
property’s new basis. Any write-downs based on the asset’s fair value at date of acquisition are charged to the
allowance for loan losses. If an increase in basis results, it is classified as non-interest income unless there has
been a prior charge-oft, in which case a recovery to the atlowance for loan losses is recorded. Afier foreclosure,
these assets are carried as “other assets” at the new basis. Improvements to the property are added to the basis
of the assets. Costs incurred in maintaining foreclosed real estate and subsequent adjustments to the carrying
amount of the property are classified as “other expenses”.

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by unearned discount, deferred loan origination
fees, and an allowance for loan losses. Unearned discount on installment loans is recognized as income over the
terms of the loans by the interest method. Interest on other loans is calculated by using the simple interest
method on daily balances of the principal amount outstanding.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans are
charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the collectibility of the principal
is unlikely. The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on
existing loans that may become uncollectible, based on evaluations of the collectibility of loans and prior loan
loss experience. The evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the
loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic conditions that
may affect the borrowers' ability to pay.

Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net amount amortized as an
adjustment of the related loan's yield. The Corporation is amortizing these amounts over the contractual life of
the related loans.

Nonaccrual/Impaired Loans

The accrual of interest income on loans ceases when principal or interest is past due 90 days or more and
collateral is inadequate to cover principal and interest or immediately if, in the opinion of management, full
collection is unlikely. Interest accrued but not collected as of the date of placement on nonaccrual status is
reversed and charged against current income unless fully collateralized. Subsequent payments received are
either applied to the outstanding principal balance or recorded as interest income, depending on management's
assessment of the ultimate collectibility of principal. Interest income generally is not recognized on specific
impaired loans unless the likelihood of further loss is remote. Interest income on such loans is recognized only
to the extent of interest payments received,

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Corporation will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. The larger commercial loans are evaluated for impairment.
Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis by comparing the contractual principal and interest payments to
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s
obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Consumer loans
such as residential mortgages and installments, comprised of smaller balance homogeneous loans, are
collectively evaluated for impairment. Interest income generally is not recognized on specific impaired loans
unless the liketihood of further loss is remote. Interest income on such loans is recognized only to the extent of
interest payments received.
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Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(Continued)

Earnings per Share of Common Stock

Earnings per share of common stock were computed based on weighted average shares outstanding. For diluted
earnings per share, net income is divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding plus the
incremental number of shares added as a result of converting common stock equivalents. The corporation’s
common stock equivalents consist of outstanding stock options. See Note 10 for further details.

A reconciliation of the weighted average shares outstanding used to calculate basic net income per share and
diluted net income per share follows. There is no adjustment to net income to arrive at diluted net income per
share.

2007 2006 2005
Weighted average shares outstanding (basic) 2,345,286 2,103,487 1,727,055
Impact of common stock equivalents 8.140 33.681 31.354
Weighted average shares outstanding (diluted) 2,353,426 2,137,168 1,758,409

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the underlying fair value of merged entities. Goodwill
is accounted for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”, and is assessed for impairment at least annually and as triggering events occur. In making
this assessment, management relies on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic
projections, anticipated future cash flows, and transactions and market place data. There are inherent
uncertainties related to these factors and management’s judgment in applying them to the analysis of goodwill
impairment. Changes in economic and operating conditions could result in a goodwill impairment in future
periods. Disruptions to the business such as end market conditions and protracted economic weakness,
unexpected significant declines in operating results, and market capitalization declines may result in a goodwill
impairment. These types of events and the resulting analysis could result in additional charges for goodwill and
other asset impairments in the future. See Note 18 for further details.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include premiums from purchases of core deposit relationships acquired in the merger with
FNB Financial Corporation. The core deposit intangible is being amortized over ten years on a sum-of-the-
years-digits basis. Also included in intangible assets are mortgage servicing rights resulting from loans serviced
for others, discussed further in Note 6. See Note 18 for further details.

Loan Servicing

The cost of mortgage servicing rights is amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net
servicing revenues. Impairment of mortgage servicing rights is assessed based on the fair value of those rights.
Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on a current market interest rate. For purposes of
measuring impairment, the rights are stratified based on the predominant risk characteristics of the underlying
loans: product type, investor type, interest rate, and term.

Federal Income Taxes

For financial reporting purposes, the provision for loan losses charged to operating expense is based on
management'’s judgment, whereas for federal income tax purposes, the amount allowable under present tax law
is deducted. Additionally, deferred compensation is charged to operating expense in the period the liability is
incurred for financial reporting purposes, whereas, for federal income tax purposes, these expenses are deducted
when paid. There are also differences between the amount of depreciation, intangible amortization, and deferred
compensation expensed for tax and financial reporting purposes, and an income tax effect caused by the
adjustment to fair value for available for sale securities. As a result of these timing differences, deferred income
taxes are provided in the financial statements, Sce Note 13 for further details.
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Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Federal Income Taxes (Continued)

When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination
by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the
amount of the position that would be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the
financial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or
litigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions
that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is
more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion
of the benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above would
be reflected as a lability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any
associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination.

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits would be classified as additional income taxes
in the statement of income.

At December 31, 2007 there was no liability for unrecognized tax benefits.
Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the company has defined cash and cash equivalents as highly
liquid debt instruments with maturities of three months or less. They are included in the balance sheet caption
"cash and due from banks". As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the Corporation has
elected to present the net increase or decrease in deposits in banks, loans and deposits in the Statements of Cash
Flows.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require disclosure of fair value information about financial
instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet. In cases where quoted market prices are not available,
fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In
that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in
many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instruments. GAAP exclude certain financial
instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair
value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the corporation. See Note 19 for further details.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation in estimating fair values of financial
instruments as disclosed herein:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate their
fair vatue.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks. Interest bearing balances with banks having a maturity greater than
one year have estimated fair values using discounted cash flows based on current market interest rates.

Securities to be Held to Maturity and Securities Available for Sale. Fair values for investment securities are
based on gquoted market prices.
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Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Loans Receivable, For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit
risk, fair values are based on carrying values. Fair values for fixed rate loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to
borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable.

Deposit Liabilities. The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable
rate, fixed-term money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the
reporting date. Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposits and IRA’s are estimated using a discounted
cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered to a schedule of aggregated expected
maturities on time deposits.

Federal Funds Purchased and Other Borrowed Funds. The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased,
borrowings under repurchase agreements, and other short-term borrowings maturing within 90 days
approximate their fair values. Fair values of other borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on the Corporation’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing
arrangements.

Accrued Interest, The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values.

Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments. The Corporation generally does not charge commitment fees. Fees for
standby letters of credit and their off-balance-sheet instruments are not significant.

Advertising

The Corporation expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, was $ 371,104, $ 332,246, and $ 241,697, respectively.

Trust Assets

Assets held by the Corporation in a fiduciary or agency capacity are not included in the consolidated financial
statements since such assets are not assets of the Corporation. In accordance with banking industry practice,
income from fiduciary activities is generally recognized on the cash basis which is not significantly different from
amounts that would have been recognized on the accrual basis.

Comprehensive Income

The Corporation follows generally accepted accounting principles when reporting comprehensive income.
Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity from transactions and other events from nonowner |
sources. It includes all changes in equity except those resulting from investments by stockholders and distributions

1o stockholders. Comprehensive income includes net income and certain elements of “other comprehensive

income” such as foreign currency transactions; accounting for futures contracts; employers accounting for

pensions; and accounting for certain investments in debt and equity securities.

The Corporation has elected to report its comprehensive income in the statement of changes in stockholders’
equity. The only element of “other comprehensive income™ that the Corporation has is the unrealized gains or
losses on available for sale securities.
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Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Comprehensive Income (Continued)

The components of the change in net unrealized gains (losses) on securities are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(000 Omitted)

Gross unrealized holding gains (losses) arising

during the year ($ 7.467) $ 5,702 $ 3,539
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) realized in ‘

net income (_1886) (___3.923) (__239%)
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) before taxes ( 9,353) 1,779 1,145
Tax effect 3.180 ( 605) | 389)
Net change (&_6,173) $ 1,174 $ 756

Stock Option Plans

The Corporation maintains two stock-based compensation plans. These plans provide for the granting of stock
options to the Corporation’s employees and directors. The Corporation has historically accounted for the plans
using the intrinsic-value method under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25 and
related Interpretations. In December 2004, the FASB issued a final FAS Statement No. 123R, “Share-Based
Payment”, which requires financial statement recognition of compensation cost for stock options and other
stock-based awards based on use of a fair value determination on the date of grant and expensing over the
applicable vesting period.

As a result of adopting Statement 123R on January 1, 2006, the Corporation’s income before taxes and net
income for the year ended December 31, 2007 are $ 38,000 and $ 25,000 less and for the year ended
December 31, 2006 are $ 32,000 and $ 11,000 less, respectively, than if it had continued to account for share-
based compensation under APB Opinion 25. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are $ 0.01 and $ 0.01 less, respectively, than if the Corporation had continued to
account for share-based compensation under APB Opinion 25. The fair value of each option grant was
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

The Corporation applied APB Opinion 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its stock option plans for
2005. Accordingly, only compensation cost for the intrinsic value of options has been recognized. Had
compensation cost for the Corporation’s stock option ptans been determined based on the fair value at the grant
dates for awards under the plans consistent with the method prescribed by FASB Statement No. 123, the
Corporation’s net income and earnings per share would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts indicated

below:
2005
Net income (000 omitted) As reported $ 5,032
Pro forma 5,010
Earnings per share As reported 291
Pro forma 2.90
Earnings per share assuming As reported 2.86
dilution Pro forma 2.85

See Note 10 for further details concerning the Corporation’s Stock Option Plans.
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Note 1.

Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Reclassifications

Centain reclassifications have been made to the 2006 and 2005 financial statements to conform to reporting for

2007,

Investment Securities

The investment securities portfolio is comprised of securities classified as available for sale at December 31,
2007 and 2006, resulting in investment securities available for sale being carried at fair value.

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities availabie for sale at December 31 were:

Mortgage-backed securities

Corporate bonds

Equities

Obligations of state and political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Corporate bonds

Equities

Obligations of state and political subdivistons

The fair values of investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2007, by contractual maturity, are
shown below. Contractual maturitics will differ from expected maturities because borrowers may have the right

Amortized Gross Gross Fair
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost . Value
Gains Losses
(000 omitted)

2007
$ 14,929 $ 260 $ 12 $15177
1,697 7 140 1,564
27,734 8,167 2,000 33,861
32,529 737 22 33,244
$ 76,939 $ 9.171 $2,.264 $ 83,846

2006
$12,744 £ 168 $ 22 $ 12,890
1,943 14 7 1,950
27,684 15,655 186 43,153
29.000 762 124 29.638
371,371 316,599 $339 $ 87,631

to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years

Mortgage-backed securitics
Equity securities

Securities Available

for Sale

Amortized

Cost

$ 3,251
5,683
11,470
13,822
34,226
14,929
27.784

$76,939
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3,248

5,752
11,641
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Note 2. Investment Securities (Continued)

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities available for sale during 2007, 2006, and 2005, were
$ 9,260,000, $ 47,407,000, and $ 10,537,000, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on those sales and

maturities were $ 1,900,000 and $ 14,000 for 2007, $ 4,025,315 and $ 102,297 for 2006, and $ 2,426,000 and
$ 32,000 for 2005, respectively.

Securities carried at $ 15,273,317 and $ 16,293,655 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were pledged
to secure public funds and for other purposes as required or permitted by law.

Restricted bank stock includes:

2007 2006

(000 omitted)
Federal Reserve Bank stock $ 133 % 133
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,701 2,910
Atlantic Central Bankers Bank 80 80
$£2914 $3,123

The following table shows the Corporation’s gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment

category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007
(000 omitted)
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of other U. 8.
government agencies $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 § 0 5 0 3 0
Mortgage-backed securities 190 1 941 11 1,131 12
Corporate bonds 854 108 458 32 1,312 140
Equities 7,988 1,647 2,215 443 10,203 2,090
Obligations of state and
political subdivisions 1,236 0 6.041 22 7.277 22
Total § ”!,25_8 £1,756 §2,§§5_ 3 508 ;S__.‘)_.Ql 23 $2.264
2006
(000 omitted)
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of other L. S.
government agencies $ 0 £ 0 $ 0 $ 0 b 0 § 0
Mortgage-backed securities 9 0 1,129 22 1,138 22
Comorate bonds 0 0 967 7 967 7
Equities 2,561 70 470 t16 3,031 186
Obligations of state and
political subdivisions 5,005 _46 5,001 __ 78 10,006 _ 124
Total $7,575 $1i6 $.7,567 $223 $15,142 $339
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, but
management’s intent is to hold all investments until maturity unless market, economic or specific investment
concerns warrant a sale of securities. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the
fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the
intent and ability of the Corporation to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow
for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
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Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4.

Note 5,

Investment Securities (Continued)

At December 31, 2007, five (5) mortgage-backed securities, three (3} corporate bonds, sixty (60) equities, and
fifteen (15) obligations of state and political subdivisions had unrealized losses. Management has determined
that no declines are deemed to be other than temporary.

At December 31, 2006, three (3) mortgage-backed securities, two (2} corporate bonds, eighteen (18) equities,
and twenty-eight (28) obligations of state and political subdivisions had unrealized losses. Management has
determined that no declines are deemed to be other than temporary.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is summarized as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(000 omitted)
Balance at beginning of period $3,610 $2,129 $ 1,902
Recoveries 80 45 54
Provision for possible loan losses charged to income 600 360 270
Additions for acquired credit risk 0 1.163 ¢
Total 4,290 3,697 2,226
Losses 436 87 97
Balance at end of period 33,854 $3,610 $2,129

Premises, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures

Accumulated  Depreciated

Cost Depreciation Cost
(000 omitted)
--------------- 2007 --mcmmmm e
Premises (including land $ 1,626) $12,674 $ 4,504 $ 8,170
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 7,238 5,547 1,691
Totals, December 31, 2007 19.912 $10,051 § 9.861
--------------- 2006-------------
Premises (including land $ 1,626) $11,910 $4216 § 7,694
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 7.260 5,279 1.981
Totals, December 31, 2006 $19,170 $9,495 3§ 9,675

Depreciation expense amounted to § 837,005 in 2007, $ 667,381 in 2006, and $ 387,625 in 2005.
Real Estate Owned Other Than Premises

Included in real estate owned other than premises are certain properties which are located adjacent to the main
office, as well as in Chambersburg, Mercersburg, and Waynesboro. The Corporation intends to hold these
properties for future expansion purposes in order to protect its competitive position, and are renting certain of
these properties until such time as the Corporation decides they are needed. The depreciated cost of these
properties was § 2,288,000 and $ 1,904,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Also included in real estate owned other than premises at December 31, 2007 is foreclosed property of § 25,000.
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Note 6. Loans

Related Party Loans

The Corporation’s subsidiary has granted loans to the officers and directors of the Corporation and its subsidiary
and to their associates. Related party loans are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates
and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons and do not
involve more than normal risk of collectibility. The aggregate dollar amount of these loans and the related
activity for 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

2007 2006
Beginning balance $ 4,527,038 $ 2,057,378
Balance acquired in merger 0 3,546,704
New loans 1,096,500 2,588,000
Repayments (_1.376,363) (__3.,665,044)
Ending balance 54,247,175 $4,527,038
Outstanding loans to bank employees totaled $ 3,141,609 and § 2,809,261 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,

respectively.

The following table shows the maturities and sensitivities of loans to changes in interest rates based upon
contractual maturities and terms as of December 31, 2007.

Due over 1
Due within  but within 5 Dueover5  Nonaccruing
one year years years loans Total

(000 omitted)
Loans at predetermined

interest rates 530,633 $ 40,909 ¥ 43,255 $ 543 $ 115340
Loans at floating or

adjustable interest

rates 36,615 37.263 205407 3.854 283,139
Total (1) $.67,248 $78172  §248.662 34,397 $398479

(1) These amounts have not been reduced by the allowance for possible loan losses.
Loans Serviced for Others

During 2003, the Corporation began participation in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh’s (FHLB)
Mortgage Partnership Finance Program. Under this program, certain loans are sold to FHLB, but the
Corporation retains the servicing rights to these loans. The outstanding balance of loans sold to FHLB was

Loan Maturities
$27,783,800 and § 20,546,300 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
|
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Note 7.

Note 8.

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Corporation is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business
to meet the financial needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.
These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Those
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement
the Corporation has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Corporation’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written is
represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Corporation uses the same credit policies in
making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on balance sheet instruments.

Contract or Notional Amount

2007 2006
(000 omitted)
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit
risk at December 31:

Commitments to extend credit $ 45,949 $ 48,690
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees 3200 3065

written —e= —=

$49,158 $ 51,755

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The
Corporation evaluates cach customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Corporation upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit
evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory, real estate,
equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written are conditional commitments issued by the Corporation
to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support
public and private borrowing arrangements., The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the
same as that involved in extending loans to customers. The Corporation holds collateral supporting those
commitments when deemed necessary by management.

Neonaccrual/Impaired Loans

Loans 90 days or more past due (still aceruing interest) were as follows at December 31:

(000 omitted)
2007 2006 2005
Commercial loans $ 0 F 0 $ 0
Real estate mortgages 993 336 36
Consumer loans 8 57 _23
Total 51,001 3393 359
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Note 8.

Note 9.

Nonaccrual/lmpaired Loans (Continued)

The following table shows the principal balances of nonaccrual loans as of December 31:

(000 omitted)
2007 2006 2005
Nonaccrual loans $4397 3 688 $ 44
Interest income that would have been
accrued at original contract rates $ 229 $ 51 $ 3
Amount recognized as interest income 73 29 2
Foregone revenue 5 156 5 22 $ 1

The following table reflects impairment of loans recognized in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

2007 2006
(000 Omitted)
Recorded investment at December 31 $ 7,059 $932
Average recorded investment during the year 7,408 917
Allowance for loan losses related to impaired loans at December 31 940 420
Interest income recognized for cash payments received during the year 290 42

Employee Benefit Plans

The Corporation maintains a profit-sharing plan for those employees who meet the eligibility requirements set
forth in the plan. Contributions to the plan are based on Corporation performance and are at the discretion of the
Corporation’s Board of Directors. Substantially all of the Corporation's employees are covered by the plan and
the contributions charged to operations were $ 352,100, $ 240,000, and $ 229,900, for 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

As a result of the merger with FNB Financial Corporation in 2006, the Corporation acquired a 401(k) plan
which covered all employees of the former FNB Financial Corporation who had attained the age of 20 and
completed six months of full-time service. The plan provided for the Corporation to match employee
contributions to a maximum of 5% of annual compensation. The Corporation also had the option to make
additional discretionary contributions to the plan based upon the Corporation’s performance and subject to
approval by the Board of Directors. The Corporation’s total expense for this plan was § 83,528 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. This plan was terminated as of December 31, 2006. All employees covered under
this plan were moved to the Corporation’s profit sharing plan effective on that date.

The Corporation maintains a deferred compensation plan for certain key executives and directors, which
provides supplemental retirement and life insurance benefits. The plan is partially funded by life insurance on
the participants, which lists the bank as beneficiary. The estimated present value of future benefits to be paid,
which are included in other liabilities, amounted to $ 705,942 and $ 718,390 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Annuat expense of $ 73,446, $ 76,008, and $ 79,121 was charged to operations for 2007, 2006,
and 2003, respectively.

During 1999 a director who was a participant of the plan deceased. The present value of this participant’s
benefits, which will be paid out over ten years, was $ 32,811, § 63,052, and § 90,923, as of December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005, respectively.

.23-




Note 9.

Note 10.

Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

As aresult of the merger in 2006 with FNB Financial Corporation, the Comoration acquired three supplemental
retirement benefit plans for directors and executive officers. These plans are funded with single premium life
insurance on the plan participants. The cash value of the life insurance policies is an unrestricted asset of the
Corporation. The estimated present value of future benefits to be paid totaled $ 493,726 and $ 486,417 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which is included in other liabilities. Total annual expense for these
plans amounted to $ 34,159 and $ 123,149 for 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Corporation has a supplemental group term retirement plan which covers certain officers of the
Corporation. This plan is funded with single premium life insurance on the plan participants. The cash
surrender value of the policies is an unrestricted asset of the Corporation. The estimated present value of the
future benefits to be paid totaled $ 186,295 and $ 142,775 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Total
annual expense for this plan was $ 78,455, $ 66,225, and § 60,529, for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The Corporation maintains an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) that generally covers all employees who
have completed one year of service and attained the age of twenty. Contributions to the plan are determined
annually by the Board of Directors as a percentage of the participants’ total compensation. Compensation for
the plan is defined as compensation paid including salary reduction under Sections 125 and 401(k) of the [RS
Code but excluding nontaxable fringe benefits and any compensation over $ 200,000. The payments of benefits
to participants are made at death, disability, termination or retirement. Contributions to the plan for all
employees charged to operations amounted to $ 220,654, $ 144,000, and $ 137,224, for 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. All shares held in the plan are considered issued and outstanding for earnings per share
calculations and all dividends earned on ESOP shares are charged against retained earnings, the same as other
outstanding shares. Total shares of the plan were 99,507 and 94,907 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Stock Option Plans

In 1996 the Corporation implemented two nonqualified stock option plans, which are described below. The
compensation cost that has been charged against income for those plans was $ 104,235, § 108,615, and
$ 71,004, for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The first plan is for select key employees. This plan granted options for up to 1,603, 1,488, and 1,498 shares at
a purchase price of $ 1.00 per share for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
These options can be exercised only by the key employees during his/her lifetime.

The second plan is for outside directors. This plan granted options to purchase 4,326, 4,062, and 4,086 shares
for each director at $ 44.75, § 47.75, and $ 43.75 per share for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005, respectively, which was based on the market value of the stock at the grant date. Options are vested one
year following the grant date and expire upon the earlier of 120 months following the date of the grant or one
year following the date on which a director ceases to serve in such a capacity for the corporation. At December
31, 2007 the range of exercise prices was from § 22.25 to § 47.75 per share. At December 31, 2007, there were
00,745 shares that can still be granted under these plans.
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Note 10. Stock Option Plans (Continued)

A summary of the status of the Corporation’s two fixed stock option plans as of December 31 is as follows:

------ 2007 ------ ceeeen2006---m-= 2005------
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Price Per Price Per Price Per
Fixed Options Shares Share Shares Share Shares Share
Qutstanding at beginning of year 32674 $32 30,006 $29 27,960 $25
Granted 5,929 33 5,550 35 5,584 32
Exercised 3,745 10 2,882 3,538 7
Forfeited/expired __ o _ 90 __ 0 _0 0 _0
Outstanding at end of year 34858 $34 32,674 532 30,006 529
Options exercisable at year end 30,532 28,612 25,920
Weighted average fair value of
options per share granted
during the year $18.19 $19.57 $8.31
Qutstanding options at December 31, 2007 consist of the following:
Shares
Shares Exercisable Remaining Exercise
Outstanding (Vested) Contractual Life Price
2,856 2,856 1 year 22,25
2,720 2,720 2 years 32.13
2,600 2,600 3 years 24.37
3,436 3,436 4 years 20.13
2,880 2,880 5 years 2425
3,248 3,248 6 years 30.00
4,644 4,644 7 years 38.75
4,086 4,086 8 years 43.75
4,062 4,062 9 years 47.75
4,326 0 10 vears 44.75
Total/Average 34,858 30,532 €ars 53434

The total intrinsic value of options exercised under both plans in 2007 and 2006 was $ 129,000 and $ 110,620,
respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was $ 289,000 and § 424,056 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing

model with the following weighted-average assumptions.

2007 2006 2005
Dividend yield 2.20% 3.01% 2.0%
Expected life — Director 8 8 8
Expected life — Officer 0.25 0.25 8
Expected volatility 13.72% 19.79% 12.64%
Risk-free interest rate — Director 4.68% 4.43% 4.05%
Risk-free interest rate — Officer 5.09% 4.30% 4.05%
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Note 11. Deposits

Included in savings deposits at December 31 are NOW and Money Market Account balances totaling
$ 183,246,000 and $ 141,168,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Time deposits of $ 100,000 and over aggregated $ 33,013,000 and $ 34,338,000 at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. At December 31, 2007 and 2006 the scheduled maturities of time deposits of § 100,000 and
over are as follows:

2007 2006
(000 omitted)
Maturity
Three months or less $ 7,149 $ 7,549
Over three months through
twelve months 18,228 14,883
Over twelve months _ 1.636 _11.506
$£33.013 $ 34,338
At December 31, 2007 scheduled maturities of all time deposits are as follows:
(000 omitted)
2008 §£131,229
2009 16,909
2010 12,888
2011 4,999
2012 3.141
§ 169,166

The aggregate amount of demand deposits reclassified as loan balances were $ 93,583 and $ 189,674 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Corporation accepts deposits of the officers, directors, and employees on the same terms including interest
rates, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons. The aggregate dollar
amount of deposits of officers, directors and employees totaled $ 3,809,880 and $ 3,910,260 at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

As a result of the merger with FNB Financial Corporation, the Corporation has included in time deposits Index
Powered Certificates of Deposit (“1PCD’s”) totaling $ 5,709 at December 31, 2007 and § 231,563 at
December 31, 2006. The IPCD product is offered through a program with the Federal Home Loan Bank
(FHLB). The ultimate pay off at maturity, which is five years after issuance, is the initial deposited principal
plus the appreciation in the S&P 500 Index (“S&P Call Option™). The S&P Call Option is considered an
embedded derivative designated as a non-hedging item. The change in fair value of the S&P Calt Option
resulted in a gain of $ 26,671 and $ 71,873 for 2007 and 2006, respectively, which is included in other income.

In order to hedge its risk associated with the IPCD Product, the Corporation has entered into a derivative
contract with the FHLB whereby the Corporation pays FHLB a fixed rate interest charge (ranging from 4.20%
to 4.97%) in return for a guarantee that the FHLB will pay the Corporation the cash equivalent of the growth in
the S&P 500 Index due at the IPCD maturity date. The change in fair value of the FHLB Derivative Contract
resulted in a loss of $ 23,029 and $ 49,789 for 2007 and 2006, respectively, which is included in other income.
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Note 12,

Note 13.

Liabilities for Other Borrewed Funds

The total amount available under lines of credit at other area banks at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was

$ 18,900,000 and $ 13,000,000, respectively. Of this amount, § 10,655,000 and $ 9,545,000 were outstanding at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Interest on these lines ranged from 4.25% to 8.75% for 2007 and
2006.

In addition, $ 340,988 and $§ 329,986 of the balance of liabilities for other borrowed funds at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, represents the balance of the Treasury Tax and Loan Investment Program. The
Corporation ¢lected 1o enter into this program in accordance with federal regulations. This program permits the
Corporation to borrow these Treasury Tax and Loan funds by executing an open-ended interest bearing note to
the Federal Reserve Bank. Interest is payable monthly and is computed at 1/4% below the Federal Funds
interest rate. The note is secured by U.S. Government obligations with a par value of $ 316,120 and $ 381,087
at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Corporation also had the following borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank:

2007 2006
Interest Interest
Loan Type Rate Balance Rate Balance Maturity
Fixed rate 4.45% $ 1,500,000 4.45% $ 1,500,000 08/05/25
Fixed rate 6.64 112,713 6.64 120,767 07/17/17
Convertible 6.23 2,250,000 6.23 2,250,000 08/30/10
Convertible 5.83 2,000,000 5.83 2,000,000 08/10/10
Convertible 5.975 500,000 5.975 500,000 07/21/10
Convertible 5.25 5,000,000 5.25 5,000,000 04/06/11
Convertible N/A 0 5.01 5,000,000 11/24/08
Convertible 6.54 500,000 6.54 500,000 07/12/10
Convertible 5.395 5,000,000 5.395 5,000,000 09/15/08
Convertible 3.99 5,000,000 3.99 5,000,000 11/27/12
Convertible 4.13 5,000,000 4.13 5.000,000 05/07/18
26,862,713 31,870,767
Purchase accounting fair
value adjustment ( 123,360) { 103.324)
$26 353 31 4

Total maximum borrowing capacity from Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31, 2007 was $ 264,308,000.
Collateral for borrowings consists of certain securities and the Corporation’s 1-4 family mortgage loans totaling
approximately $ 266 million at December 31, 2007.

Income Taxes

The Corporation and its subsidiary, the Bank, file income tax returns in the U. 8. federal jurisdiction and the
state of Pennsylvania. The Bank also files an income tax return in the state of Maryland. With few exceptions,
the Corporation is no longer subject to U. S. federal, state and local income tax examination by tax authorities

for years prior to 2004.

The Corporation adopted the provisions of FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, on January 1,
2007 with no impact on the financial statements.
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Note 13. Income Taxes (Continued)

Included in the balance sheet at December 31, 2007 are tax positions related to loan charge-offs for which the
ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility.
Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting, other than interest and penalties, the disallowance of the
shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax rate but would accelerate the payment of
cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The components of income tax expense are summarized as follows:

2007 2006 2005
{000 omitted)
Current year provision:
Federal $ 2,693 $ 2,405 $1,893
State ( 20) 326 205
Deferred income taxes (benefit) (342 ( 13) (7D
$2.331 $2,718 $2.027

Federal income taxes were computed after reducing pretax accounting income for non-taxable income in the
amount of § 1,435,976, § 1,466,777, and § 1,555,212, for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
A reconciliation of the effective applicable income tax rate to the federal statutory rate is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Federal income tax rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
Increase resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 3 3.6 2.8
Reduction resulting from:
Nontaxable interest income 9.4 69 8.1
Effective income tax rate 24.9% 30.7% 287%

Deferred tax assets have been provided for deductible temporary differences related to the allowance for loan
loss, deferred compensation, and interest on nonaccrual loans. Deferred tax habilities have been provided for
taxable temporary differences related to depreciation and unrealized gains on securities available for sale. The
net deferred taxes included in the accompanying balance sheets at December 31 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Deferred Tax Assets
Bad debts $1,268 $ 1,077 § 573
Deferred compensation 408 410 253
Stock options 25 13 0
Amortization of intangibles 137 54 0
1,838 1,554 826
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation ( 185 ( 187) ( 61)
Unrealized gain on investment securities ( 2,715 { 5,895) { 5,290)
Merger-related activity 0 { 68) 0
Purchase accounting fair value adjustments {__595) (703 0
{(_3.493%) (_6.853) (_5.351)
Net deferred tax (liability) (8.1.657) (£.5,299) ($.4,525)

The Corporation has not recorded a valuation allowance for the deferred tax assets as management feels that it is
more likely than not that they will be ultimately realized.
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Note 14. Tower Bancorp Inc. (Parent Company Only) Financial Information

The following are the condensed balance sheets, statements of income, and statements of cash flows for the

parent company:
Balance Sheets

December 31
Assets 2007 2006
(000 omitted)
Cash b 6 $ 0
Securities available for sale 33,861 43,153
Investment in subsidiaries 62,655 58,874
Other assets 189 41
Total assets $ 96,711 $ 102,068
Liabilities
Other liabilities § 3,942 $ 7,270
Notes payable — subsidiary 3,700 3,700
Notes payable - other 10,655 9.545
Total liabilities 18,297 20,515
Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, no par vaiue; authorized 5,000,000 shares, issued
2,420,481 shares 2,225 2,225
Additional paid-in capital 34,831 34,810
Retained earnings 40,696 36,148
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4.558 10,731
82,310 83,914
Less: Cost of Treasury stock, 98,055 shares — 2007;
63,278 shares — 2006 (__3.89%) ( 2361
Total stockholders’ equity 78.414 81,553
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity § 96,711 $ 102,068
Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005
(000 omitted)
Income
Dividends 3 640 $ 594 $ 541
Net gain on sale of securities 1,900 3,995 2,426
Cash dividends from wholly-owned subsidiary 2,489 2,018 2,976
5,029 6,605 5943
Expenses
Interest 993 795 408
Taxes 392 1,154 689
Postage and printing 61 70 37
Management fees 120 120 108
Professional fees 288 510 368
Other expenses 4 28 21
1,858 2,677 1,631
Income before equity in undistributed income 3,1 3,928 4,312
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary 3.866 2,204 720
Net Income $ 2,037 $6,132 $5,032

-29.




Note 14.

Note 15,

Note 16.

Tower Bancorp Inc. (Parent Company Only) Financial Information (Continued)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005
(000 omitted)
Cash flows operating activities:
Net income $7,037 $ 6,132 $ 5,032
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activitics:

Net gain on sale of investment securities ( L900) ( 3,995) ( 2,426)
Granting stock options 108 109 0
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries ( 3866) ( 2,203) ( 7200
Increase in other assets ( 85 ( 48 ( 147)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities {158 670 (__ 286)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,136 664 1.453
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities ( 3,200y (11,903) ( 35,875
Cash paid in merger 0 ( 2370 0
Sales of investment securities 5,000 11,377 6,095
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,800 (_2,896) 220
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchase of treasury stock (1,853 ( 813y ( 287)
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 302 226 355
Dividends paid ( 2,489) ( 2,017) ( 2416)
Net proceeds from short-term borrowings 1.110 4815 630
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (2.930) 2,211 (_1,665)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 6 ( 21 8
Cash, beginning 0 21 13
Cash, ending h 6 8 0 5 21
Compensating Balance Arrangements

Included in cash and due from banks are required deposit balances at the Federal Reserve of $ 615,000 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 and required deposit balances at Equifax of § 54,745 and § 51,804 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These are maintained to cover processing costs and service charges.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Corporation grants agribusiness, commercial and residential loans to customers throughout the Cumberland
Valley area; Franklin and Fulton Counties, Pennsylvania; and Washington County, Maryland. The Corporation
maintains a diversified loan portfolio and evaluates each customer’s credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis.
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, 60% and 61% of the Corporation’s loan portfolio is concentrated
in mortgages secured by 1-4 family properties, and 17% and 13% is concentrated in commercial and industrial
loans. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Corporation upon the extension of credit,
is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but generally includes
equipment and real estate.

The Corporation maintains deposit balances at several correspondent banks, which provide check collection and
item processing services to the bank. The balances with these correspondent banks, at times, exceed federally
insured limits, which management considers to be a normal business risk.
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Note 17.

Note 18,

Commitments and Contingencies

The Corporation leases its facilities in Mercersburg under a noncancellable operating lease that expires June 30,
2008 with the right to extend the lease until September 30, 2008. Total annual rent expense charged to
operations was $ 39,300, $ 22,200, and $ 22,200 for 2007, 2006, and 2005.

The Corporation leased its facilities in Chambersburg under a noncancellable lease that expired in September
2007. Total rent expense charged to operations under the noncancellable lease was $ 7,200 for 2007 and $ 9,600
for 2006 and 2005.

During 2007, the Corporation entered into an agreement to lease other Chambersburg facilities under a
noncancellable operating basis. Under the terms, it is expected to begin in June 2008 and expire June 2018 with
the option to renew for two additional five-year periods with subsequent rental amounts subject to a Rental
Escalation Article. In addition to monthly rent payments, the Corporation will pay its proportionate share of any
ad valorem and real estate taxes levied or assessed on the property. The rent expense charged for 2007 was
ZEro.

During 2005, the Corporation entered into a lease for its facilities in Hagerstown at Eastern Boulevard under a
noncancellable operating lease that expires in 2020. Beginning June 1, 2006, the lease will be subjected to a
CPI increase not to exceed 5% per year. Total annual rent expense charged to operations was $ 102,200,

$ 96,000 and $ 56,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The Corporation leases a site for an Automatic Teller Machine under a noncancellable operating lease that
expires in 2013 with the right to negotiate an extended lease of two additional five year terms. Total rent
expense charged to operations was $§ 10,800 for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Following is a schedule, by years, of future minirnum rentals under the lease agreements as of December 31,
2007 based on current lease terms:

Year Ending
2008 $ 147,000
2009 151,000
2010 151,000
2011 151,000
2012 151,000
Thereafter 1,000.000

$ 1,751,000

Total rents paid under operating leases were $ 175,718, § 151,960 and $ 106,317 for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

The Corporation is an occasional party to legal actions arising in the ordinary course of its business. In the
opinion of management, Tower has adequate legal defenses and/or insurance coverage respecting any and each
of these actions and does not believe that they will materially affect the Corporation’s operations or financial
condition.

Intangible Assets

On June 1, 2006, Tower completed the merger of FNB Financial Corporation (“FNB”). Prior to completion of
the Merger, The First National Bank of McConnellsburg, FNB’s sole banking subsidiary, was a nationally-
chartered commercial bank. Immediately after the merger, The First National Bank of McConnellsburg became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tower. The First National Bank of McConnellsburg merged with and into First
National Bank of Greencastle on August 26, 2006.

In the merger, FNB shareholders received either (.8663 shares of Tower common stock for each share of FNB
common stock or $ 39.00 in cash for each share held, depending on sharcholder elections and subject to the
allocation provisions of the Merger Agreement. Tower acquired all of the outstanding shares of FNB’s common
stock. In connection with the Merger, Tower paid to the former shareholders of FNB in the aggregate, § 2,363
million in cash and issued to the former shareholders of FNB, in the aggregate, 640,381 shares of Tower’s
common stock.
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Note 18. Intangible Assets

This transaction resulted in intangible assets and goodwill as follows:

As of December 31, 2007 As of December 31, 2006
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Ameount Amortization Amount Amortization
(000 omitted) {000 omitted)
Amortized intangible assets
Core deposit relationships $ 2,343 3§ 649 § 2,343 3 248

Amortization expense amounted to $ 401,161 and $ 248,507 for 2007 and 2006, respectively, and is included in
other operating expenses. The estimated amortization expense for the next five years is as follows:

(000 omitted)
2008 $359
2009 316
2010 273
201 231
2012 188
Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as
follows:
2007 2006
(000 Omitted)
Beginning balance $16535 § 0
Goodwill acquired during the year 0 16,535
Other adjustments 23 0
Ending balance $16,558 316,535
As of December 31, 2007, the Corporation found the goodwill acquired in the merger with FNB to not be
impaired.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

During 2007, the Corporation recorded the value of mortgage servicing rights. The balance of this valuation
was § 300,572 as of December 31, 2007, This asset is being amortized over the life of the related loans.
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Note 19.

Note 20.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments were as follows at December 31:

------- 2007 --cccnae meeee - 2006-------
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 16,770 $ 16,770 $ 14,128 $14,128
Federal funds sold 20,081 20,081 6,530 6,530
Interest bearing deposits with banks 0 0 97 97
Securities available for sale 83,846 83,846 87,631 87,631
Loans receivable 399,158 402,423 391,419 392,227
Cash surrender value of life insurance 10,768 10,768 10,683 10,683
Accrued interest receivable 1,861 1,861 1,841 1,841
Restricted bank stock 2,914 2,914 3,123 3,123
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Time certificates 169,166 169,628 174,140 174,264
Other deposits 270,764 270,764 235,695 235,695
Other borrowed funds 37,735 38,115 41,643 41,741
Accrued interest payable 999 999 994 994
Regulatory Matters

Dividends paid by Tower Bancorp Inc. are generally provided from the subsidiary bank's dividends to Tower.
The Federal Reserve Board, which regulates bank holding companies, establishes guidelines which indicate that
cash dividends should be covered by current year earnings and the debt to equity ratio of the holding company
must be below thirty percent. The Bank, as a national bank, is subject to the dividend restrictions set forth by
the Comptroller of the Currency. Under such restrictions, the Bank may not, without prier approval of the
Comptroller of the Currency, declare dividends in excess of the sum of the current year’s eamings (as defined)
plus retained earnings (as defined) from the prior two years. Dividends that the Bank could declare without
approval of the Comptroller of the Currency, amounted to approximately $ 7,686,266 and $ 5,960,589 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Corporation is also subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements ¢an initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the corporation’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines, the corporation is required to maintain minimum
capital ratios. The “leverage ratio”, compares capital to adjusted total balance sheet assets while risk-based
ratios compare capital to risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet activity in order to make capital levels more
sensitive to risk profiles of individual banks. A comparison of Tower Bancorp’s capital ratios to regulatory
minimums at December 31 is as follows:

Tower Bancorp Regulatory
Minimum
2007 2006 Requirements
Leverage ratio 10.03% 10.36% 4%
Risk-based capital ratio
Tier I (core capital) 14.95% 14.79% 4%
Combined Tier I and Tier II (core capital
plus allowance for loan losses) 16.74% 17.67% 8%
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Note 20. Regulatory Matters (Continued)

As of December 31, 2007 the most recent notification from the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
categorized the financial institution as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the

financial institution’s category.,
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

Income (000 omitted)

Interest income
Interest expense
Provision for loan losscs
Net interest income after
provision for loan losses
Other operating income
Other operating expenses
Income before income taxes
Applicable income tax
Net income

2007 — 2,345,286
2006 — 2,103,487

Net income
Cash dividend
Book value

Year-End Balance Sheet Figures

(000 omitted)

Total assets

Net loans

Total investment securities
Deposits — noninterest bearing
Deposits - interest bearing
Total deposits

Total stockholders’ equity

Ratios

Average equity/average assets
Return on average equity
Return on average assets

SELECTED FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL DATA

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$33363 $25799 $16,494 $14,126 $ 14,350
14,010 9,873 5,152 4,011 4,267
600 360 270 360 360
18,753 15,566 11,072 9,755 9,723
6,711 7,324 4,802 4,591 4,805
16096 __14.040 8.815 7,934 7.756
9,368 8,850 7,059 6,412 6,772
2,331 2,718 2,027 1,689 1,821
$ 7037 $_6132 $ 5032 § 4723 $ 4951

2007
$ 3.00
1.06
3343

2007

$ 561,636
394,625
86,760
46,860
393,070
439,930
78,414

14.79
8.35
1.24

2005 - 1,727,055
2004 - 1,727,856

2006
$ 292
4
38.78

2006

$ 542,167
386,809
90,754
47,548
362,287
409,835
81,553

14.80
9.06
1.34

-35.

2005
$ 291
92
28.02

2005

$ 352,223
227,179
85,334
29,162
232,016
261,178
48,389

13.85
10.90
1.51

Per share amounts are based on the following weighted average shares outstanding.

2003 - 1,733,477

2004
$ 273
1.34
25.51

2004

$ 316,890
227,567
65,729
23,944
206,346
230,290
44,071

13.76
11.24
1.55

2003

3

2.86
1.26
23.33

2003

$ 300,738

21
6
1

18

2,203
6,295
8,412
8,553

206,965
40,438

13.01
14.46
1.80




TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

($ 000 omitted except
per share}

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net intergst income
alter provision
for loan losses
Other income
Other expenses
Operating income
bzfore income
taxes
Applicable income taxes
Net income

Net income applicable to
common stock

Per share data:

Net income

2007 2006

--------- Quarter Ended---------  ---------Quarter Ended ---------

Mar.31 June30 Sept.30 Dec.31 Mar.31 June30 Sept.30 Dec.31
$8,182 $8294 $8487 $8400 $4642 $5636 $7,724 $7,797
3.445 3.537 3.593 3435 1.573 1.997 3.124 3.179
4,737 4,757 4,894 4,965 3,069 3,639 4,600 4,618
150 150 150 150 60 70 100 130
4,587 4,607 4,744 4,815 3,009 3,569 4,500 4,488
2,275 1,647 1,607 1,182 1,074 1,810 2,185 2,255
4,200 3,969 3.849 4.078 2.461 2921 4,463 4195
2,662 2,285 2,502 1,919 1,622 2,458 2,222 2,548
693 572 684 382 412 678 712 916
$199 51713 $1818 $1537 §$1210 51780 31510 $1,632
$ 8 3 72 $ 78 $§ 66 $ 70 $§ 92 § 61 3 .69
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Assets
Investment Securities:
Taxable interest income
Nontaxable interest income
Total investment securities
Leans, including non-accrual loans,
(net of unearned discounts)
Interest-bearing deposits with banks
Federal funds sold
Total interest earning assets
Restricted bank stock
Allowance for loan tosses
Cash and due from banks
Bank premises and equipment
Other assets
Tatal assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Interest bearing demand deposits
Savings deposits
Time deposits
Borrowed funds

Total interest bearing Habilities
Demand deposits
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities & stockholders’

equity

Net interest income (spread)

Net interest margin

Interest Rates and Interest Differential

Years Ended December 31
Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest
----------- b1y R B Ly . . R
(000 omitied) (000 omitted)
5 56,521 § 1,618 2.9% 5 62562 § 1,800
28,043 1,278 4,9% 26,107 1,227
84,564 2,896 3.4% 88,669 3,027
391,695 28,490 7.3% 318,819 22,384
61 16 26.2% 506 40
38,579 £,961 1% 7,109 348
514899 § 33363 6.5% 415,103 § 25799
2,972 3,023
{ 3318 4 2,955)
11,413 11,196
11,496 8821
. 32683 22,064
§__ 560643 i 437282
H 182,602 § 4,138 2.3% $ 120,849 % 1,893
44,038 191 0.4% 42,266 175
173,644 7,599 4.4% 136,159 5,310
37,236 2,082 5.6% 44,608 2495
431520 & 14010 32% 343882 § G873
41,528 38,600
6,330 7.074
485,378 389,556
84,267 67,696
i 500,643 i 457252
12353 Ll 15926
184
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2.9%
4.7%
3.4%

7.0%
1.9%
4.5%

1.6%
0.4%
3.9%
5.6%

Average
Balance Interest
----------- 2005 --~---
{000 pmirted)
s 53,360 § 1,266
20.895 1065
74,255 2,331
228,848 13,943
1,724 72
4,392 148
309,219 § 16,494
2,374
{ 2,03%)
9,542
5,037
9,334
333467
N 105492 § 1,052
30,936 93
84,308 2,280
36.543 1,727
257,279 § 1152
23,435
6,572
287,286
46,18
i J3)de7
11342

2.4%
5.1%
3.1%

6.1%
12%
4%

1.0%
0.3%
2.7%
4.7%
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest Income
l.oans (including non-accrual loans, net of unearned discounts)
Taxable investment securities
Nontaxable investment securities
Other short-term investments
Total interest income

Interest Expense
Interest bearing demand
3avings deposits
Time deposits
Borrowed funds
Total interest expense

Net interest income

Interest Income
Loans (including non-accrual loans, net of unearned discounts)
Taxable investment securities
Nontaxable investment securities
Other short-term investments
Total interest income

Interest Expense
Interest bearing demand
Savings deposits
Time deposits
Borrowed funds
Total interest expense

Net interest income

2007 Versus 2006
Increase (Decrease)
Due to Change in

Total

Average Average Increase

Volume Rate (Decrease)
{000 omitted)

$ 5,021 $ 1,085 $ 6,106
( 147) ( 35 ( 182)

133 ( 82) 51

1,737 (___148) 1,589

6,744 820 7.564

970 1,275 2,245

7 9 16

1,436 853 2,289
(___380) ( 33 (413

2,033 2.104 4.137

$3,427

2006 Versus 2005

Increase (Decrease)
Due to Change in

Total

Average Average Increase

Volume Rate (Decrease)
(000 omitted)

$ 5,488 $2,953 $ 8,441

292 242 534

262 ( 100) 162

73 95 168

6,115 3,190 9,305

154 687 341

34 48 82

1,400 1,630 3,030

388 380 768

1,976 2,745 4,721

$4,584

Changes which are attributed in part to velume and in part to rate are allocated in proportion to their relationships

to the amounts of changes.
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TOWER BANCORP INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY
MATURITIES OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES
December 31, 2007

The following table shows the maturities of investment securities at amortized cost as of
December 31, 2007, and weighted average yields of such securities. Yields are shown on a taxable equivaient

basis, assuming a 34% federal income tax rate.

After 1 After §
year but  years but
Within 1 within S within 10 After 10

year years years years Total
(000 omitted)
Bonds:
U.S. Government agencies/mortgage-
backed securities
Book value $ 13 % 3953 § 119 § 10,844 § 14,929
Yield 5.94% 4.03% 6.27% 4.98% 4.74%
State and municipal
Book value $ 3,006 $ 5683 % 11470 8 12370 § 32,529
Yield 4.10% 5.73% 6.14% 7.28% 6.31%
Other
Book value s 245 % 0% 03 1452 § 1.697
Yield 3.10% 0.00% 0.00% 5.91% 6.22%
Total book value $§ 3264 % 9636 § 11589 8§ 24666 §  49.155
Yield 4.41% 5.04% 6.13% 6.19% 5.83%
Equity Securities:
Total Equity Securities $ 27784
Yield 2.31%
Total Investment Securities § 76939
Yield 4.56%
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ITEM 2.

MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSICON AND ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is management's discussion and analysis of the significant
changes in the consclidated results of operations, capital resources and
liquidity presented in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial
st:atements for the Corporation. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with the preceding consolidated financial statements and
related footnotes, as well as the Corporation’s December 31, 2007 Annual
Report. Current performance does not guarantee and may not be indicative
of similar performance in the future.

In addition to historical information, this annual report contains
forward-locking statements. The forward-looking statements contained in
this report are subject to certain risks, assumpticns and uncertainties.
Because of the possibility o©f change in the underlying assumptions,
actual results could differ materially from those projected 1in the
forward-looking statements. Additional factors that might cause actual
rasults to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to:

s operating, legal and requlatory risks,

e economic, political and competitive forces affecting the
Corporation's services, and

e the risk that management's analyses of these risks could be
incorrect and/or that the strategies developed to address them
could be unsuccessful.

The Corporation's forward-looking statements are relevant only as of the
date on which the statements are made. By making forward-~looking
statements, the Corporation assumes no duty to update them to reflect
new, changing or unanticipated events or circumstances. Readers should
carefully review the risk factors described in other periodic reports and
public documents that the Corporaticon £files from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Disclesure of the Corporation's significant accounting policies 1is
included in Note 1 tec the consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation's Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2007. Some
oZ these policies are particularly sensitive, requiring significant
judgments, estimates and assumptions to be made by management.

The Bank peclicy related to the allowance for loan losses i1s considered to
be a critical accounting policy because the allowance for lecan losses
represents a particularly sensitive accounting estimate. The amount of
the allowance is based on management’s evaluation of the collectibility
of the loan portfolico, including the nature of the loan portfeolioc, credit
concentrations, trends in historical loss experience, specific impaired
leans, and economic conditions.
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The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for leoan

losses charged toc expense. Lecans are charged against the allowance for
loan losses when management believes that the collectibility of the
principal 1is unlikely. The allowance is an amcunt that management

believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on existing loans
that may become uncollectible, based on evaluations of the collectibility
cf locans and prior lcan loss experience. The evaluations take into
consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the
loan portfolio, overall portfolic quality, review of specific problem
loans, and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers’
ability to pay.

FUTURE IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, ™Fair Value

Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 defines fair wvalue, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting
principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS

157 does not require any new fair wvalue measurements, but rather,
provides enhanced guidance to other pronouncements that require or permit

assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. This Statement is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those years. As of

December 1, 2007, the FASB has proposed a one-year deferral for the
implementation of the Statement for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
ligbilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair wvalue in the
financial statements on a nonrecurring basis. The Corporation does not
expect the implementation of SFAS 157 to have a material impact on its
financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159). This Statement permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at
fair wvalue. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by providing entities with the oppeortunity to mitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and
liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions. The fair wvalue option established by this Statement permits
all entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair walue at
specified election dates. A business entity shall report unrealized gains
and losses on items for which the fair wvalue option has been elected in
earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair walue option may be
applied instrument by instrument and is irrevocable. SFAS 159 is
effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that
begins after November 15, 2007, with early adoption available in certain
circumstances. The Corporation does not expect the implementation of
SFAS 159 to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 141 (R), “Business Combinations” (SFAS 141 (R)). The
Statement replaces SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”, This Statement
retains the fundamental requirements of SFAS 141 that the acquisition
method of accounting be used for all business combinations and for an
acquirer to be identified for each business combination. SFAS 141(R) is
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effective for acquisition dates on or after the beginning of an entity’s
first year annual reporting period that begins after December 15, 2008.
The Corporation does not expect the implementation of SFAS 141 (R} to have
a material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

St.atements an Amendment of ARB No. 51" (SFAS 160). The Statement will
significantly change the financial accounting and reporting of
noncontrolling {or minority) interests in consolidated financial
statements. SFAS 160 is effective as of the beginning of an entity'’s
first fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2008, with early
adoption permitted. The Corporation does not expect the implementation

of SFAS 160 to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF 06-
04. This pronouncement affects the recording of post retirement costs of
iasurance of bank owned life insurance policies in instances where the
Corporation has promised a continuation of life insurance coverage to
persons post retirement. EITF 06-04 requires that a liability equal to
the present value of the cost of post retirement insurance be recorded
during the insured employee’s term of service. The terms of this
prenouncement require the initial recording of this 1liability with
corresponding adjustment to retained earnings to reflect the
implementation of the pronouncement. This EITF becomes effective for
fiscal vyears beginning after December 15, 2007. The Corporation is
evaluating the effect that EITF 06-4 will have on its balance sheet when
implemented in the first quarter of 2008.

In November 2006, the EITF issued “Accounting for Ccllateral Assignment
Split-Deollar Life 1Insurance Arrangements” (EITF 06-10). In this
pronouncement, a consensus was reached that an employer shcould recognize
a liability for the postretirement benefit related to a collateral
assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement {in which the employee
is the owner of the policy) in accordance with either SFAS 106 or APB
Opinion No. 12, as appropriate, if the employer has agreed to maintain a
life insurance policy during the employee's retirement or provide the
employee with a death benefit based on the substantive agreement with the
employee. A consensus also was reached that an employer should recognize
and measure an asset based on the nature and substance of the collateral
assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement, The consensuses are
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, including
interim periods within those fiscal vyears, with early application
permitted. The Corporation is evaluating the effect that EITF 06-10 will
have on its financial statements when implemented.

“n February 2007, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 158-1, ™“Conforming
Amendments to the Illustrations in FASB Statements No. 87, No. 88 and No.
.06 and to the Related Staff Implementation Guides.” This FSP provides
conforming amendments to the illustrations in SFAS 87, 88, and 106 and to
related staff implementation guides as a result of the issuance of SFAS
158. The conforming amendments made by this FSP are effective as of the
effective dates of SFAS 158. The unaffected guidance that this FSP
codifies into SFAS 87, 88, and 106 does not contain new requirements and
~herefore does not require a separate effective date or transition
method. The Corporation does not expect the implementation of FSP No.
TAS 158-1 to have a material impact on its financial statements.
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In November 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, “Written Loan Commitments Recorded at
Fair Value Through Earnings” (SAB 109). SAB 109 expresses the current
view of the staff that the expected net future cash flows related to the
associated servicing of the lcan should be included in the measurement of
all written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through
earnings. SEC registrants are expected to apply the views in Questicn 1
of SAB 109 on a prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued
or medified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15, 2007. The
Corporation does not expect the implementation of SAB 109 to have a
material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110, "“Use
of a Simplified Method in Developing Expected Term of Share Options” (SAB
110). SAB 110 expresses the current view of the staff that it will
accept a company’s election to use the simplified method discussed in SAB
107 for estimating the expected term of ™plain wvanilla” share options
regardless of whether the company has sufficient information to make more
refined estimates. The staff noted that it understands that detailed
information about employee exercise patterns may not be widely available
by December 31, 2007. Accordingly, the staff will continue to accept,
under certain circumstances, the use of the simplified method beyond
December 31, 2007. The Corporation does not expect the implementation of
SAB 110 to have a material impact c¢n its financial statements.

CVERVIEW

The merger with FNB Financlal Corpeoration, which occurred on June 1,
2006, represents a significant expansion of the Tower Bancorp, Inc.
franchise. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP), comparisons of year-to-date results have not been restated for
the impact of the FNB Financial Corporation operations for the first five
months of 2006 or for the twelve months of 2007, rendering these
comparative analyses less useful than the quarterly comparison. Also, on
February 28, 2007, the Corporation dissoclved FNB Mortgage Brokers, Inc.,
a subsidiary of the bank acquired in the merger.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $ 7,037,000
and $ 6,132,000, respectively. The increase of $ 905,000, or 14.8%, 1is
attributable to the Corporation’s c¢ore banking business and the merger
with FNB Financial Corporation (“ENB”.) Net interest income increased
21.5%, other income decreased 8.4%, the provision for loan loss increased
66.7% and other expenses increased 14.6%. On a basic and diluted per
share basis, net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $ 3.00
and $§ 2.99, respectively, as compared with $ 2.92 and $ 2.87 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Net income as a percentage of average assets on
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an annualized basis, also known as return on average assets, decreased to
1.24% for 2007 from 1.34% for 2006 as a result of increased average
assets. Net income as a percentage of total average stockholders' equity
on an annualized basis, also known as return on average equity, was 8.35%
and 9.06% for 2007 and 2006, respectively. Net income as a percentage of
total average tangible stockholders' equity on an annualized basis, also
known as return on average tangible equity, was 10.70% and 10.52% for
2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in this ratio is attributable
to net income growing slightly faster than tangible equity.

During 2007, the Corporation's assets increased $ 19,469,000, or 3.6%, to
$ 561,636,000 as of December 31, 2007 from $ 542,167,000 as of

December 31, 2006. This increase 1is primarily attributable to an
increase in Federal funds sold, funded by an increase in Money Market
savings accounts (MMDA.) Total loans increased 2.0% to $ 399,158,000.

Total deposits increased by § 30,095,000, or 7.3%, during 2007 to
$ 439,930,000 as of December 31, 2007 from $ 409,835,000 as of December
31, 200s. As a result of competition in the market, and, to a certain
degree, customers’ continued uncertainty as to how to best invest their
ronies, deposit growth may not be assumed at the current rates.

EESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Met Interest Income

For the year ended December 31, 2007, total interest income increased by
$ 7,564,000, or 29.3%, to $ 33,363,000, compared with 3§ 25,79%,000 for
tthe year ended December 31, 2006. The increase 1s primarily due to the
merger with FNB Financial Inc. Average interest-earning assets increased
to $ 514,899,000 for 2007, from $ 415,103,000 for 2006, an increase of
3 99,796,000 or 24.0%, The growth in average interest earning assets was
attributable to increased loan volume and investment securities, which
were funded from the cash flow generated from the reduction of overnight
borrowings and deposit growth. Management targeted efforts to attract
nome equity mortgage and small commercial loans. Management believes
that our experience 1in making mortgage and small commercial loans
positions the Corporation well to meet the financing demands of
individuals and small businesses. Adversely impacting interest income
were two 25 basis point decreases in the prime rate and decreases in the
one year Treasury rate during 2007 that resulted in lower yields on
interest earning assets.

Total interest expense increased by $ 4,137,000, or 41.9%, to
$ 14,010,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, from $ 9,873,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase 1is primarily due to the
acquisition of FNB Financial Inc. Average interest bearing liabilities
increased to § 437,520,000 for 2007 from $ 343,882,000 for 2006.
Increases 1in rates were needed to attract deposits, particularly time
deposit accounts, which increased 47 basis points to 4.32% and money
market accounts, which increased 35 basis points to 3.54%. The interest
expense for time deposit accounts excluding variable rate IRAs and index-
powered CDs increased $ 2,265,000 to $ 7,477,000 for 2007 from
$ 5,212,000 and money market accounts increased § 2,215,000 to
$ 3,910,000 for 2007, from $ 1,695,000 for 2006.
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Net interest income increased by $ 3,427,000, or 21.5%, to $ 19,353,000
for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $ 15,926,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2006. This increase is attributable to the repricing of
mortgage loans and to a lesser extent commercial loans tied to the one
year treasury and prime rates plus the increased earning assets from the
merger with FNB Financial Corp.

The net interest rate spread was 3.3% for the year ended December 31,
2007, and the net interest margin was 3.8%. The net interest spread and
the net interest margin remained unchanged from 2006. Due to a large
investment portfelic at the holding company level, these ratios are lower
than the Bank’s separate performance of 3.8% net interest spread and 4.2%
net interest margin for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Provision for Loan Losses

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the provision for lcan losses was
$ 600,000, an increase of § 240,000, or 66.7%, compared with § 360,000

for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in the provision is
attributable to the merger with FNB Financial Corp. and the increased
loan portfolioc. Due to general economic conditions and deterioration of

certain borrower relationships, the Corporation expects to increase the
provision for 1loan losses during 2008 and thereby negatively impact
earnings during 2008.

The allowance for loans losses represented 0.97% of total loans at
December 31, 2007, compared with 0.92% as of December 31, 2006.
Management performs ongoing assessments of the loan loss reserve in
relation to loan portfolio growth, credit exposure to individual
borrowers, overall trends in the loan portfolio and other relevant
factors. Based upon these factors, management believes that as of
December 31, 2007, the reserve 1is reasonable and sufficient to support
the increased loan growth in 1light of the strong asset gquality as
supported by the capital ratios reflected on page 55.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2007 decreased $ 613,000, or
8.4%, to $ 6,711,000 from § 7,324,000 for 2006. Net gains from the sale
of securities decreased from $ 3,923,000 to $ 1,886,000, a decrease of
$ 2,037,000 or 51.9%. Other income was positively impacted by increases
of $409,000 in trust revenues, $ 243,000 in NSF fees, $ 170,000 in ATM
fees, § 150,000 in BOLI (of which § 132,000 was proceeds from death
benefits), and $ 139,000 in investment service fees. In the third
quarter of 2007, the bank recognized the value of the mortgage servicing
rights and the credit enhancement on §$ 26,555,000 of loans sold to the
FHLB of Pittsburgh over the last two years contributing a net of
$ 301,000 in other income. The increases in NSF fees and ATM fees are
primarily due to the merger with FNB. The Bank re-established and
reactivated its Trust Department in the third quarter of 2006.

Other Expenses

Other expenses, which include salary and benefits, occupancy and all
other expenses incidental to the operations of the Corporation, increased
to $ 16,096,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $ 14,040,000
for the year ended December 31, 2006. The $ 2,056,000, or 14.6% increase
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was primarily due to the merger with FNB. Expenses for 2006 did not
include the first five months of expenses at FNB, since the merger
cccurred in June 2006.

Salaries and employee benefit expenses, which make up the largest
component of other expenses, increased $ 1,239,000, or 17.8%, to
$ 8,188,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $ 6,949,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2006. The increase is primarily attributed to
the merger with FNB, and increases in salary expense of $ 724,000,
employee benefits of $ 516,000 and health insurance expense of $ 236,000.
The employee benefits expense includes $ 325,000 of wvacation accrual
expense not included in the 2006 annual expenses.

Cccupancy and equipment expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007
increased to $ 3,629,000 from $ 3,073,000 for the year ended December 31,
2006, an increase of $ 556,000, or 18.1%. The increase is primarily due
tc the merger with FNB, increasing depreciation expense by $170,000,
computer expense by $ 130,000 and equipment expense by $ 111,000.

Cther operating expenses for the vyear ended December 31, 2007 increased
to $ 4,279,000 from $§ 4,018,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, an
increase of 5 261,000, or 6.5%. The increase is primarily due to the
merger with FNB, increasing state taxes by $ 202,000 and Core Deposit
Intangible amortization by $ 153,000.

Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the tax provision was $ 2,331,000
compared with $ 2,718,000 for the vyear ended December 31, 2006, a
decrease of $ 387,000, or 14.2%. The effective tax rate was 24.9% for
2007 and 30.7% for 2006. Contributing to the lower tax rate was an
increase in tax free income from investment securities, loans and bank
owned life insurance (BOLI).

Met Income

Met income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $ 7,037,000, an
increase of $ 905,000, or 14.8%, compared with $ 6,132,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increase in net income is the result of an
increase of $ 3,427,000 in net interest income and a decrease of
$ 387,000 in taxes, offset by increases of § 2,056,000 in other expenses,
an increase of $ 240,000 in the provision for loan losses, and a decrease
of $ 613,000 in other jincome, Factors contributing to the increased
level of net income include the merger with FNB Financial Corp.,
increased interest income from increased levels of earning assets, as
well as the Bank's efforts to manage its cost of funds. Basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 were
$ 3.00 and $ 2.99 compared with $ 2.92 and $ 2.87 for the year ended
December 31, 2006.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
Securities

The Corporation's securities portfolio is comprised of securities that
not only provide interest and dividend income, including tax-exempt
income, but also provide a source of liquidity, diversify the earning
assets portfolio, allow for the management of risk and tax liability, and
provide collateral for repurchase agreements and public fund deposits.
Policies are in place to address wvarious aspects of managing the
portfolio, including but not 1limited to, concentrations, liquidity,
credit quality, interest rate sensitivity and regulatory guidelines.

Although the Corporation generally intends to hold its investment
securities to maturity, a significant portion cf the securities portfolio
is classified as available for sale, with new purchases generally
categorized as such. Securities in the available for sale category are
accounted for at fair value with unrealized appreciation or depreciation,
net of tax, reported as a separate component of stockholders' equity.
Securities in the held to maturity category are accounted for at
amortized cost. All securities held as o¢f December 31, 2007 are
classified as available for sale. The Corporation holds no trading
securities in its portfolio. The securities portfolio includes equities
owned by the holding company, most of which are investments in banks,
bank holding companies and financial institutions. Equity investments
are accounted for at fair market wvalue. The remaining securities,
primarily debt instruments, are owned by the bank.

The <consolidated securities portfolio at December 31, 2007 was
5 83,846,000, compared to $ 87,631,000 at December 31, 2006, a decrease
of $ 3,785,000, or 4.3%. The decrease is due primarily to decreases in

the fair values of securities held.
Bank Owned Securities

The bank owned securities . portfolio at December 31, 2007 was
$ 49,985,000, compared to $ 44,478,000 at December 31, 2006, an increase
of $ 5,507,000, or 12.4%. The increase is attributable to the purchase
of agency mortgage backed securities and taxable state and municipal
bonds.

The c¢arrying value of the available for sale portion of the portfolio at
December 31, 2007 includes an unrealized gain of $ 829,000 (reflected as
accumulated other comprehensive income of $ 547,000 in stockholders'
equity, net of & deferred income tax liability of § 282,000). This
compares with an unrealized gain at December 31, 2006 of $ 791,000
(reflected as accumulated other comprehensive income of $522,000 in
stockholders' equity, net of a deferred income tax liability of
$ 269,000).

Holding Company Owned Securities

The holding company securities portfelic at December 31, 2007 was
$ 33,861,000, compared to 5 43,153,000 at December 31, 2006, a decrease
of $ 9,292,000, or 21.5%. The decrease includes a decrease of
$ 9,392,000 in unrealized gains. Realized gains on sale of equity
securities were $ 1,900,000 for the year ending December 31, 2007.
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The carrying value of the available for sale portion of the portfolioc at
December 31, 2007 includes an unrealized gain of $ 6,077,000 (reflected
as accumulated other comprehensive income of $ 4,011,000 in stockholders'
equity, net of a deferred income tax liability of $ 2,066,000). This
compares with an unrealized gain at December 31, 2006 of $ 15,469,000
(reflected as accumulated other comprehensive income of $ 10,209,000 in
stockholders' equity, net of a deferred income tax liability of
$ 5,260,000). This decrease in unrealized gains of § 9,392,000, or
613.7%, 1s due to market fluctuations and general trends in the economy.
Since the bulk of the holding company’s portfolio is in banks and cother
financial institutions, only negative trends in the market impact the
portfolio.

Loans

The loan portfolio comprises the major component of the Corporation's
earning assets and generally is the highest yielding asset category.
Gross loans receivable, net of unearned fees and origination costs,
increased $ 7,739,000, or 2.0%, to § 399,158,000 at December 31, 2007
from $ 391,419,000 at December 31, 2006. Gross loans represented 90.7% of
total deposits at December 31, 2007 as compared with 95.5% at
December 31, 2006, primarily due to the growth in total deposits of
5 30,095,000. At December 31, 2007 the bank had scld mortgage lecans to
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh with a balance of $ 27,784,000
compared to § 20,546,000 at December 31, 2006.

Credit Risk and Loan Quality

The Corporation continues to be prudent in its efforts to minimize credit
risk. The Bank's written lending policy requires underwriting, loan
documentation and credit analysis standards to be met prior to the
approval and funding of any loan. In accordance with that policy, the
loan review process monitors the loan portfeolio on an ongoing basis. The
Credit Administration area and the accounting department then prepares an
analysis of the allowance for loan losses which is then submitted to the
Board of Directors for its assessment as to the adequacy of the
allowance. The allowance for loan losses is an accumulation of expenses
that has been charged against past and present earnings in anticipation
cf potential losses in the loan portfolio.

The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006
was § 3,854,000 and $ 3,610,000, respectively. The increase in the
allowance 1is attributable to weaknesses in the housing market and
potential weaknesses in the local economy. At December 31, 2007, the
ellowance for loan losses represented 0.97% of the gross loan portfolio,
compared with 0.92% at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007, in
consideraticon of the asset quality, management believes the allowance for
loan 1loss reserve to he reasonable and adequate to support the loan
growth and to address any potential losses.

The Bank's lending policy is executed through the assignment of tiered
loan limit authorities to individual officers of the Bank, the Officer's
Loan Committee and the Board of Directors. Although the Bank maintains
sound credit policies, certain lcans may deteriorate for a variety of
reasons. The Bank's policy is to place all lcans on a non-accrual status
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upon becoming 90 days delingquent in their payments, unless there is a
documented and reasonable expectaticn of the collection of the delinquent
amount. Loans are reviewed monthly as to their status, and on a guarterly
basis presented to the Board of Directors. Management is not aware of any
material potential loan problems that have not been disclosed in this
report.

At December 31, 2007 the Corporation had other real estate owned (not
used in operations) in the amount of § 2,313,000, which was an increase
from the $§ 1,904,000 owned at December 31, 2006. 0Of the other real
estate owned, $ 2,288,000 represented lots purchased for possible future
bank facilities. The remaining $ 25,000 represents foreclosed property.
At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Corporation had non-
accrual lcans in the amount of $ 4,397,000 and $ 688,000, respectively.
The increase was primarily due to three commercial loan relationships,

Loan concentrations are considered to exist when the total amount of
loans t¢ any one or a multiple number of borrowers engaged in similar
activities or having similar characteristics exceeds 10% of loans
outstanding in any one category. The Corporation maintains a diversified
loan portfolio, granting agribusiness, commercial, and residential loans
to customers. The majority of the Bank's lending is made within its
primary market area, which includes scuthern Franklin County,
Pennsylvania, northern Washington County, Maryland, Fulton County,
Pennsylvania and Hancock, Maryland. At December 31, 2007, 60% of the
Corporation’s loan portfolio is concentrated in mortgages secured by 1-4
family properties and 17% is concentrated in leans secured by nonfarm
nonresidential properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The Corpeoration has Bank Owned Life Insurance ("BCLI") for certain
officers and directors, whereby the Bank is the owner and beneficiary of
the policies. The Bank's deposits and proceeds from the sale of
investment securities funded +the BOLI. Earnings from the BOLI are
recognized as other income. The BOLI generates income from the
appreciation of the cash surrender values of the pool of insurance, and
its tax advantage to the Corporation. This income is used to “fund” a
portion of current and future employee benefit costs and a Nonqualified
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for the Corporation's Chief
Executive QOfficer.

The Corporation had $ 10,768,000 and 510,683,000 in BOLI as of December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively., an increase of $ 85,000 or 0.8%. The
increase is net of the redemption, upon the death of two participants, of
life insurance policies with cash wvalues totaling § 311,000. Although
the BOLI is an asset that may be liquidated, it is the Corporation's
intention to hold this pool of insurance because it provides tax-exempt
income that lowers the Corporation's tax liability, while enhancing its
overall capital position. The Corporation also expects to collect future
proceeds as the beneficiary of the policies.
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Deposits

Deposits are the major source of the Corporation's funds for lending and
investment  purposes. Total depocsits at December 31, 2007  were
5 439,930,000, an increase of $ 30,095,000, or 7.3%, from total deposits
of § 409,835,000 at December 31, 2006. The increase in deposits was
primarily due to a large money market account opened in January 2007.
Money market deposits increased $ 39,652,000 or 57.6% to $ 108,500,000 as
of December 31, 2007. Weekly, management reviews options to manage the
funding of the bank and respond to changes in interest rates and local
competition. The cost of deposits has increased due to the increased
costs associated with attracting deposits at a time when short term
interest rates are at two year highs. Higher rates impacted the cost of
interest bearing deposits, which increased to 2.95% as of December 31,
2007 from 2.45% as of December 31, 2006.

Short-Term Borrowings

Short term borrowings at December 31, 2007 were $ 10,996,000, compared to
$ 9,875,000 at December 31, 2006, an increase of $ 1,121,000, or 11.4%.
Federal funds purchased, Treasury Tax and Loan demand note, lines of
credits with banks and overnight borrowings with the Federal Home Loan

Bank of Pittsburgh are considered to be short term borrowings. Short
term borrowings fluctuate daily to meet the liquidity needs of the
Corporation. The Corporation had short term sources of available

horrowings in the amount of $ 60,000,000 overnight lines from the Federal
Home Lecan Bank of Pittsburgh, $ 11,000,000 in an overnight 1line £from
ancther c¢ommercial bank, and § 18,900,000 from area banks. As of
December 31, 2007, the maximum borrowing capacity with the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Pittsburgh is approximately $ 263,034,000, which includes
~he $ 60,000,000 overnight lines.

Long-Term Debt and Borrowing Capacity

There were $ 26,863,000 outstanding in fixed rate term loans with the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh at December 31, 2007, compared to
$ 31,871,000 borrowed at December 31, 2006.

The Bank has a total maximum borrowing capacity for both short and long-
term borrowings of approximately $ 264,308,000 with the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Pittsburgh, of which $ 26,863,000 represents fixed rate term
loans that were outstanding at December 31, 2007, resulting in an unused
borrowing capacity of $§ 291,171,000.

Asset/Liability Management

The management of interest rate risk involves measuring and analyzing the
maturity and repricing of interest-earning assets and interest bearing
liabilities at specific peoints in time. The imbalance between interest-
earning assets and interest bearing liabilities is commonly referred to
as the interest rate gap. The interest rate gap 1s one measure of the
risk inherent in the existing balance sheet as it relates to potential
changes in net interest income. Maintaining an appropriate balance
between interest-earning assets and interest bearing liabilities is a
means of monitoring and possibly avoiding material fluctuations in the
net interest margin during periods of changing interest rates.
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The Corporation's overall sensitivity to interest rate risk is low due to
its non-complex balance sheet. The Corporation manages its balance sheet
with the intent of stabilizing net interest income and net economic value
under a broad range of interest rate environments. The Corporation has the
ability to effect various strategies to manage interest rate risk, which
include, but are not limited to, selling newly originated residential
mortgage leoans, controlling the volume mix of fixed/variable rate commercial
loans, mortgage loans and securities, increasing/ decreasing deposits via
interest rate changes, borrowing from the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Pittsburgh, and buying/selling securities. Adjustments to the mix of assets
and liabilities are made periodically in an effort teo give the Corporaticn
dependable and steady growth in net interest income, while at the same time,
managing the related risks,

Ligquidity

Liquidity represents the Corporation's ability to efficiently manage cash
flows at reasonable rates to support possible commitments to borrowers or
the demands of depositors. Liquidity is essential to compensate for
fluctuations in the balance sheet and provide funds for growth and normal
operating expenditures. Liquidity needs may be met by converting assets into
cash or obtaining sources of additional funding.

Liquidity from asset categories is provided through cash, amounts due from
banks, interest-bearing deposits with banks and federal funds sold, which
were $ 36,851,000 at December 31, 2007, compared to $ 20,755,000 at
December 31, 2006. Additional asset liquidity sources include principal and
interest payments from securities in the Corporation's investment portfolio
and cash flow from its amortizing loan portfelio. Longer-term liquidity
needs may be met by selling securities available for sale, selling loans or
raising additiocnal capital. At December 31, 2007, there were $ 68,573,000 in
liquid securities as compared to $ 71,337,000 at December 31, 2006. Liquid
securities decreased by $ 2,764,000 since December 31, 2006 due primarily to
the decrease in unrealized gains in the investment portfolio.

Liability 1ligquidity sources include attracting deposits at competitive
rates. Deposits at December 31, 2007 were $ 439,930,000, compared to
$ 409,835,000 at December 31, 2006. In addition, the Corporation has
borrowing capacity and lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Pittsburgh, Atlantic Central Bankers Bank and several local banks.

The Corporation's financial statements do not reflect various off-balance
sheet commitments that are made in the normal course of business, which may
involve some liquidity risk. Off-balance sheet arrangements are discussed in
detail below.

Management 1is of the opinion that its liquidity position, at December 31,
2007, 1is adequate to respond to fluctuations "on" and "off" the balance
sheet. In addition, management knows of no trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that may result in, or that are reasonably likely to
result in the Corporation's inability to meet anticipated or unexpected
liquidity needs.
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Qff-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Tie Corporation's financial statements do not reflect various off-balance
sheet arrangements that are made in the normal course of business. These
commitments consist mainly of loans approved but not yet funded, unused
lines of credit and letters of credit made in accordance with the same
standards as on-balance sheet instruments. Unused commitments at
Dacember 31, 2007 were $ 49,158,000, which consisted of $ 45,949,000 in
unfunded commitments to existing lecans and unfunded new loans and
$ 3,209,000 in letters of credit. Unused commitments at December 31, 2006
were $ 51,755,000, which consisted of $ 48,690,000 in unfunded commitments
to existing loans and unfunded new loans and $ 3,065,000 in letters of
credit. Because these instruments have fixed maturity dates, and because
many of them will expire without being drawn upon, they do not generally
present a significant liquidity risk to the Corporation. Management believes
that any amounts actually drawn upon can be funded in the normal course of
operations. The Corporation has no investment in or financial relationship
with any unconsclidated entities that are reasonably likely to have a
material effect on ligquidity or the availability of capital resources.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

A number of measures are used to monitor and manage interest rate risk
including income simulation and interest sensitivity (gap) analysis. An
income simulation model is used to assess the direction and magnitude of
changes in net interest income resulting from changes in interest rates. Key
assumptions in the model include prepayment, repricing and maturity of loan
related assets; deposit sensitivity; market conditions and changes in other
financial instruments. The Corporation’s policy objective is to limit the
change in annual earnings to 20% of net interest income. At December 31,
2007, based on the results of the simulation model, the Corporation would
expect an increase in net interest income of $ 367,000, or 1.6% over a 12-
month period if interest rates increased from current rates by 200 basis
points. If interest rates decreased from current rates by 200 basis points,
the Corporation would expect a decrease in the net interest income of
5 290,000, or 1.3% over a 12-month period.

The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the
extent to which such assets and liabilities are “interest rate sensitive”

and by monitoring an institution’s interest rate sensitivity “gap”. An
asset or liability is said to be interest rate sensitive within a specific
time period if it will mature or reprice within that time periocd. The

interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between the
amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific
time period and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities maturing or
repricing within that same time period. A gap is considered positive when
the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing exceeds the
zmount of interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within the same

period. A gap is considered negative when the amount of interest-bearing
liabilities maturing or repricing exceeds the amount of interest-earning
essets maturing or repricing within the same pericd. Accordingly, in a

rising interest rate environment, an institution with a positive gap would
be in a better position to invest in higher yielding assets which would
result in the yield on its assets increasing at a pace closer to the cost of
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its interest-bearing liabilities, than would be the case if it had a
negative gap. During a period of falling interest rates, an institution
with a positive gap would tend to have its assets repricing at a faster rate
than one with a negative gap, which would tend to restrain the growth of its
net interest income.

The Corporation closely monitors its interest rate risk as such risk relates
to its operational strategies, The Corporation’s Board of Directors has
established an Asset/Liability Committee responsible for reviewing its
asset/liability pclicies and interest rate risk position, which generally
meets quarterly and reports to the Board on interest rate risk and trends on
a quarterly basis.

The following table sets forth the amounts of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at December 31, 2007 which are
anticipated by the Corporation, based upon certain assumptions described
below, to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown.
Adjustable-rate assets and liabilities are included in the table in the
period in which their interest rates can next be adjusted.
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LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

Due 0 - 90 Due 91 - 360 Due After 1
Days Days Year Total

{000 omitted)
Fate sensitive assets

Interest bearing deposits
with banks and investment

securities $ 20,081 S 3,247 $ 46,737 $ 70,065
Real estate, commercial and

consumer loans 112,375 132,808 153,296 398,479

$ 132,456 $ 136,055 $ 200,033 5 468,544

Rate sensitive liabilities

NOW accounts, savings
deposits, and money

market accounts $ 201,514 $ 6,717 $ 15,673 $ 223,904
Certificate of deposits 40,019 91, 333 37,814 169,166
Borrowings 10,996 0 26,739 37,735

$§ 252,529 $ 98,050 $ 80,226 $ 430,805

Curmulative interest
sensitive GAP/total
assets from financial

statements ( 120,073) { 82,068) 37,739 37,739
Cumulative interest
Sensitive GAP ratio { 21.38%) ( 14.61%) 6.72% 6.72%

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporation has risk management policies to monitor and
limit exposure to market risk, and strives to take advantage of profit
opportunities available in interest rate movements.

Management continuously monitors liquidity and interest rate
risk through its ALCO reporting, and reprices products in order to
maintain desired net interest margins. Management expects to continue to
direct its marketing efforts toward attracting more low cost retail
deposits while competitively pricing its time deposits in order to
maintain favorable interest spreads, and minimize structural interest
rate risk.

The following table sets forth the projected maturities and
average rates for all rate sensitive assets and liabilities based on the
following assumptions. All fixed and variable rate loans were based on
original maturity of the note since the Corporation has not experienced a
significant rewriting of loans. Investments are based on maturity date.
The Corporation has historically experienced very little deposit runoff
and has in fact had net gains in deposits over the past fifteen years.
Based on this experience, it was estimated that maximum runoff of
noninterest bearing checking would be 33% and for all other deposits
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except time deposits, which would be 10%. Time deposits are classified by
original maturity date.

{In Thousands} Principal/Notional Amount Maturing In:

Rate sensitive assats 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Fixed interest rate loans 30, 645 12, 691 11,228 10,631 6,889 43,255 115, 340 116,703
Average interest rate 7.63 7.86 7.64 7.46 7.17 7.08 7.40

Variable interest rate leans 37,4686 7.823 10,594 8,689 14,229 208,338 283,139 285,720
Average interest rate 7.60 6.93 6.89 6.34 7.35 7.31 7.31

Fixed interest rate securities 3,322 2,487 2,584 2,880 1,868 36,843 49, 984 49,984
Average interest rate 4.34 3.91 3.74 5.16 5.63 5.11 4.95

Federal funds sold 20,081 v 0 ) o] u] 20,081 20,081
Average Interest Rate 5.080 0.000 0.000 0.000 Q.000 0.400 5.080

Rata Sensitive Liabilities

Noninterest bearing checking 7,812 2,243 2,343 2,343 780 31,239 46,860 46,860
Savings and interest bearing checking 65,717 4,478 4,478 4,478 2,239 201,514 223,904 223,904
Average interest rates 1.91 1.91 1.91 1.91 1.91 1.91 1.91
Time deposits 131,229 16,905 12,888 4,999 3,141 0 169,166 169,628
Average interast rates 4.32 3.92 4.13 4.63 4,31 0.00 4.27
Fixed interest rate borrowings 4,978 Q 5,224 4,978 4,978 6,581 26,739 27,119
Variable interest rate borrowings 10,996 0 o 0 0 0 10,9%6 10, 996
Borrowings average interest rate 6.038 0.000 6.110 5.270 4.010 4.270 5.370

CAPITAL FUNDS

Stockholders' equity was $ 78,414,000 at December 31, 2007,
compared to $ 81,553,000 at December 31, 2006. The decrease was primarily
due to lower unrealized gains on the investment portfolio. Regulatory
authorities have established capital guidelines in the form of the "leverage
ratio" and "risk-based capital ratios." The leverage ratioc compares capital
to total balance sheet assets, while the risk-based ratios compare capital
to risk-weighted assets and off-balance-sheet activity in order to make
capital levels more sensitive to risk profiles of individual Dbanks.
A comparison of Tower Bancorp's capital ratios to regulatory minimums at
December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Tower Bancorp Regulatory
Minimum
2007 2006 Requirements
Leverage ratio 10.03% 10.36% 4%
Risk-based capital ratio Tier
I (core capital} 14.95% 14.79% 4%
Combined Tier I and Tier II
(core capital plus
allowance for loan losses) 16.74% 17.67% 8%

Tower Bancorp, Inc. has traditionally been well above required
levels and expects equity <capital to continue to exceed regulatory
guidelines. Certain ratios are useful in measuring the ability of a company
€0 generate capital internally.
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The following chart indicates the growth in equity capital for
the past three years.

2007 2006 2005

Equity capital at December 31 (5 000 $ 78,414 5 81,553 $ 48,389
cmitted)
Equity capital as a percent of assets at

December 31 13.96% 15.04% 13.74%
Return on average assets 1.24% 1.34% 1.51%
Eeturn on average equity 8.35% 9.06% 10.90%
Cash dividend payout ratio 35.37% 26.13% 31.62%

STOCK MARKET ANALYSIS AND DIVIDENDS

The Corporation's common stock is traded in the over-the-counter
market. As of December 31, 2007 the approximate number of shareholders of
record was 1,283.

Cash
2007 Market Price Dividend
First Quarter $ 43.70 - 44.75 $ .26
Second Quarter 43.15 - 44.75 .26
Third Quarter 42.10 - 44.25 .26
Fourth Quarter 41.10 - 42.50 .28
Cash
2006 Market Price Dividend
First Quarter $ 45.00 - 47.75 5 .24
Second Quarter 42,30 - 46.70 .24
Third Quarter 42 .30 - 49.75 .26
Fourth Quarter 44 .20 - 45.00 .00

Beginning in the first quarter of 2007, the Corporation changed its dividend
declaration and payment policy. The Corporation now declares and pays its
quarterly dividends during the calendar quarter. Therefore, while the
Corporation paid four (4) dividends during 2006, the table reflects only
rhree {(3) dividends that were declared during 2006.
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

1. The First National Bank of Greencastle, Center Square, Greencastle,
Pennsylvania; a National Bank organized under the National Bank Act.

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board ¢f Directors and Shareholders
Tower Bancorp, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference to previously filed
Registration Statements (Form $-14 No. 2-89573, Form 5-8 No. 333-40661 and Form
5-4 No. 333-130485) of Tower Bancorp, Inc. of our report dated March 12, 2008
relating to the financial statements and our report dated March 12, 2008 on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting appearing in the 2007
annual report to the shareholders incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K of
Tower Bancorp, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007.

/s/SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS & COMPANY, LLC

Chambersburg, PA
March 12, 2008




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Jeff B. Shank, President and CEO, certify, that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report cn Form 10-K of Tower Bancorp, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report,

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report.

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15{e))} and internal control over financial reporting ({(as defined in Exchange Act
Rules _3a-15(f) and 15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
annual report is being prepared;

{b} designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal
contro. over financial reporting to be designed under cur supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles:

{c}) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in this annual repcrt our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure contrels and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual
report based on such evaluation; and,

(d} disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant's internal control
over fonancial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over firancial reporting.

5. The registrant’'s other certifying officer and I have discleosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's beoard of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent function):

{a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
the internal contrcl over financial reporting which are reascnably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and repert financial
information; and

(b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Jeff B. Shank

Jeff B. Shank

President and CEO

(Principal Executive Cfficer)
March 12, 2008




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Franklin T. Klink, III, Treasurer, certify, that:
1. I have reviewed this annual repcrt on Form 10-K of Tower Bancorp, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary tc make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and cother financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of cperations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report.

4. The registrant's other certifying cfficer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15{e)) and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(f) and 15d-15(f}} for the registrant and we have:

{a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the peried in which this
annual report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal contrel over financial reporting, or caused such internal
control over financial reporting to ke designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of fipancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure contrels and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual
report based on such evaluation; and,

(d) disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal guarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluaticn of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
the internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
informaticn; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inveclves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Franklin T. Klink, III
Franklin T. Klink, III
Treasurer

{Principal Financial Officer)
March 12, 2008




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.5.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Tower Bancorp, Inc. (the
Corporation) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2007 as filed with
he Securities and Exchange Commission on the date therein specified (the
“Report”), I, Jeff B. Shank, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15{d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

{(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation as of and for the period covered by the report.

/s/ Jeff B. Shank
Jeff B. Shank
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Dated: March 12, 2008




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.5.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 206 OF THE SARBANES-QXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Tower Bancorp, Inc. (the

Corporation} on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2007 as
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date therein specified
“Report”), I, Franklin T. Klink, III, Chief Financial QOfficer of the
Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted
section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13{(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

filed with
(the

pursuant to

or 15(d)

{2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Corporation as of and for the period covered by the report.

/s/ Franklin T. Klink, III

Franklin T. Klink, III
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: March 12, 2008
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